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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW
Bio-Techne and its subsidiaries, collectively doing business as Bio-Techne (Bio-Techne, we, our, us or the Company) develop,
manufacture and sell biotechnology reagents and instruments for the research and clinical diagnostic markets worldwide. With our deep
product portfolio and application expertise, we strive to provide the life sciences community with innovative, high-quality scientific tools
to better understand biological processes and drive discovery.
We currently operate with three reporting segments – our Biotechnology, Protein Platforms and Diagnostics Divisions. Our Biotechnology
Division is a leader in providing high quality proteins and antibodies, and related immunoassays, as well as biologically active small
molecules and other reagents for the research and clinical diagnostics markets, all under the primary brands of R&D Systems, Novus
Biologicals and Tocris Bioscience. Through our most recent acquisition, Advanced Cell Diagnostics, we also sell products for RNA in situ
hybridization. Our Protein Platforms Division focuses on developing and supplying instrumentation and related consumables designed to
simplify protein analysis processes along with single cell protein analysis, all under the ProteinSimple brand. Through our Diagnostics
Division, we serve the clinical markets with regulated products such as controls, calibrators, reagents and immunoassays intended for
diagnostic uses.
We are a Minnesota corporation with our global headquarters in Minneapolis, Minnesota. We originally were founded over forty years
ago, in 1976, as Research and Diagnostic Systems, Inc. We became a publicly traded company in 1985 through a merger with Techne
Corporation, now Bio-Techne Corporation. Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ under the symbol “TECH.” We operate globally,
with offices in multiple locations in the United States, Europe, and Asia. Today, our product line extends to over 300,000 manufactured
products in state of the art facilities to accommodate many of our manufacturing needs.
Our historical focus was on providing high quality proteins, antibodies and immunoassays to the life science research market and
hematology controls for the diagnostics market. Beginning in 2012, and accelerating over the last three years, we implemented a strategy
to accelerate growth in part by acquiring businesses and product portfolios that leveraged and diversified our existing product lines, filled
portfolio gaps with differentiated high growth businesses, and expanded our geographic scope.
Growth Through Acquisition
Acquisition

Year Acquired (Fiscal)
2012
2014
2014

Reporting Segment
Biotechnology
Diagnostics
Biotechnology

Novus Biologicals
ProteinSimple

2015
2015

Biotechnology
Protein Platforms

CyVek
Cliniqa

2015
2016

Protein Platforms
Diagnostics

Zephyrus BioSciences
Space Import-Export
Advanced Cell Diagnostics

2016
2017
2017

Protein Platforms
Biotechnology
Biotechnology

Tocris
Bionostics
PrimeGene
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Primary Product Portfolios
Biologically active small molecules
Blood chemistry and packaging
Bulk and GMP proteins manufacturing for
China
Antibodies
Protein analysis, including automated
western blot, ELISAs and biologics
instrumentation
Automated ELISA systems
Blood chemistry quality controls and bulk
immunochemistry reagents
Single cell western blotting
Geographic expansion
Genomic in situ hybridization

Recognizing the importance of an integrated, global approach to meeting our mission and accomplishing our strategies, we have unified
our brands and recent acquisitions under a single global brand, Bio-Techne. In November 2014 we changed the name of the parent
corporation from Techne Corporation to Bio-Techne Corporation. The Bio-Techne name solidifies the new strategic direction for the
Company, and also unifies all of our brands under one complete corporate umbrella.
We are committed to providing the life sciences community with innovative, high-quality scientific tools to better understand biological
processes and drive discovery. Our mission is to “build epic tools for epic science.” We intend to build on Bio-Techne’s past
accomplishments, high product quality reputation and sound financial position by executing strategies that position us to serve as the
standard for biological content in the research market, and to leverage that leadership position to enter the diagnostics and other adjacent
markets. Our strategies include:
Continued innovation in core products. Through collaborations with key opinion leaders, participation in scientific discussions
and societies, and leveraging our internal talent we expect to be able to convert our continued significant investment in our
research and development activities to be first-to-market with quality products that are at the leading edge of life science
researchers’ needs.
Expansion of geographic footprint. We will continue to expand our sales staff and distribution channels globally in order to
increase our global presence and make it easier for customers to transact with us.
Realignment of resources. In recognition of the increased size and scale of the organization, we continue to redesign our
development and operational processes to create greater efficiencies throughout the organization.
Talent recruitment and retention. We strive to recruit, train and retain the most talented staff to implement all of our strategies
effectively.
Targeted acquisitions and investments. We will continue to leverage our strong balance sheet to gain access to new technologies
and products that improve our competitiveness in the current market, meet customers’ expanding work flow needs and allow us to
enter adjacent markets.
OUR PRODUCTS AND MARKETS
In fiscal 2017, net sales from Bio-Techne’s Biotechnology, Protein Platforms and Diagnostics segments represented 65%, 16%, and 19%
of consolidated net sales, respectively. Financial information relating to Bio-Techne’s segments is incorporated herein by reference to
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Biotechnology Segment
Biotechnology Segment Products
Through our Biotechnology segment, we are one of the world's leading suppliers of specialized proteins, such as cytokines and growth
factors, immunoassays, antibodies and related reagents, to the biotechnology research community. Our combined chemical and biological
reagents portfolio provides high quality tools which customers can use in solving the complexity of important biological pathways and
glean knowledge that may lead to a more complete understanding of biological processes, and ultimately to the development of novel
strategies to address different pathologies.
The portfolio in this segment includes five main product lines: native and recombinant proteins, monoclonal and polyclonal antibodies,
immunoassays, biologically active chemical compounds and, through our most recent acquisition, Advanced Cell Diagnostics, in situ
genomic hybridization. As mentioned above, all are useful in a wide variety of important biomedical research activities. In addition, a
number of our products have the potential to serve as predictive biomarkers and therapeutic targets for a variety of human diseases and
conditions including cancer, autoimmunity, diabetes, hypertension, obesity, inflammation, neurological disorders, and kidney failure.
Immunoassays can also be useful in clinical diagnostics. In fact, we have received Food and Drug Administration (FDA) marketing
clearance for a few of our immunoassays for use as in vitro diagnostic devices. In addition to being useful research tools, our RNA in situ
hybridization assays have diagnostics applications as well, and several are currently being cleared with the FDA in partnership with
diagnostics instrument manufacturers and pharmaceutical companies.
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Biotechnology Segment Customers and Distribution Methods
We sell our Biotechnology products directly to customers who are primarily located in North America, western Europe and China. We
have a sales and marketing partnership agreement with Fisher Scientific in order to bolster our market presence in North America and
leverage the transactional efficiencies offered by the large Fisher organization. We also sell through third party distributors in China,
Japan, eastern Europe and the rest of the world. Our sales are widely distributed, and no single end-user customer accounted for more than
10% of Biotechnology's net sales during fiscal 2017, 2016 or 2015.
Biotechnology Segment Competitors
A number of companies supply the worldwide market for protein-related and chemically-based research and diagnostic reagents, including
GE Healthcare Life Sciences, BD Biosciences, Merck KGaA/EMD Chemicals, Inc., PeproTech, Inc., Abcam plc., and Thermo Fisher
Scientific, Inc. Market success is primarily dependent upon product quality, selection, price and reputation. We believe we are one of the
leading world-wide suppliers of cytokine related products in the research market. We further believe that the expansion of our product
offering, their recognized quality, and the continued demand for protein-related and chemically-based research reagents will allow us to
remain competitive in the growing biotechnology research and diagnostic markets.
Biotechnology Manufacturing
We are not dependent on key or sole source suppliers for most of our products in the Biotechnology segment. We develop and manufacture
the majority of our proteins using recombinant DNA technology, thus significantly reducing our reliance on outside resources. Our
antibodies are produced using a variety of technologies including traditional animal immunization and hybridoma technology as well as
recombinant antibody techniques. Our chemical-based small molecule products are synthesized from widely available products. We
typically have several outside sources for all critical raw materials necessary for the manufacture of our products.
The majority of our Biotechnology products are shipped within one day of receipt of the customers' orders. Consequently, we had no
significant backlog of orders for our Biotechnology segment products as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or as of a
comparable date for fiscal 2016.
Protein Platforms Segment
Proteins are important for understanding disease because they are the functional units that carry out specific tasks in every cell. Altered
levels of certain proteins can prevent the cell from performing its intended function, produce the energy it requires, maintain its
morphology or survive within the tissue. However, protein analysis is complex given the varied and unique three-dimensional structure of
the many proteins of interest. Our Protein Platforms segment develops, manufactures and sells tools to simplify protein analysis while at
the same time achieving more quantitative and reproducible results.
Protein Platforms Segment Products
Biologics Platform. Biologics are complex protein-based therapeutics, and are transforming the pharmaceutical industry and treatment of
many diseases. Biologic drugs are very effective targeted therapeutics for diseases such as arthritis, cancer and diabetes, and their number
in development is increasing because of a variety of advances in biochemistry, immunology and biotechnology. Developers of biologics
are required by regulatory agencies, such as FDA, to develop robust processes to ensure that the specific biologic of interest can be
identified and characterized accurately and then consistently and reliably produced. Our Biologics tools help researchers interrogate
protein purity and identify contaminants during the development and production of biologics. Our Maurice, iCE3 and MFI platforms all
measure some elements of protein identity, purity and heterogeneity.
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The Simple Western Platform. The Western blot, or Western, is one of the most widely-used assays for protein analysis and identification
today. Unchanged since its invention in 1979, the Western assay is used by molecular biologists, biochemists and clinicians to determine if
a specific protein is present in a sample. Our Simple Western platform is a fully-automated Western blot analytical technique that can
identify and quantify a protein of interest in a more sensitive, automated and less time intensive manner.
SimplePlex Platform. A common assay used in research and clinical diagnostics is the ELISA, or enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay.
The SimplePlex platform is a transformative immunoassay technology which integrates an innovatively designed microfluidic cartridge
with a state-of-the-art analyzer to deliver a bench-top immunoassay system that is more sensitive than ELISA with none of the traditional
challenges of assay design or repeatability. SimplePlex assays are fully automated, multi-analyte immunoassays that permit the customer
to run multiple samples while interrogating multiple analytes in approximately one hour while leveraging the large biological content
menu that has been developed over 30 years. We believe the SimplePlex technology, along with other immunoassay platforms offered by
Bio-Techne, represents the most comprehensive line of immunoassay products to meet customers' complete workflow in their research and
clinical protein applications.
Single Cell Western Platform. The Milo platform and related reagents perform western blot assays on individual cells versus an entire cell
population. With this tool, customers can elucidate the properties of individual cells to better understand cell behavior that can shape the
overall cell population response in a disease or normal state.
Protein Platforms Segment Customers and Distribution Methods
Our customers for this segment include researchers in academia as well as commercial researchers. Our biologics line of products is used
primarily by production and quality control departments at biotech and pharmaceutical companies. We sell our Protein Platforms products
directly to customers who are primarily located in North America, western Europe and Japan. We also sell through third party distributors
in China, southern Europe and the rest of the world. Our sales are widely distributed, and no single end-user customer accounted for more
than 10% of Protein Platforms' net sales during fiscal 2017, 2016 or 2015.
Protein Platforms Segment Competitors
Our Simple Western platform is a complete replacement for the traditional Western blot. As a result, we face competition from the vendors
that supply instruments and reagents to traditional Western blot users. These competitors include Bio-Rad Laboratories, GE Healthcare,
Merck KGaA, PerkinElmer and Thermo Fisher Scientific. Similarly, our SimplePlex platform replaces the traditional ELISA assay as well
as some flow-based multiplex assays; competitors include those who supply instruments and reagents for ELISAs, including Meso Scale
Discovery, PerkinElmer, Thermo Fisher, Luminex, Millipore, Quanterix, and Bio-Rad Laboratories. The primary competitors for our
Biologics instrumentation are Agilent Technologies, Danaher and PerkinElmer, as well as GE Healthcare, Shimadzu, Thermo Fisher and
Waters. We believe our competitive position is strong due to the unique aspects of our products and our product quality.
Protein Platforms Segment Manufacturing
We manufacture our products for this division at various locations in the United States and Canada. We manufacture our own components
where we believe it adds significant value, but we rely on suppliers for the manufacture of some of the consumables, components,
subassemblies and autosamplers used with, or included in, our systems, which are manufactured to our specifications. We are not
dependent on any one supplier and are not required to carry significant amounts of inventory to assure ourselves of a continuous allotment
of goods from suppliers. We conduct all final testing and inspection of our products. We have established a quality control program,
including a set of standard manufacturing and documentation procedures.
There was no significant backlog of orders for our Protein Platforms products as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or as of a
comparable date for fiscal 2016.
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Diagnostics Segment (formerly Clinical Controls)
Diagnostics Segment Products
Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2017, the Clinical Controls segment has been renamed Diagnostics. Our original business in this
segment was focused primarily on controls and calibrators for hematology clinical instruments. With the acquisition of Bionostics in fiscal
2014 and Cliniqa in fiscal 2016, we expanded this segment to include blood chemistry and blood gas quality controls, diagnostic
immunoassays, and other bulk and custom reagents for the in vitro diagnostic market. We renamed the operating segment to reflect this
expanded portfolio of products.
Our hematology controls and calibrators ensure that hematology instruments are performing accurately and reliably. We believe our
products have improved stability and versatility and a longer shelf life than most of those of our competitors. We also offer controls for
blood glucose and blood gas devices, as well as coagulation device control products.
We also develop and supply bulk purified proteins, enzymes, disease-state plasmas, infectious disease antigens and processed serums to
the clinical diagnostic industry worldwide. Often we manufacture these reagents on a custom basis to optimize their use in a customer's
diagnostic assay. We supply these reagents in various formats including liquid, lyophilized and powder form. In fiscal 2017, we launched
the Paratest® product, a novel and convenient stool collection and test device for the veterinary market, utilizing our expertise in
packaging and reagents from our Devens, Massachusetts site.
Diagnostics Segment Customers and Distribution Methods
Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) agreements represent the largest market for our diagnostics products. In fiscal 2017, 2016 and
2015, OEM agreements accounted for $60.7 million, $54.2 million, and $41.1 million, or 57%, 52%, and 53% of division net sales in each
fiscal year, respectively. We sell some of our diagnostics products directly to customers and, in Europe and Asia, also through distributors.
One OEM customer accounted for approximately 12% and 13% of the Diagnostics Division's net sales during fiscal 2017 and 2015,
respectively. This customer did not amount to 10% or more of the Company's consolidated revenue during these years. No customers
accounted for more than 10% of the Diagnostics Division’s net sales during fiscal year 2016.
Diagnostics Segment Competitors
We believe we are the third largest supplier of hematology controls in the marketplace behind Beckman Coulter, Inc. and Streck, Inc. For
our other control and calibrator products, the principal competitors are Abbott Diagnostics, Beckman Coulter, Inc., Bio-Rad Laboratories,
Inc., Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc. and Sysmex Corporation. We compete based primarily on product performance, quality, and
price. SeraCare, HyTest Ltd and Thermo Fisher Scientific are additional competitors in the clinical diagnostic manufacturing and reagents
markets.
Diagnostics Segment Manufacturing
The primary raw material for our hematology controls products is whole blood. We purchase human blood from commercial blood banks,
and porcine and bovine blood from nearby meat processing plants. Although the cost of human blood has increased due to the requirement
that it be tested for certain diseases and pathogens prior to use, the higher cost of these materials has not had a material adverse effect on
our business thus far. Other controls are derived from various bodily fluids or cells from difference animal species, which are then
processed in-house to isolate the product of interest or from other bulk reagent suppliers that specialize in certain products. Our other
reagent products are manufactured using a variety of suppliers, with no supplier representing a material portion of our business.
Most of the hematology controls products are shipped based on a preset, recurring schedule. However, the majority of our business in this
segment are large orders shipped based on our customers' needs; we are highly dependent on our customers’ demand and inventory
controls. Consequently, our revenues can vary significantly from quarter to quarter and year to year. There was no significant backlog of
orders for our Diagnostics products as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or as of a comparable date for fiscal 2016.
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Geographic Information
Following is financial information relating to geographic areas (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
External sales
United States
EMEA, excluding U.K.
U.K.
APAC, excluding Greater China
Greater China
Rest of world
Total external sales

$

$

Long-lived assets
United States and Canada
Europe
China
Total long-lived assets

$

$

313,195
125,126
28,401
41,463
39,078
15,740
563,003

$

119,859
14,100
1,165
135,124

$

$

$

2015

275,859
103,060
28,307
38,137
36,199
17,461
499,023

$

116,830
14,423
1,109
132,362

$

$

$

245,217
104,178
32,309
24,015
34,933
11,594
452,246

117,224
11,239
1,286
129,749

Net sales are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer or distributor. Long-lived assets are comprised of land, buildings
and improvements and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation. See the description of risks associated with the Company's foreign
subsidiaries in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Bio-Techne is engaged in continuous ongoing research and development in all of our major product lines. We believe that our future
success depends, to a large extent, on our ability to keep pace with changing technologies and market needs.
In fiscal 2017, aside from the large number of products added through the acquisition of Advanced Cell Diagnostics, Bio-Techne
introduced approximately 1,500 new products. We also expect to significantly expand our portfolio of products through acquisitions as
well as continued product development in our existing businesses. However, there is no assurance that any of the products in the research
and development phase can be successfully completed or, if completed, can be successfully introduced into the marketplace.
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Research and development expense:
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Total research and development expense

$

$

Percent of net sales

35,507
14,424
3,583
53,514
10%

$

$

26,981
14,610
3,596
45,187
9%

2015
$

$

28,201
11,024
1,628
40,853
9%

PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS
Our success depends in part upon our ability to protect our core technologies and intellectual property. To accomplish this, we rely on a
combination of intellectual property rights, including patents, trade secrets and trademarks, as well as customary contractual protections.
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With respect to our Protein Platforms segment and the Biotechnology segment’s genomic in situ hybridization product line, the protection
is primarily through pending patent applications and issued patents. As of June 30, 2017, we had rights to 115 granted patents and
approximately 100 pending patent applications. Patent protection, if granted, generally has a life of 20 years from the date of the patent
application or patent grant. We cannot assure you whether any of our pending patent applications will result in the grant of a patent,
whether the examination process will require us to narrow our claims, and whether our claims will provide adequate coverage of our
competitors' products or services.
In addition to pursuing patents on our products, we also preserve much of our innovation as trade secrets, particularly in the Biotechnology
segment. We have taken steps to protect our intellectual property and proprietary technology by entering into confidentiality agreements
and intellectual property assignment agreements with our employees, consultants, corporate partners and, when needed, our advisors. Such
agreements may not be enforceable or may not provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets or other proprietary information in the
event of unauthorized use or disclosure or other breaches of the agreements, and we may not be able to prevent such unauthorized
disclosure. Monitoring unauthorized disclosure is difficult, and we do not know whether the steps we have taken to prevent such
disclosure are, or will be, adequate.
No assurance can be given that Bio-Techne's products do not infringe upon patents or proprietary rights owned or claimed by others,
particularly for genetically engineered products. Bio-Techne has not conducted a patent infringement study for each of its products. Where
we have been contacted by patent holders with certain intellectual property rights, Bio-Techne has entered into licensing agreements with
patent holders under which it has the exclusive and/or non-exclusive right to sometimes use patented technology as well as the right to
manufacture and sell certain patented products to the research market. In addition, certain of our products are covered by licenses from
third parties to supplement our own patent portfolio.
Bio-Techne has obtained federal trademark registration for certain of its brand and product names. Bio-Techne believes it has common law
trademark rights to certain marks in addition to those which it has registered.
SEASONALITY OF BUSINESS
Bio-Techne believes there is some seasonality as a result of vacation and academic schedules of its worldwide customer base, particularly
for the Biotechnology and Protein Platforms Segments. A majority of Diagnostics segment products are manufactured in large bulk lots
and sold on a schedule set by the customer. Consequently, sales for that segment can be unpredictable, although not necessarily based on
seasonality. As a result, we can experience material and sometimes unpredictable fluctuations in our revenue for this segment.
EMPLOYEES
Through its subsidiaries, Bio-Techne employed approximately 1,800 full-time and part-time employees as of June 30, 2017.
INVESTOR INFORMATION
We are subject to the information requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act). Therefore, we file periodic
reports, proxy statements, and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Such reports, proxy statements, and
other information may be obtained by visiting the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, DC
20549 or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically.
Financial and other information about us is available on our web site (http://www.bio-techne.com/investors). We make available on our
web site copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after filing such
material electronically or otherwise furnishing it to the SEC.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Currently, the names, ages, positions and periods of service of each executive officer of the Company are as follows:
Name
Charles Kummeth
James T. Hippel
Brenda Furlow
J. Fernando Bazan
Kevin Gould
David Eansor
Robert Gavin

Age
57
46
59
57
53
55
49

Position
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Chief Technology Officer
Senior Vice President, Diagnostics
Senior Vice President, Biotechnology
Senior Vice President, Protein Platforms

Officer Since
2013
2014
2014
2013
2016
2014
2014

Set forth below is information regarding the business experience of each executive officer. There are no family relationships among any of
the officers named, nor is there any arrangement or understanding pursuant to which any person was selected as an officer.
Charles Kummeth has been President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since April 1, 2013. Prior to joining the Company, he
served as President of Mass Spectrometry and Chromatography at Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc. from September 2011. He was President
of that company's Laboratory Consumables Division from 2009 to September 2011. Prior to joining Thermo Fisher, Mr. Kummeth served
in various roles at 3M Corporation, most recently as the Vice President of the company's Medical Division from 2006 to 2008.
James T. Hippel has been Chief Financial Officer of the Company since April 1, 2014. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hippel served
as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Mirion Technologies, Inc., a $300 million global company that provides radiation
detection and identification products. Prior to Mirion, Mr. Hippel served as Vice President, Finance at Thermo Fisher Scientific, Inc.,
leading finance operations for its Mass Spectrometry & Chromatography division and its Laboratory Consumables division. In addition,
Mr. Hippel's experience includes nine years of progressive financial leadership at Honeywell International, within its Aerospace Segment.
Mr. Hippel started his career with KPMG LLP.
Brenda Furlow joined the Company as Senior Vice President and General Counsel on August 4, 2014. Most recently, Ms. Furlow was
affiliated with Alphatech Counsel, SC and served as general counsel to emerging growth technology companies. Ms. Furlow was General
Counsel for TomoTherapy, Inc., a global, publicly traded company that manufactured and sold radiation therapy equipment from 2007 to
2011. From 1998 to 2007, Ms. Furlow served as General Counsel for Promega Corporation, a global life sciences company.
Dr. J. Fernando Bazan was appointed Chief Technical Officer when he joined the Company on August 1, 2013. Dr. Bazan is an adjunct
professor at the University of Minnesota School of Medicine and served as Chief Scientific Officer at Neuroscience, Inc., a
neuroimmunology startup from 2010 to 2012. From 2003 through 2010, Dr. Bazan served as Senior Scientist at Genentech, Inc. (Roche).
Kevin Gould became Senior Vice President, Diagnostics Division on January 1, 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Gould was President and CEO of
Cliniqa prior to its acquisition by Bio-Techne in July 2015. Prior to Cliniqa, Mr. Gould held senior level positions in other diagnostic
product business, including Vice President, SeraCare BBI Diagnostics business unit of SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.; and Vice President,
Sales & Marketing for Medical Analysis Systems Inc., now part of Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc.
David Eansor has served as Senior Vice President, Biotechnology Division since April, 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Eansor was Senior Vice
President, Novus Biologicals, since the Company completed its acquisition of Novus on July 2, 2014. From January 2013 until the date of
the acquisition, Mr. Eansor was the Senior Vice President of Corporate Development of Novus Biologicals. Prior to joining Novus, Mr.
Eansor was the President of the Bioscience Division of Thermo Fisher Scientific. Mr. Eansor was promoted to Division President in early
2010 after 5 years as President of Thermo Fisher's Life Science Research business.
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Robert Gavin was appointed Senior Vice President of the Protein Platforms Division in December 2014. Mr. Gavin had previously been
Vice President of Product Development at ProteinSimple, which was acquired by the Company in July, 2014. Prior to joining
ProteinSimple in 2008, Mr. Gavin served as Director of Engineering at MDS Analytical Technologies (previously Molecular Devices,
Inc.). Prior to Molecular Devices, Mr. Gavin managed a team of engineers at Affymax Research Institute.
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements, which are based on the Company's current assumptions and expectations. The principal
forward-looking statements in this report include the Company's expectations regarding product releases and strategy, future financial
results, acquisition activity, the competitive environment, currency fluctuation and exchange rates, capital expenditures, the performance
of the Company's investments, future dividend declarations, the construction and lease of certain facilities, the adequacy of owned and
leased property for future operations, anticipated financial results and sufficiency of capital resources to meet the Company's foreseeable
future cash and working capital requirements.
All such forward-looking statements are intended to enjoy the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended. Although the Company believes there is a reasonable basis for the
forward-looking statements, the Company's actual results could be materially different. The most important factors which could cause the
Company's actual results to differ from forward-looking statements are set forth in the Company's description of risk factors in Item 1A to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and the Company does not undertake any obligation to update any
forward-looking statements.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere that are forward-looking involve risks and uncertainties which may affect
the Company's actual results of operations. Certain of these risks and uncertainties which have affected and, in the future, could affect the
Company's actual results are discussed below. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements
made due to new information or future events. Investors are cautioned not to place undue emphasis on these statements.
The following risk factors should be read carefully in connection with evaluation of the Company's business and any forward-looking
statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere. See the section entitled “forward-looking statements” set forth
above. Any of the following risks or others discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or the Company's other SEC filings could
materially adversely affect the Company's business, operating results and financial condition.
It may be difficult for us to implement our strategies for maintaining organic growth.
Some of the markets in which we compete are experiencing slower growth and we face significant competition across many of our
product lines. Competitors include companies ranging from start-up companies, which may be able to more quickly respond to
customers' needs, to large multinational companies, which may have greater financial, marketing, operational, and research and
development resources than the Company. In addition, consolidation trends in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology and diagnostics
industries have served to create fewer customer accounts and to concentrate purchasing decisions for some customers, resulting in
increased pricing pressure on the Company. Moreover, customers may believe that consolidated businesses are better able to compete
as sole source vendors, and therefore prefer to purchase from such businesses. The entry into the market by manufacturers in China,
India and other low-cost manufacturing locations is also creating increased pricing and competitive pressures, particularly in developing
markets. Failure to anticipate and respond to competitors' actions may impact the Company's future sales and earnings.
To address this issue, we are pursuing a number of strategies to improve our internal growth, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

strengthening our presence in selected geographic markets;
allocating research and development funding to products with higher growth prospects;
developing new applications for our technologies;
continuing key opinion leader initiatives;
finding new markets for our products; and
continuing the development of commercial tools and infrastructure to increase and support cross-selling opportunities of products
and services to take advantage of our depth in product offerings.

We may not be able to successfully implement these strategies, and these strategies may not result in the expected growth of our
business.
Our acquisition growth strategy pose financial, management and other risks and challenges.
We routinely explore acquiring other businesses and assets, and have completed nine acquisitions and several investments in the last
three years. However, we may be unable to identify or complete promising acquisitions for many reasons, including competition among
buyers, the high valuations of businesses in our industry, the need for regulatory and other approvals, and availability of capital. When
we do identify and consummate acquisitions, we may face financial, managerial and operational challenges, including diversion of
management attention, difficulty with integrating acquired businesses, integration of different corporate cultures, increased expenses,
assumption of unknown liabilities, indemnities, potential disputes with the sellers, and the need to evaluate the financial systems of and
establish internal controls for acquired entities. There can be no assurance that we will engage in any additional acquisitions or that we
will be able to do so on terms that will result in any expected benefits. In addition, acquisitions financed with borrowings could make us
more vulnerable to business downturns and could negatively affect our earnings due to higher leverage and interest expense.
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We may be required to record a significant charge to earnings if our goodwill and other amortizable intangible assets, or other
investments become impaired.
We are required under generally accepted accounting principles to test goodwill for impairment at least annually and to review our
goodwill, amortizable intangible assets, and other assets acquired through merger and acquisition activity, for impairment when events
or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that could lead to impairment of goodwill,
amortizable intangible assets, and other assets acquired via acquisitions include significant adverse changes in the business climate and
actual or projected operating results (affecting our company as a whole or affecting any particular segment) and declines in the financial
condition of our business. We may be required in the future to record additional charges to earnings if our goodwill, amortizable
intangible assets or other investments become impaired. Any such charge would adversely impact our financial results.
In addition, the Company's expansion strategies include collaborations and investments in joint ventures and companies developing new
products related to the Company's business. These strategies carry risks that objectives will not be achieved and future earnings will be
adversely affected. For example, the Company has an approximate 13% equity investment in publicly traded ChemoCentryx, Inc.
(Nasdaq: CCXI) that is valued at $59.6 million as of June 30, 2017. The ownership of CCXI shares is very concentrated, the share price
is highly volatile and there is limited trading of the shares. In fiscal 2017, we also invested and hold a minority interest in privately-held
Astute Medical, Inc., a diagnostics company developing new diagnostics tests relating to kidney injury. While their initial product is on
the market, its adoption and success is highly uncertain, and our initial investment may be significantly impaired if it does not have
market success. Any diminution in the value of these investments could result in future dilution of our investments or materially impact
our financial statements.
Significant developments stemming from the recent U.S. elections and the U.K.’s referendum on membership in the EU could have
an adverse effect on us.
The current Congress is considering significant changes to, or replacement or elimination of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act, and government negotiation/regulation of drug prices paid by government programs. The new U.S. administration has called for
substantial changes to trade agreements and has raised the possibility of imposing significant increases on tariffs on goods imported
into the United States, particularly from China and Mexico. These and other potential shifts in law, regulation and policy could
adversely affect operating results and our business.
In a referendum vote held on June 23, 2016, the United Kingdom (UK) voted to leave the European Union (EU). Subsequently, on
March 29, 2017, the UK invoked Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty to formally begin the withdrawal process. The impact of this action
has caused and may continue to cause global economic uncertainty and currency exchange rate fluctuations. Although it is unknown
what the terms of the UK’s future relationship with the EU will be, it is possible that there will be disruption to the UK and EU
economies, as well as greater restrictions on imports and exports between the UK and the EU and increased regulatory and tax
complexities. Any of these factors could adversely affect customer demand, our relationships with customers and suppliers, and our
business and financial results, particularly since our European headquarters and shipping facilities are currently located in the UK.
Additionally, attracting and retaining qualified employees who are citizens of EU countries to our UK facilities may be more difficult
given the uncertainties resulting from the UK withdrawal.
We are subject to financial, operating, legal and compliance risk associated with global operations.
We engage in business globally, with approximately 31% of our sales revenue in fiscal 2017 coming from outside the U.S. In addition,
one of our strategies is to expand geographically, particularly in China and in developing countries, both through distribution and
through direct operations. This subjects us to a number of risks, including international economic, political, and labor conditions;
currency fluctuations; tax laws (including U.S. taxes on foreign subsidiaries); increased financial accounting and reporting burdens and
complexities; unexpected changes in, or impositions of, legislative or regulatory requirements; failure of laws to protect intellectual
property rights adequately; inadequate local infrastructure and difficulties in managing and staffing international operations; delays
resulting from difficulty in obtaining export licenses for certain technology; tariffs, quotas and other trade barriers and restrictions;
transportation delays; operating in locations with a higher incidence of corruption and fraudulent business practices; and other factors
beyond our control, including terrorism, war, natural disasters, climate change and diseases.
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The application of laws and regulations implicating global transactions is often unclear and may at times conflict. Compliance with
these laws and regulations may involve significant costs or require changes in our business practices that result in reduced revenue and
profitability. Non-compliance could also result in fines, damages, criminal sanctions, prohibited business conduct, and damage to our
reputation. We incur additional legal compliance costs associated with our global operations and could become subject to legal penalties
in foreign countries if it does not comply with local laws and regulations, which may be substantially different from those in the U.S.
We continue to expand our operations in countries with developing economies, where it may be common to engage in business
practices that are prohibited by U.S. regulations applicable to the Company, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Although we
implement policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with these laws, there can be no assurance that all of our employees,
contractors, and agents, as well as those companies to which we outsource certain aspects of our business operations, including those
based in foreign countries where practices which violate such U.S. laws may be customary, will comply with our internal policies. Any
such non-compliance, even if prohibited by our internal policies, could have an adverse effect on our business and result in significant
fines or penalties.
Changes in economic conditions for our customers could negatively impact our revenues and earnings.
Our biotechnology and protein platforms products are sold primarily to research scientists at pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies and at university and government research institutions. Research and development spending by our customers and the
availability of government research funding can fluctuate due to changes in available resources, mergers of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, spending priorities, general economic conditions and institutional and governmental budgetary policies. Our
diagnostics segment products are intended primarily for the medical diagnostics market, which relies largely on government healthcarerelated policies and funding. Changes in government reimbursement for certain diagnostic tests or reductions in overall healthcare
spending could negatively impact our customers and, correspondingly, our sales to them. The U.S. and global economies recently
experienced a period of economic downturn and have been slow to recover in some parts of the world. In Japan, government investment
in biotechnology research remains weak. Such downturns, and other reductions or delays in governmental funding, could cause
customers to delay or forego purchases of our products. We carry essentially no backlog of orders and changes in the level of orders
received and filled daily can cause fluctuations in quarterly revenues and earnings.
We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting which could, if not remediated, harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations.
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting, as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act. As disclosed in Item 9A, at the beginning of fiscal 2017 management identified
material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting involving the effectiveness of the information and communication,
and monitoring processes resulting in a lack of effective controls over general information technology controls (GITC) for certain
applications. A material weakness is defined as a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. As a result of these material weaknesses, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was not effective based on criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control-An Integrated Framework (2013 Framework). We have developed and implemented a remediation plan
designed to address these material weaknesses, but have not yet had sufficient time to fully and effective implement and test the
additional controls established in that plan. Any failure to complete the implementation of effective internal controls could harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. Inadequate internal controls could also cause investors to lose
confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our common stock, and may
require us to incur additional costs to improve our internal control system.
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Our success will be dependent on recruiting and retaining highly qualified personnel and creating a new culture that includes the
employees joining through acquisition.
Recruiting and retaining qualified scientific, production, sales and marketing, and management personnel are critical to our success.
Our anticipated growth and its expected expansion into areas and activities requiring additional expertise will require the addition of
new personnel and the development of additional expertise by existing personnel. We also operate in several geographic locations
where competition for talent is strong, making employee retention particularly challenging in those locations. Our growth by acquisition
also creates challenges in retaining employees. As we integrate past and future acquisitions and evolve our corporate culture to
incorporate the new workforces, some employees may not find such integration or cultural changes appealing. The failure to attract and
retain such personnel could adversely affect our business.
Cyber security risks and the failure to maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our computer hardware, software,
and Internet applications and related tools and functions could result in damage to our reputation and/or subject us to costs, fines,
or lawsuits.
The integrity and protection of our own data, and that of our customers and employees, is critical to our business. The regulatory
environment governing information, security and privacy laws is increasingly demanding and continues to evolve. Maintaining
compliance with applicable security and privacy regulations may increase our operating costs and/or adversely impact our ability to
market our products and services to customers. Although our computer and communications hardware is protected through physical and
software safeguards, it is still vulnerable to fire, storm, flood, power loss, earthquakes, telecommunications failures, physical or
software break-ins, software viruses, and similar events. These events could lead to the unauthorized access, disclosure and use of nonpublic information. The techniques used by criminal elements to attack computer systems are sophisticated, change frequently and may
originate from less regulated and remote areas of the world. As a result, we may not be able to address these techniques proactively or
implement adequate preventative measures. If our computer systems are compromised, we could be subject to fines, damages, litigation,
and enforcement actions, customers could curtail or cease using its applications, and we could lose trade secrets, the occurrence of
which could harm our business.
We are dependent on maintaining our intellectual property rights.
Our success depends in part on our ability to protect and maintain our intellectual property, including trade secrets. If we fail to protect
our intellectual property, third parties may be able to compete more effectively against us, we may lose our technological or
competitive advantage, or we may incur substantial litigation costs in our attempts to recover or restrict use of our intellectual property.
We attempt to protect trade secrets in part through confidentiality agreements, but those agreements can be breached, and if they are,
there may not be an adequate remedy. If trade secrets become publicly known, we could lose our competitive position.
We also attempt to protect and maintain intellectual property through the patent process. As of June 30, 2017, we owned or exclusively
licensed 115 granted U.S. patents and approximately 100 pending patent applications. We cannot be confident that any of our currently
pending or future patent applications will result in granted patents, and we cannot predict how long it will take for such patents to be
granted. It is possible that, if patents are granted to us, others will design around our patented technologies. Further, other parties may
challenge any patents granted to us and courts or regulatory agencies may hold our patents to be invalid or unenforceable. We may not
be successful in defending challenges made against our patents and patent applications. Any successful third-party challenge to our
patents could result in the unenforceability or invalidity of such patents. Our ability to establish or maintain a technological or
competitive advantage over our competitors may be diminished because of these uncertainties. To the extent our intellectual property
offers inadequate protection, or is found to be invalid or unenforceable, we would be exposed to a greater risk of direct competition. If
our intellectual property does not provide adequate coverage of our competitors' products, our competitive position could be adversely
affected, as could our business. Both the patent application process and the process of managing patent disputes can be time consuming
and expensive.
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We may be involved in disputes to determine the scope, coverage and validity of others' proprietary rights, or to defend against
third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, any of which could be time-intensive and costly and may adversely
impact our business.
Our success depends in part on its ability to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of others, and to obtain licenses where
necessary or appropriate. We have obtained and continue to negotiate licenses to produce a number of products claimed to be owned by
others. Since we have not conducted a patent infringement study for each of our products, it is possible that some of our products may
unintentionally infringe patents of third parties.
We have been and may in the future be sued by third parties alleging that we are infringing their intellectual property rights. These
lawsuits are expensive, take significant time, and divert management's focus from other business concerns. If we are found to be
infringing the intellectual property of others, we could be required to cease certain activities, alter our products or processes or pay
licensing fees. This would cause unexpected costs and delays which may have a material adverse effect on us. If we are unable to obtain
a required license on acceptable terms, or unable to design around any third party patent, we may be unable to sell some of our products
and services, which could result in reduced revenue. In addition, if we do not prevail, a court may find damages or award other remedies
in favor of the opposing party in any of these suits, which may adversely affect our earnings.
The Company relies heavily on internal manufacturing and related operations to produce, package and distribute its products
which, if disrupted, could materially impair our business operations.
The Company's internal quality control, packaging and distribution operations support the majority of the Company's sales. Since
certain Company products must comply with Food and Drug Administration Quality System Regulations and because in all instances,
the Company creates value for its customers through the development of high-quality products, any significant decline in quality or
disruption of operations for any reason, particularly at the Minneapolis facility, could adversely affect sales and customer relationships,
and therefore adversely affect the business. While the Company has taken certain steps to manage these operational risks, and while
insurance coverage may reimburse, in whole or in part, for losses related to such disruptions, the Company's future sales growth and
earnings may be adversely affected by perceived disruption risks or actual disruptions.
We have entered into and drawn on a revolving credit facility. The burden of this additional debt could adversely affect us, make
us more vulnerable to adverse economic or industry conditions, and prevent us from funding our expansion strategy.
In connection with the acquisition of Advanced Cell Diagnostics on August 1, 2016, we modified our revolving credit facility,
governed by a Credit Agreement on July 28, 2016. The Credit Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility of $400 million.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a variable rate. As of August 30, 2017, the Company had drawn $368.5 million
under the Credit Agreement.
The terms of the Credit Agreement and the burden of the indebtedness incurred thereunder could have negative consequences for us,
such as:
•
•
•

limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund our working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements,
expansion strategy, or other needs;
increasing our vulnerability to, and reducing our flexibility in planning for, adverse changes in economic, industry and
competitive conditions; and
increasing our vulnerability to increases in interest rates.

The Credit Agreement also contains negative covenants that limit our ability to engage in specified types of transactions. These
covenants limit our ability to, among other things, sell, lease or transfer any properties or assets, with certain exceptions; and enter into
certain merger, consolidation or other reorganization transactions, with certain exceptions.
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A breach of any of these covenants could result in an event of default under our credit facility. Upon the occurrence of an event of
default, the lender could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under such facility to be immediately due and payable and terminate
all commitments to extend further credit. In addition, the Company would be subject to additional restrictions if an event of default
exists under the Credit Agreement, such as a prohibition on the payment of cash dividends.
Our share price will fluctuate.
Over the last several years, stock markets in general and our common stock in particular have experienced significant price and volume
volatility. Both the market price and the daily trading volume of our common stock may continue to be subject to significant
fluctuations due not only to general stock market conditions but also to a change in sentiment in the market regarding our operations and
business prospects. In addition to the risk factors discussed above, the price and volume volatility of our common stock may be affected
by:
•
•
•
•
•

operating results that vary from our financial guidance or the expectations of securities analysts and investors;
the financial performance of the major end markets that we target;
the operating and securities price performance of companies that investors consider to be comparable to us;
announcements of strategic developments, acquisitions and other material events by us or our competitors; and
changes in global financial markets and global economies and general market conditions, such as interest or foreign exchange
rates, commodity and equity prices and the value of financial assets.

Dividends on our common stock could be reduced or eliminated in the future.
For the past 9 years, our Board has consistently declared quarterly dividends of $0.25 to $0.32 cents per share. In the future, our Board
may determine to reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend in order to fund investments for growth, repurchase shares or
conserve capital resources.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
There are no unresolved staff comments as of the date of this report.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Company owns the facilities that its headquarters and R&D Systems subsidiary occupy in Minneapolis, Minnesota. The Minneapolis
facilities are utilized by both the Company's Biotechnology and Diagnostics segments.
The Minneapolis complex includes approximately 800,000 square feet of space in several adjoining buildings. Bio-Techne uses
approximately 625,000 square feet of the complex for administrative, research, manufacturing, shipping and warehousing activities. The
Company is currently leasing or plans to lease the remaining space in the complex as retail and office space.
The Company owns the 17,000 square foot facility that its Bio-Techne Europe subsidiary occupies in Abingdon, England. This facility is
utilized by the Company's Biotechnology and Protein Platforms segments.
The Company leases the following material facilities, all of which are utilized by the Company's Biotechnology segment with the
exception of the locations used by the Company's ProteinSimple and CyVek sites, which support the Protein Platforms segment and the
Bionostics and Cliniqa subsidiaries (Diagnostics segment). Certain locations are not named because they were not significant individually
or in the aggregate as of the date of this report.
Subsidiary
Bio-Techne Europe
Bio-Techne China
Boston Biochem
Tocris
PrimeGene
Bionostics
Novus Biologicals
ProteinSimple
ProteinSimple Canada
CyVek
Cliniqa
Advanced Cell Diagnostics

Location

Type

Langley, United Kingdom
Shanghai and Beijing, China
Cambridge, Massachusetts
Bristol, United Kingdom
Shanghai, China
Devens, Massachusetts
Littleton, Colorado
San Jose, California
Ottawa and Toronto, Canada
Wallingford, Connecticut
San Marcos, California
Newark, California

Warehouse
Office/warehouse
Office/lab
Office/manufacturing/lab/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/lab
Office/manufacturing
Office/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/warehouse
Office/manufacturing/warehouse

Square Feet
14,300
10,700
7,400
30,000
20,600
48,000
22,500
167,000
13,900
17,500
87,200
35,100

The Company is currently in the process of transitioning into new lease space for its Cliniqa operations. The Company believes the owned
and leased properties are adequate to meet its occupancy needs in the foreseeable future.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
As of August 30, 2017, the Company is not a party to any legal proceedings that, individually or in the aggregate, are reasonably expected
to have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Price of Common Stock
The Company's common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol "TECH." The following table sets forth for
the periods indicated the high and low sales price per share for the Company's common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select
Market.
Fiscal 2017 Price
High
Low
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

117.42
112.20
108.58
119.98

$

103.99
98.92
95.68
98.22

Fiscal 2016 Price
High
Low
$

114.56
96.81
96.83
114.62

$

87.49
83.90
79.95
91.45

Holders of Common Stock and Dividends Paid
As of August 30, 2017, there were over 29,000 beneficial shareholders of the Company's common stock and over 165 shareholders of
record. The Company paid quarterly cash dividends totaling $47.7 million, $47.6 million and $47.1 million in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The Board of Directors periodically considers the payment of cash dividends, and there is no guarantee that the Company
will pay comparable cash dividends, or any cash dividends, in the future. The Company entered into a revolving line of credit in July 2016,
which would prohibit payment of dividends to Company shareholders in the event of a default thereunder. The Credit Agreement that
governs the revolving line of credit contains customary events of default.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
There was no share repurchase activity by the Company in fiscal 2017. The maximum approximate dollar value of shares that may yet be
purchased under the Company's existing stock repurchase plan is approximately $125 million. The plan does not have an expiration date.
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Stock Performance Graph
The following chart compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's common stock with the S&P Midcap 400 Index
and the S&P 400 Biotechnology Index. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on the last trading day before July 1, 2012 in the
Company's common stock and in each of the foregoing indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
2017(1)

Income and Share Data:
Net sales
Operating income
Earnings before income taxes (5)
Net earnings
Diluted earnings per share
Average common and common equivalent shares diluted (in thousands)

$

Employees

$

2017
$

$

95,835
199,744
1,129,581
879,280

2017

$

143,870
16,898
1.28

$

110,921
208,515
1,063,360
846,935

$

1,560

139,359
19,905
1.27
2015
1,356

357,763
159,750
161,392
110,948
3.00

2013
$

310,575
158,469
160,662
112,561
3.05

37,005

36,900

2014

$

2015

2016

1,789

$

2015

2016

143,811
15,179
1.28

452,246
147,023
154,162
107,735
2.89

2014(4)

37,231

2016

157,714
212,503
1,558,219
949,627

Cash Flow Data:

499,023
150,593
147,481
104,476
2.80

2015(3)

37,326

2017

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term available-forsale investments
Working capital
Total assets
Total shareholders' equity

Employee Data as of June 30:

$

37,500

Balance Sheet Data as of June 30:

Net cash provided by operating activities
Capital expenditures
Cash dividends declared per share

563,003
120,584
111,961
76,086
2.03

2016(2)

2013

363,354
443,022
862,491
795,265

$

2014
$

332,937
377,432
778,098
737,541
2013

136,762
13,821
1.23
2014

$

123,562
22,454
1.18
2013

967

789

(1) The Company acquired Space on July 1, 2016, and Advanced Cell Diagnostics on August 1, 2016.
(2) The Company acquired Cliniqa on July 8, 2015, and Zephyrus on March 21, 2016.
(3) The Company acquired Novus Biologicals on July 2, 2014, ProteinSimple on July 31, 2014, and CyVek on November 3, 2014.
(4) The Company acquired Bionostics on July 22, 2013, and PrimeGene on April 30, 2014.
(5) Earnings before income taxes included acquisition related expenses related to amortization of intangibles, costs recognized on sale of
acquired inventories and professional fees associated with acquisition activity, as follows: 2017 - $73.2 million; 2016 - $37.6 million;
2015 - $37.6 million; 2014 - $20.0 million; 2013 - $10.2 million.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) provides information that we believe is useful in understanding our
operating results, cash flows and financial condition. We provide quantitative information about the material sales drivers including the
effect of acquisitions and changes in foreign currency at the corporate and segment level. We also provide quantitative information about
discrete tax items and other significant factors we believe are useful for understanding our results. The MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial information and related notes included in this Form 10-K. This discussion contains various
“Non-GAAP Financial Measures” and also contains various “Forward-Looking Statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We refer readers to the statements entitled “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” located at the end of this
MD&A and “Forward-Looking Information and Cautionary Statements” and “Risk Factors” within Items 1 and 1A of this Form 10-K.
OVERVIEW
Bio-Techne develops, manufactures and sells biotechnology products and clinical diagnostic controls worldwide. With our deep product
portfolio and application expertise, Bio-Techne is a leader in providing specialized proteins, including cytokines and growth factors, and
related immunoassays, small molecules and other reagents to the research, diagnostics and clinical controls markets.
Bio-Techne operates worldwide with three reportable business segments, Biotechnology, Protein Platforms, and Diagnostics, all of which
service the life science and diagnostics markets. The Biotechnology reporting segment provides proteins, antibodies, immunoassays, flow
cytometry products, intracellular signaling products, and biologically active chemical compounds used in biological research. The Protein
Platforms reporting segment develops and commercializes proprietary systems and consumables for protein analysis. The Diagnostics
reporting segment reporting segment provides a range of controls and calibrators used with diagnostic equipment and as proficiency
testing tools, as well as other reagents incorporated into diagnostic kits.
OVERALL RESULTS
For fiscal 2017, consolidated net sales increased 13% as compared to fiscal 2016. After adjusting for the impacts of the Space and ACD
acquisitions in fiscal 2016, as well as foreign currency fluctuations, organic sales for the year increased 6% with currency translation
having a negative impact of 1% and acquisitions contributing 8%. The organic growth was broad-based, with the Company achieving
growth in all three of its reporting segments. A strong BioPharma end-market in the US and Europe and additional market demand for
Protein Platforms instruments were the biggest contributing factors to organic growth.
Consolidated GAAP net earnings decreased 27% for fiscal 2017 as compared to fiscal 2016. After adjusting for acquisition related costs,
stock based compensation, and certain income tax items in both years, adjusted net earnings increased 4% in fiscal 2017 as compared to
fiscal 2016. Adjusted earnings growth was driven by increased revenue partially offset by negative mix and a negative impact from
foreign currency.
For fiscal 2016, consolidated net sales increased 10% as compared to fiscal 2015. After adjusting for the impact of the Cliniqa acquisition
in fiscal 2016, as well as foreign currency fluctuations, organic sales for the year increased 6% with currency translation having a negative
impact of 2% and acquisitions contributing 6%. The organic growth was broad-based, with the Company achieving growth in all three of
its segments reporting segments. A strong bio-pharma end-market in the US and significant government funding of life science research in
China and additional market demand for Protein Platform instruments were the biggest contributing factors impacting organic growth.
Consolidated GAAP net earnings decreased 3% for fiscal 2016 as compared to fiscal 2015. After adjusting for acquisition related costs,
stock based compensation, and certain income tax items in both years, adjusted net earnings increased 3% in fiscal 2016 as compared to
fiscal 2015. Adjusted earnings growth was driven by increased revenue partially offset by negative mix and a negative impact from
foreign currency.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Sales
Consolidated organic net sales exclude the impact of net sales contributed by companies acquired during the fiscal year and the effect of
the change from the prior year in exchange rates used to convert sales in foreign currencies (primarily the euro, British pound sterling, and
Chinese yuan) into U.S. dollars.
Consolidated net sales growth was as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Organic sales growth
Acquisitions sales growth
Impact of foreign currency fluctuations
Consolidated net sales growth

6%
8%
(1)%
13%

2015

6%
6%
(2)%
10%

4%
25%
(2)%
26%

Consolidated net sales by reportable segment were as follows (in thousands):

2017
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Intersegment
Consolidated net sales

$

$

Year Ended June 30,
2016

364,504 $
91,464
107,139
(104)
563,003 $

317,340 $
77,324
104,484
(125)
499,023 $

2015
308,437
66,249
77,866
(306)
452,246

In fiscal 2017, Biotechnology segment net sales increased 15% compared to fiscal 2016. Organic growth for the segment was 4% for the
fiscal year, with acquisitions contributing 13% and foreign currency translation having an unfavorable impact of 2%. Antibody and assay
product categories drove growth. The growth in antibodies was led by double-digit growth in the Novus brand. The growth in assays was
by Luminex-based products the Company makes and sells and royalties received from Luminex assay suppliers who use the Company’s
content in the production of their assays.
In fiscal 2017, the Protein Platforms segment net sales increased 18% compared to fiscal 2016. Organic growth for the segment was 19%
with acquisitions contributing 1% and foreign currency translation having an unfavorable impact of 2%. Growth was broad-based and led
by additional market demand for Simple Western (Wes) instruments and consumables, and the Simple Plex (Ella) and Biologics (Maurice)
product lines.
In fiscal 2017, Diagnostics segment net sales increased 3% compared to fiscal 2016. All results for fiscal 2017 are organic. Timing of
OEM orders had a negative impact on fiscal 2017 results. Mid-single digit sales growth in blood and glucose-based controls was partially
offset by the timing of OEM shipments from the diagnostic assay and reagent product lines.
In fiscal 2016, Biotechnology segment net sales increased 3% compared to fiscal 2015. Organic growth for the segment was 6% for the
fiscal year, with foreign currency translation having an unfavorable impact of 3%. We grew in all major geographies, most notably in
China and from BioPharma customers in the U.S. and Europe. Japan was the only notable exception, where demand was weak due to
delayed funding from Japanese government agencies.
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In fiscal 2016, the Protein Platforms segment net sales increased 17% compared to fiscal 2015. Organic growth for the segment was 14%
with acquisitions contributing 5% and foreign currency translation having an unfavorable impact of 2%. Additional market demand for
Simple Western instruments and consumables, a new instrument product launch in the Biologics (Maurice) product line, and Simple Plex
(Ella) instrument and consumable sales, the Elisa-multiplexing solution that was the key technology acquired as part of the CyVek
acquisition in fiscal 2015, all drove growth in this segment. There was no revenue from the Zephyrus acquisition in fiscal 2016.
In fiscal 2016, Diagnostics segment net sales increased 34% compared to fiscal 2015. Included in fiscal 2016 Diagnostics segment net
sales was $26.6 million generated by the acquisition of Cliniqa in July 2015, contributing essentially all of the growth. Solid organic
growth in the hematology controls product line was offset by customer delayed projects in the glucose controls product line due to
reimbursement pricing pressures in that particular market segment.
Gross Margins
Consolidated gross margins were 67%, 67% and 68% in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Consolidated gross margins were
negatively impacted as a result of purchase accounting related to inventory and intangible assets acquired during fiscal 2017, 2016, 2015
and prior years. Under purchase accounting, inventory is valued at fair value less expected selling and marketing costs, resulting in
reduced margins in future periods as the inventory is sold. Excluding the impact of acquired inventory sold and amortization of
intangibles, adjusted gross margins were 71%, 71% and 72% in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
A reconciliation of the reported consolidated gross margin percentages, adjusted for acquired inventory sold and intangible amortization
included in cost of sales, is as follows:

2017
Consolidated gross margin percentage
Identified adjustments:
Costs recognized upon sale of acquired inventory
Amortization of intangibles
Adjusted gross margin percentage

Year Ended June 30,
2016

2015

66.5%

67.5%

67.9%

0.6%
4.1%
71.2%

1.1%
2.2%
70.8%

1.5%
2.2%
71.6%

Fluctuations in adjusted gross margins, as a percentage of net sales, have primarily resulted from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and changes in product mix. In fiscal 2017, the biggest impact to gross margin as compared to fiscal 2016, was the change in product
mix associated with the acquisition of ACD. In fiscal 2016, the biggest impact to gross margin, as compared to fiscal 2015, was the change
in product mix associated with the acquisition of Cliniqa. In fiscal 2015, the biggest impact to gross margin, as compared to fiscal 2014,
was the change in product mix associated with the acquisitions of Novus, ProteinSimple, and CyVek. We expect that, in the future, gross
margins will continue to be impacted by the mix of our portfolio growing at different rates as well as future acquisitions.
Management uses adjusted operating results to monitor and evaluate performance of the Company’s three business segments. Since these
results are used for this purpose, they are also considered to be prepared in accordance with GAAP. Segment gross margins, as a
percentage of net sales, were as follows:

2017
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Consolidated adjusted gross margin percentage

Year Ended June 30,
2016
80.5%
67.6%
42.3%
71.2%

80.0%
67.8%
44.8%
70.8%

2015
79.8%
66.9%
42.7%
71.6%

The Biotechnology segment and the Protein Platforms segment gross margin percentage improvements for fiscal 2017 and 2016 as
compared to fiscal 2015 was primarily attributable to higher volume leverage and operational productivity.
The Diagnostics segment gross margin percentage for fiscal 2017 was negatively impacted by lower volume leverage and margin mix of
product sales. Increased operational productivity in fiscal 2016 increased margins compared to fiscal 2015
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $59.6 million (42%) and $21.5 million (18%) in fiscal 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The increase in fiscal 2017 was driven by additional expenses associated with the Space, ACD and Zephyrus acquisitions including $21.1
million of selling, general and administrative expenses, a $3.2 million increase in acquisition intangible amortization, a $18.4 million
change in the fair value of contingent consideration and a $4.3 million increase in other acquisition related costs. The remaining increase
in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2017 was primarily due to additional investments in global commercial resources,
administrative infrastructure, including increased stock compensation, and annual wage, salary and benefit increases.
The increase in fiscal 2016 was primarily from $5.4 million added as a result of the Cliniqa acquisition, including $3.4 million of
increased costs associated with stock based compensation. The remaining increase in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal
2016 included investments made in global commercial resources, administrative infrastructure, stock compensation, and annual wage,
salary and benefits increases.
Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses were composed of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Total segment expenses
Amortization of intangibles
Acquisition related expenses
Stock based compensation
Corporate selling, general and administrative expenses

$

$

82,801
37,735
13,207
133,743
21,328
25,789
14,631
4,952
200,443

$

$

58,414
34,186
12,781
105,381
18,300
2,761
9,430
5,007
140,879

2015
$

$

53,033
28,806
7,470
89,309
16,560
4,519
5,957
3,056
119,401

Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses increased $8.3 million (18%) and $4.3 million (11%) in fiscal 2017 and 2016, respectively, as
compared to prior year periods. Included in research and development expense in fiscal 2017 and 2016 was $8.6 million and $1.9 million
of expenses from companies acquired during fiscal 2017 and 2016, respectively. The remaining increase in research and development
expenses for fiscal 2016 was primarily related to the development of new products associated with our Protein Platforms segment.
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics

$

$
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35,507
14,424
3,583
53,514

$

$

26,981
14,610
3,596
45,187

2015
$

$

28,001
11,024
1,828
40,853

Net Interest Income / (Expense)
Net interest income/(expense) for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $(7.1) million, $(1.5) million, and $(0.9) million respectively. Net
interest expense in fiscal 2017 increased due to the new revolving credit facility entered into in July 2016 to help fund the acquisition of
ACD. Net interest expense in fiscal 2016 and 2015 resulted from the opening of a debt facility in July 2014 to partially fund the
acquisitions of Novus Biologicals, ProteinSimple, CyVek, and Cliniqa.
Other Non-Operating Expense, Net
Other non-operating expense, net, consists of foreign currency transaction gains and losses, rental income, building expenses related to
rental property and the Company's share of gains and losses from equity method investees as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Foreign currency (losses) gains
Rental income
Real estate taxes, depreciation and utilities
Net gain (loss) from equity method investees
Miscellaneous (expense) income
Other non-operating income (expense), net

(636) $
947
(1,818)
(59)
(1,566) $

$

$

2015

(1,080) $
950
(1,762)
279
(1,613) $

372
1,014
(1,696)
8,300
59
8,049

Other non-operating expenses, net, for the year ended June 30, 2015 included a non-taxable gain of $8.3 million on the Company's
previous investment in CyVek discussed above.
Income Taxes
Income taxes for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 were at effective rates of 32.0%, 29.2%, and 30.1%, respectively, of consolidated earnings
before income taxes. The effective rate for June 30, 2017 increased by 2.8% compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily due to
unfavorable discrete events in fiscal 2017 related to the revaluation of contingent consideration, which is not a tax deductible expense.
The Company recognized net expense related to discrete tax items of $3.8 million in fiscal 2017, including $4.5 million in expense related
to the revaluation of contingent consideration which is not a tax deductible expense. There were no material discrete tax items in fiscal
2016 or 2015.
U.S. federal taxes have been reduced by the manufacturer's deduction provided for under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and the
U.S. federal credit for research and development. Foreign income taxes have been provided at rates which approximate the tax rates in the
countries in which the Company has operations, exclusive of permanent items.
Net Earnings
Non-GAAP adjusted consolidated net earnings are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Net earnings
Identified adjustments:
Costs recognized upon sale of acquired inventory
Amortization of intangibles
Acquisition related expenses
Stock based compensation
Gain on investment in CyVek
Tax impact of above adjustments
Tax impact of discrete tax items and other foreign adjustments
Non-GAAP adjusted net earnings
Non-GAAP adjusted net earnings growth

$

76,086

$

3,037
44,393
25,789
14,631
(20,483)
(3,920)
139,533
4%
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$

104,476

$

5,431
29,395
2,761
9,430
(14,551)
(2,638)
134,304
3%

2015
$

107,735
6,952
26,169
4,519
5,957
(8,300)
(13,645)

$

1,411
130,798
2%

Depending on the nature of discrete tax items, our reported tax rate may not be consistent on a period to period basis. The Company
independently calculates a non-GAAP adjusted tax rate considering the impact of discrete items and jurisdictional mix of the identified
non-GAAP adjustments. The following table summarizes the reported GAAP tax rate and the effective Non-GAAP adjusted tax rate for
the periods ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015.

2017
Reported GAAP tax rate
Tax rate impact of:
Identified non-GAAP adjustments
Discrete tax items and other foreign adjustments
Non-GAAP adjusted tax rate

Year Ended June 30,
2016

2015

32.0%

29.2%

30.1%

(3.8)
2.0
30.2%

0.4
1.4
30.9%

1.6
(0.7)
31.0%

The difference between the reported GAAP tax rate and non-GAAP tax rate applied to the identified non-GAAP adjustments for the year
ended June 30, 2017 is primarily a result of the revaluation of contingent consideration. The Company recorded acquisition related
expense of $18.4 million related to the change in fair value of contingent consideration, which is not tax deductible.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments at June 30, 2017 were $157.7 million compared to $95.8 million at June 30,
2016. Included in available-for-sale investments at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 was the fair value of the Company's investment in
CCXI of $59.6 million and $28.6 million, respectively.
At June 30, 2017, approximately 42% of the Company's cash and equivalent account balances of $91.6 million were located in the U.S.,
with the remainder located in Canada, China, the U.K. and other European countries.
At June 30, 2017, approximately 93% of the Company's available-for-sale investment account balances of $66.1 million were located in
the U.S., with the remaining 7% in China.
The Company has either paid U.S. taxes on its undistributed foreign earnings or intends to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed earnings
in the foreign operations or expects the earnings will be remitted in a tax neutral transaction. Management of the Company expects to be
able to meet its cash and working capital requirements for operations, facility expansion, capital additions, and cash dividends for the
foreseeable future, and at least the next 12 months, through currently available funds, including funds available through our line-ofcredit and cash generated from operations.
During fiscal 2017, the Company acquired Space and ACD for approximately $9.0 million and $258.0 million, respectively. The
acquisitions were financed through a combination of cash on hand and our revolving line of credit facility that the Company obtained prior
to the closing of the ACD acquisition. The ACD acquisition also included certain future contingent payments of up to $75.0 million due
upon the achievement of certain revenue milestones. Additionally, the Company made a $40.0 million equity investment in Astute
Medical, Inc.
During fiscal 2016, the Company acquired Cliniqa and Zephyrus for approximately $82.9 million and $8.0 million, respectively. These
acquisitions were financed with a combination of cash on hand and our revolving line of credit facility. The Zephyrus acquisition consisted
of a net cash payment of $8.0 million and certain future contingent payments of up to $7.0 million, with a current fair value of $3.3
million.
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During fiscal 2015, the Company acquired Novus Biologicals, ProteinSimple, and CyVek for approximately $60.1 million, $300.0 million
and $94.9 million, respectively. The Novus acquisition was financed through cash on hand. The purchases of ProteinSimple and CyVek
were financed through cash on hand and our revolving line of credit facility.
Our $400 million line-of-credit facility was modified in July 2016 in connection with the acquisition of ACD. The senior unsecured
revolving credit facility has a term of five years with an adjustable interest rate equal to the greater of (i) the prime commercial rate, (ii) the
per annum federal funds rate plus 0.5%, or (iii) LIBOR + 1.00% - 1.75% depending on the existing total leverage ratio of Debt to EBITDA
(as defined in the Credit Agreement governing the revolving credit facility). The financial covenants of the revolving credit facility require
the Company to maintain a minimum Interest Coverage Ratio, defined as the ratio of EBIT to cash interest expense, of 3.0x and a
maximum total leverage ratio of 3.5x. The annualized fee for any unused portion of the credit facility is variable based upon the
Company’s leverage ratio at each pricing date.
Future acquisition strategies may or may not require additional borrowings under the line-of-credit facility or other outside sources of
funding.
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
The Company generated cash from operations of $143.8 million, $143.9 million, and $139.8 million in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The increase in cash generated from operating activities in fiscal 2017 as compared to fiscal 2016 and in fiscal 2016 as
compared to fiscal 2015 were mainly the result of an increase in net earnings after adjusting for non-cash expenses related to depreciation,
amortization, costs recognized on sale of acquired inventory, and stock based compensation expense.
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
We continue to make investments in our business, including capital expenditures. Cash paid for acquisitions was incrementally higher in
fiscal 2017 compared to fiscal 2016, with net cash paid of $253.8 million for the ACD and Space acquisitions compared to $91.4 million
for the Cliniqa and Zephyrus acquisitions during fiscal 2016. In fiscal 2015, the Company paid net cash of $420.1 million for the CyVek,
ProteinSimple and Novus acquisitions.
In addition to the ACD and Space acquisitions in fiscal 2017, the Company also invested $40.0 million in Astute Medical, Inc. during the
second quarter of fiscal 2017.
The Company's net proceeds from the purchase, sale and maturity of available-for-sale investments in fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015 were
$3.0 million, $0.8 million, and $13.5 million, respectively. The Company's investment policy is to place excess cash in municipal and
corporate bonds with the objective of obtaining the highest possible return while minimizing risk and keeping the funds accessible.
Capital additions in fiscal year 2017, 2016, and 2015 were $15.2 million, $16.9 million, and $19.9 million. Capital additions planned for
fiscal 2018 are approximately $23.8 million and are expected to be financed through currently available cash and cash generated from
operations.
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
In fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company paid cash dividends of $47.3 million $47.6 million, and $47.1 million, respectively. The
Board of Directors periodically considers the payment of cash dividends.
The Company received $5.3 million, $5.4 million, and $9.7 million, for the exercise of options for 63,000, 69,000, and 241,000, shares of
common stock in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company recognized excess tax benefits from stock option exercises of
$0.5 million $0.6 million, $0.6 million in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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During fiscal 2017, the Company drew $368.5 million under its revolving line-of-credit facility to partially fund its acquisition of ACD
and investment in Astute. The Company made payments on the line-of-credit and other debt of $116.5 million.
During fiscal 2016, the Company drew $77.0 million under its revolving line-of-credit facility to partially fund its acquisitions of Cliniqa.
The Company made payments on the line-of-credit and other debt of $58.5 million.
During fiscal 2015, the Company drew $163.0 million under its revolving line-of-credit facility to partially fund its acquisitions of
ProteinSimple and CyVek. The Company made payments on the line-of-credit and other debt of $95.0 million.
During fiscal 2017, the Company determined that certain sales and revenue thresholds were met for Zephyrus and ACD. Cash payments
totaling $28.5 million ($3.5 million for Zephyrus and $25 million for ACD) were made during the third quarter. Of the $28.5 million of
total payments, $16.7 million is classified as financing. The financing component represents the portion of the total liability that was
recognized at the acquisition date. The remaining $11.8 million is recorded as operating as it represents the consideration liability that
exceed the amount of the contingent consideration liability recognized at the acquisition date
During fiscal 2017, the Company made payments of $3.6 million to settle outstanding consideration payables related to the PrimeGene
acquisition.
In April 2009, the Board of Directors authorized a plan for the repurchase and retirement of $60.0 million of its common stock. In October
2012, the Board of Directors increased the amount authorized under the plan by $100.0 million. The plan does not have an expiration date.
In fiscal 2013, the Company purchased and retired 28,000 and shares of common stock at market values of $1.8 million. There were no
stock repurchases in fiscal 2017, 2016, 2015 or 2014. At June 30, 2017, approximately $125.0 million remained available for purchase
under the above authorizations.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company is not a party to any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a
current or future material effect on the Company's financial condition, changes in the financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table summarizes the Company's contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of June 30, 2017 (in thousands):

Operating leases
ACD acquisition (1)
CyVek acquisition (1)
Zephyrus acquisition (1)

$

$

Total
68,656
30,100
35,000
3,300
137,056

Less than
1 Year
$
9,123
30,100
35,000
3,300
$
77,523

Payments Due by Period
1-2
3-4
Years
Years
$
16,808 $
15,996
$
16,808 $
15,996

After
5 Years
$
26,729
$
26,729

(1) Amounts represent the fair values of contingent liabilities under the ACD merger agreement, the CyVek merger agreement and the
Zephyrus merger agreement. In addition, the Company will pay CyVek's other stockholders up to 50% of the amount, if any, by
which revenues of CyVek's products and related products exceeds $100 million in calendar year 2020.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management's discussion and analysis of the Company's financial condition and results of operations are based upon the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an
ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.
The Company has identified the policies outlined below as critical to its business operations and an understanding of results of operations.
The listing is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all accounting policies; investors should also refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Business Combinations
We allocate the purchase price of acquired businesses to the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the
date of the acquisition. The calculations used to determine the fair value of the long-lived assets acquired, primarily intangible assets, can
be complex and require significant judgment. We weigh many factors when completing these estimates including, but not limited to, the
nature of the acquired company’s business; its competitive position, strengths, and challenges; its historical financial position and
performance; estimated customer retention rates; discount rates; and future plans for the combined entity. We may also engage
independent valuation specialists, when necessary, to assist in the fair value calculations for significant acquired long-lived assets.
The fair value of acquired technology is estimated, at times, using the relief from royalty method, which calculates the cost savings
associated with owning rather than licensing the technology. Assumed royalty rates are applied to the projected revenues for the remaining
useful life of the technology to estimate the royalty savings. The fair value of acquired technology may also be estimated using the cost of
reproduction method under which the primary components of the technology are identified and the estimated cost to reproduce the
technology is calculated based on historical data provided by the acquirees. The fair value of trade names is estimated using the relief from
royalty method, which calculates the cost savings associated with owning rather than licensing the trade name. Assumed royalty rates are
applied to the projected revenues for the remaining useful life of the trade name to estimate the royalty savings. We generally estimate the
fair value of acquired customer relationships using the multi-period excess earnings method. This valuation model estimates revenues and
cash flows derived from the asset and then deducts portions of the cash flow that can be attributed to supporting assets, such as a brand
name or fixed assets, that contributed to the generation of the cash flows. The resulting cash flow, which is attributable solely to the
customer list asset, is then discounted at a rate of return commensurate with the risk of the asset to calculate a present value. The fair value
of acquired customer relationships may also be estimated by discounting the estimated cash flows expected to be generated by the assets.
Assumptions used in these calculations include same-customer revenue growth rates and estimated customer retention rates based on the
acquirees' historical information.
We estimate the fair value of liabilities for contingent consideration by discounting to present value the probability weighted contingent
payments expected to be made. Assumptions used in these calculations include discount rates, projected financial results of the acquired
businesses based on our most recent internal forecasts, and factors indicating the probability of achieving the forecasted results. The
excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
is subject to impairment testing on at least an annual basis.
We are also required to estimate the useful lives of the acquired intangible assets, which determines the amount of acquisition-related
amortization expense we will record in future periods. Each reporting period, we evaluate the remaining useful lives of our amortizable
intangibles to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of amortization.
While we use our best estimates and assumptions, our fair value estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a result,
during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Any adjustments required after the measurement period are recorded in
the consolidated statements of earnings.
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The judgments required in determining the estimated fair values and expected useful lives assigned to each class of assets and liabilities
acquired can significantly affect net income. For example, different classes of assets will have useful lives that differ. Consequently, to the
extent a longer-lived asset is ascribed greater value than a shorter-lived asset, net income in a given period may be higher. Additionally,
assigning a lower value to amortizable intangibles would result in a higher amount assigned to goodwill. As goodwill is not amortized, this
would benefit net income in a given period, although goodwill is subject to annual impairment analysis

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Goodwill was $579.0 million as of June 30, 2017, which represented 37% of total assets. Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual
basis in the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently if events occur or circumstances change that could indicate a possible
impairment.
To analyze goodwill for impairment, we must assign our goodwill to individual reporting units. Identification of reporting units includes
an analysis of the components that comprise each of our operating segments, which considers, among other things, the manner in which
we operate our business and the availability of discrete financial information. Components of an operating segment are aggregated to form
one reporting unit if the components have similar economic characteristics. We periodically review our reporting units to ensure that they
continue to reflect the manner in which we operate our business.
2017 Goodwill Impairment Analysis
In completing our 2017 annual goodwill impairment analysis, we elected to perform a quantitative assessment for all of our reporting
units. A quantitative assessment involves comparing the carrying value of the reporting unit, including goodwill, to its estimated fair
value. Carrying value is based on the assets and liabilities associated with the operations of the reporting unit, which often requires the
allocation of shared or corporate items among reporting units. In accordance with ASU 2017-04, a goodwill impairment charge is recorded
for the amount by which the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit. In determining the fair values of
our reporting units, we utilized the income approach. The income approach is a valuation technique under which we estimated future cash
flows using the reporting unit's financial forecast from the perspective of an unrelated market participant. Using historical trending and
internal forecasting techniques, we projected revenue and applied our fixed and variable cost experience rates to the projected revenue to
arrive at the future cash flows. A terminal value was then applied to the projected cash flow stream. Future estimated cash flows were
discounted to their present value to calculate the estimated fair value. The discount rate used was the value-weighted average of our
estimated cost of capital derived using both known and estimated customary market metrics. In determining the estimated fair value of a
reporting unit, we were required to estimate a number of factors, including projected operating results, terminal growth rates, economic
conditions, anticipated future cash flows, the discount rate and the allocation of shared or corporate items. Because our 2017 quantitative
analysis included all of our reporting units, the summation of our reporting units' fair values was compared to our consolidated fair value,
as indicated by our market capitalization, to evaluate the reasonableness of our calculations.
The quantitative assessment completed as of June 30, 2017 indicated that all of the reporting units had a substantial amount of headroom.
This impairment assessment is sensitive to changes in forecasted cash flows, as well as our selected discount rate. Changes in the reporting
unit's results, forecast assumptions and estimates could materially affect the estimation of the fair value of the reporting units.
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2016 and 2015 Goodwill Impairment Analysis
The Company used a qualitative test for all reporting units during the fourth quarter for fiscal year 2016 and fiscal year 2015 with one
exception. The company elected to utilize a quantitative test for the Protein Platforms reporting unit for fiscal year 2016 using the
previously described income approach given that this was a newer reporting unit created primarily through acquisitions. The qualitative
analyses for our other reporting units completed during 2016 and 2015 evaluated factors including, but not limited to, economic, market
and industry conditions, cost factors and the overall financial performance of the reporting units. In completing these assessments, we
noted no changes in events or circumstances which indicated that it was more likely than not that the fair value of any reporting unit was
less than its carrying amount. Based on the testing performed for the Protein Platforms reporting unit, fair value exceeded carrying value
by a substantial amount and no adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill was necessary.
There has been no impairment of goodwill since the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ASC 350 guidance for
goodwill and other intangibles on July 1, 2002.
Amortizable Intangible Assets
We periodically review our amortizable intangible assets, the net value of which was $452.0 million and $310.5 million as of June 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively, for impairment and to assess whether significant events or changes in business circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. Such circumstances may include a significant decrease in the market price of an
asset, a significant adverse change in the manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition or history of operating or cash
flow losses associated with the use of the asset. Impairment losses could occur when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the
anticipated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the
impairment loss to be recorded, if any, is calculated as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its estimated fair value.
In addition, we periodically reassess the estimated remaining useful lives of our long-lived and amortizable intangible assets. Changes to
estimated useful lives would impact the amount of depreciation and amortization expense recorded in earnings. We have experienced no
significant changes in the carrying value or estimated remaining useful lives of our long-lived or amortizable intangible assets.
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Information regarding the accounting policies adopted during fiscal 2017 and those not yet adopted can be found under caption “Note 1:
Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appear in
Item 8 of this report.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In July 2017, management determined that CyVek achieved the required revenue threshold for the additional consideration payment
discussed in Note 4 resulting in a payment of $34.0 million to the former owners.
On September 5, 2017, Bio-Techne acquired Trevigen Inc for approximately $11.0 million. The purchase accounting for this acquisition is
in progress.
NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES
This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
in Item 7, contains financial measures that have not been calculated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. (GAAP). These non-GAAP measures include:
●
●
●
●

Adjusted gross margin
Adjusted net earnings
Adjusted net earnings growth
Adjusted effective tax rate

We provide these measures as additional information regarding our operating results. We use these non-GAAP measures internally to
evaluate our performance and in making financial and operational decisions, including with respect to incentive compensation. We believe
that our presentation of these measures provides investors with greater transparency with respect to our results of operations and that these
measures are useful for period-to-period comparison of results.
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Our non-GAAP financial measures for adjusted gross margin and adjusted net earnings exclude the costs recognized upon the sale of
acquired inventory, amortization of acquisition intangibles, and acquisition related expenses. The Company excludes amortization of
purchased intangible assets and purchase accounting adjustments, including costs recognized upon the sale of acquired inventory and
acquisition-related expenses, from this measure because they occur as a result of specific events, and are not reflective of our internal
investments, the costs of developing, producing, supporting and selling our products, and the other ongoing costs to support our operating
structure. Additionally, these amounts can vary significantly from period to period based on current activity.
The Company’s non-GAAP adjusted net earnings also excludes stock based compensation expense and certain adjustments to income tax
expense. Stock based compensation is excluded from non-GAAP adjusted earnings because of the nature of this charge, specifically the
varying available valuation methodologies, subjective assumptions, and the variety of award types. The Company independently calculates
a non-GAAP adjusted tax rate to be applied to the identified non-GAAP adjustments considering the impact of discrete items on these
adjustments and the jurisdictional mix of the adjustments. In addition, the tax impact of other discrete and non-recurring charges which
impact our reported GAAP tax rate are adjusted from net earnings. We believe these tax items can significantly affect the period-over
period assessment of operating results and not necessarily reflect costs and/or income associated with historical trends and future results.
The Company periodically reassesses the components of our non-GAAP adjustments for changes in how we evaluate our performance,
changes in how we make financial and operational decisions, and considers the use of these measures by our competitors and peers to
ensure the adjustments are still relevant and meaningful.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company operates internationally, and thus is subject to potentially adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates.
Approximately 27% of the Company's consolidated net sales in fiscal 2017 were made in foreign currencies, including 14% in euro, 4% in
British pound sterling, 4% in Chinese yuan and the remaining 5% in other currencies. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily
from foreign exchange rate fluctuations of the euro, British pound sterling, Chinese yuan and Canadian dollar as compared to the U.S.
dollar as the financial position and operating results of the Company's foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars for consolidation.
Month-end exchange rates between the euro, British pound sterling, Chinese yuan, Canadian dollar and the U.S. dollar, which have not
been weighted for actual sales volume in the applicable months in the periods, were as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017

2015

Euro:
High
Low
Average
British pound sterling:
High
Low
Average
Chinese yuan:
High
Low
Average
Canadian dollar:
High
Low
Average

$

1.14
1.05
1.09

$

1.13
1.10
1.12

$

1.34
1.08
1.19

$

1.32
1.22
1.27

$

1.48
1.33
1.42

$

1.69
1.48
1.57

$

.150
.144
.147

$

.152
.150
.152

$

.164
.162
.163

$

.770
.733
.754

$

.781
.706
.755

$

.933
.793
.855

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations also arises from trade receivables and intercompany payables denominated
in one currency in the financial statements, but receivable or payable in another currency.
The Company does not enter into foreign currency forward contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency rate changes on forecasted
intercompany sales transactions or on intercompany foreign currency denominated balance sheet positions. Foreign currency transaction
gains and losses are included in "Other non-operating expense, net" in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive
Income. The effect of translating net assets of foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
part of "Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)."
The effects of a hypothetical simultaneous 10% appreciation in the U.S. dollar from June 30, 2017 levels against the euro, British pound
sterling, Chinese yuan and Canadian dollar are as follows (in thousands):
Decrease in translation of 2017 earnings into U.S. dollars
Decrease in translation of net assets of foreign subsidiaries
Additional transaction losses

$
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2,540
37,356
1,158

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Bio-Techne Corporation and Subsidiaries
(in thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

$

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest income
Other non-operating income (expense), net
Total other income (expense)
Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes
Net earnings
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale investments, net of tax of
$(6,501), $3,794, and $(3,895), respectively
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends per common share:
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

563,003
188,462
374,541

499,023
162,364
336,659

$

452,246
144,969
307,277

200,443
53,514
253,957
120,584

140,879
45,187
186,066
150,593

119,401
40,853
160,254
147,023

(7,361)
304
(1,566)
(8,623)
111,961
35,875
76,086

(1,748)
249
(1,613)
(3,112)
147,481
43,005
104,476

(1,544)
634
8,049
7,139
154,162
46,427
107,735

(3,061)

(19,888)

(36,513)

$

24,531
21,470
97,556

$

(19,924)
(39,812)
64,664 $

11,308
(25,205)
82,530

$
$
$

2.04
2.03
1.28

$
$
$

2.81
2.80
1.28

37,313
37,500
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

2015

37,194
37,326

$
$
$

2.90
2.89
1.27
37,096
37,231

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Bio-Techne Corporation and Subsidiaries
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
June 30,
2017
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term available-for-sale investments
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $696 and $555, respectively
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Salaries, wages and related accruals
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue, current
Income taxes payable
Contingent consideration payable
Related party note payable, current
Total current liabilities

$

$

$

Deferred income taxes
Long-term debt obligations
Contingent consideration payable
Other long-term liabilities
Shareholders' equity:
Undesignated capital stock, no par; authorized 5,000,000 shares; none issued or outstanding
Common stock, par value $.01 a share; authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
37,356,041 and 37,253,771 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

2016

91,612
66,102
116,830
60,151
13,330
348,025
135,124
579,026
452,042
44,002
1,558,219

16,856
26,602
18,518
5,968
2,478
65,100
135,522

$

$

$

64,237
31,598
93,393
57,102
7,561
253,891
132,362
430,882
310,524
1,922
1,129,581

20,653
14,868
8,371
4,717
1,779
3,759
54,147

120,596
343,771
3,300
5,403

62,837
91,500
38,500
3,317

-

-

374
199,161
799,027
(48,935)
949,627
1,558,219 $

372
178,760
770,553
(70,405)
879,280
1,129,581

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Bio-Techne Corporation and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
Balances at June 30, 2014
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Surrender and retirement of stock to
exercise options
Common stock issued for exercise
of options
Common stock issued for restricted
stock awards
Cash dividends
Stock-based compensation expense
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options
Employee stock purchase plan
expense
Balances at June 30, 2015
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Surrender and retirement of stock to
exercise options
Common stock issued for exercise
of options
Common stock issued for restricted
stock awards
Cash dividends
Stock-based compensation expense
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options
Common stock issued to employee
stock purchase plan
Employee stock purchase plan
expense
Balances at June 30, 2016
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Surrender and retirement of stock to
exercise options
Common stock issued for exercise
of options
Common stock issued for restricted
stock awards
Cash dividends
Stock-based compensation expense
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options
Common stock issued to employee
stock purchase plan
Employee stock purchase plan
expense
Balances at June 30, 2017

37,002

$

370

$

Retained
Earnings

147,004

$

653,279
107,735

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income(Loss)
$

(5,388) $
(25,205)

(31)

-

-

141

1

9,761

10

-

-

9,762
(57)
(47,106)

(57)
(47,106)
5,918

615

$

371

$

39
163,306

615

$

713,851
104,476

$

(30,593) $
(39,812)

(31)

-

-

69

1

4,796

23

-

-

795,265
107,735
(25,205)
(31)

5,918

37,153

Total

39
846,935
104,476
(39,812)
(31)
4,797

(167)
(47,607)

(167)
(47,607)
9,287

9,287
566

566

9

692

692

37,254

144
178,760

$

372

$

$

770,553
76,086

$

(70,405) $
21,470

(3)

-

(275)

63

2

4,509

31

-

-

(275)
4,511
(287)
(47,325)

(47,612)
14,418

14,418

11

37,356

$

374

$

514

514

1,022

1,022

213
199,161

$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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144
879,280
76,086
21,470

799,027

$

(48,935) $

213
949,627

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Bio-Techne Corporation and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Costs recognized on sale of acquired inventory
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation expense
Gain on sale of CyVek
Fair value adjustment to contingent consideration payable
Contingent consideration and ACD compensation, operating
Other operating activity
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Trade accounts and other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Trade accounts payable and accrued expenses
Salaries, wages and related accruals
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

76,086

$

104,476

2015
$

107,735

60,036
3,037
(3,433)
14,631
18,400
(13,322)
1,942

42,764
5,431
(2,624)
9,430
-

37,226
6,961
1,304
5,957
(8,300)
-

(566)

(157)

(19,686)
(732)
(2,088)
5,695
2,183
699
143,448

(22,981)
(6,626)
(381)
8,924
5,725
298
143,870

(11,747)
(4,714)
(620)
2,154
1,679
1,881
139,359

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from sale and maturities of available-for-sale investments
Additions to property and equipment
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Investment in unconsolidated entity
Other investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities

(3,069)
6,079
(15,179)
(253,785)
(40,000)
(305,954)

776
(16,898)
(91,423)
(25)
(107,570)

13,466
(19,905)
(420,102)
49
(426,492)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash dividends
Proceeds from stock option exercises
Excess tax benefit from stock option exercises
Borrowings under line-of-credit agreement
Payments on line-of-credit
Contingent consideration and ACD compensation, financing
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(47,325)
5,257
514
368,500
(116,500)
(21,060)
189,386

(47,607)
5,458
566
77,000
(58,500)
(23,083)

(47,107)
9,731
615
163,000
(94,964)
31,275

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

495
27,375
64,237
91,612

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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$

(3,512)
9,705
54,532
64,237 $

(8,178)
(264,036)
318,568
54,532

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bio-Techne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
Note 1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Description of business: Bio-Techne Corporation and subsidiaries, collectively doing business as Bio-Techne (the Company), develop,
manufacture and sell biotechnology and clinical diagnostic products worldwide. With its deep product portfolio and application expertise,
Bio-Techne is a leader in providing specialized proteins, including cytokines and growth factors, and related immunoassays, small
molecules and other reagents to the research and diagnostics markets.
Use of estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates include the valuation of accounts receivable, available-for-sale
investments, inventory, intangible assets, contingent consideration, stock based compensation and income taxes. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.
Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Translation of foreign financial statements: Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign operations are translated at year-end rates of
exchange and the resulting gains and losses arising from the translation of net assets located outside the U.S. are recorded as other
comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated statements of earnings and comprehensive income. The cumulative translation
adjustment is a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheets. Foreign statements of earnings
are translated at the average rate of exchange for the year. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in other nonoperating expense in the consolidated statements of earnings and comprehensive income.
Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Payment terms for shipments to
end-users are generally net 30 days. Payment terms for distributor shipments may range from 30 to 90 days. Freight charges billed to endusers are included in net sales and freight costs are included in cost of sales. Freight charges on shipments to distributors are paid directly
by the distributor. Any claims for credit or return of goods must be made within 10 days of receipt. Revenues are reduced to reflect
estimated credits and returns. Sales, use, value-added and other excise taxes are not included in revenue.
Research and development: Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development activities generally relate to
creating new products, improving or creating variations of existing products, or modifying existing products to meet new applications.
Advertising costs: Advertising expenses (including production and communication costs) were $4.5 million $5.2 million, and $4.1 million
for fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015 respectively. The Company expenses advertising expenses as incurred.
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Income taxes: The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized to record the income tax effect of temporary differences between the tax basis and financial reporting basis of assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return
are recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position would be sustained upon examination by tax
authorities. A recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax
expense.
See Note 10 for additional information regarding income taxes.
Comprehensive income: Comprehensive income includes charges and credits to shareholders' equity that are not the result of transactions
with shareholders. Our total comprehensive income consists of net income, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale marketable
securities, and foreign currency translation adjustments. The items of comprehensive income, with the exception of net income, are
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in the consolidated balance sheets and statements of shareholders' equity.
Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly-liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.
Available-for-sale investments: Available-for-sale investments consist of debt instruments with original maturities of generally three
months to three years and equity securities. Available-for-sale investments are recorded based on trade-date. The Company considers all of
its marketable securities available-for-sale and reports them at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are
excluded from income, but are included, net of taxes, in other comprehensive income. If an "other-than-temporary" impairment is
determined to exist, the difference between the value of the investment security recorded in the financial statements and the Company's
current estimate of the fair value is recognized as a charge to earnings in the period in which the impairment is determined.
Trade accounts receivable: Trade accounts receivable are initially recorded at the invoiced amount upon the sale of goods or services to
customers, and they do not bear interest. They are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts, which represent estimated losses
resulting from the inability of customers to make the required payments. When determining the allowances for doubtful accounts, we take
several factors into consideration, including the overall composition of accounts receivable aging, our prior history of accounts receivable
write-offs, the type of customer and our day-to-day knowledge of specific customers. Changes in the allowances for doubtful accounts are
included in selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expense in our consolidated statements of earnings and comprehensive income.
The point at which uncollected accounts are written off varies by type of customer.
Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. The Company regularly reviews inventory on
hand for slow-moving and obsolete inventory, inventory not meeting quality control standards and inventory subject to expiration. To meet
strict customer quality standards, the Company has established a highly controlled manufacturing process for proteins, antibodies and its
chemically-based products. These products require the initial manufacture of multiple batches to determine if quality standards can be
consistently met. In addition, the Company will produce larger batches of established products than current sales requirements due to
economies of scale. The manufacturing process for these products, therefore, has and will continue to produce quantities in excess of
forecasted usage. The Company values its manufactured protein and antibody inventory based on a two-year forecast and its chemicallybased products on a five-year forecast. Inventory quantities in excess of the forecast are not valued due to uncertainty over salability.
The company records a lower of cost or market adjustment to cost of sales for those quantities that are in excess of the manufactured
protein and antibody two-year forecast and the chemically-based products five year forecast. For the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and
2015 the amount recognized in net sales of inventory sold that was not valued is not material.
Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over an
estimated useful life of five years. Buildings, building improvements and leasehold improvements are amortized over estimated useful
lives of 5 to 40 years. Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In the current year, the Company has identified no such events.
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Intangibles assets: Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization expense is generally
determined on the straight-line basis over periods ranging from 1 year to 20 years. Each reporting period, we evaluate the remaining useful
lives of our amortizable intangibles to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of
amortization. If our estimate of an asset's remaining useful life is revised, the remaining carrying amount of the asset is amortized
prospectively over the revised remaining useful life. In the current year, the Company has identified no such events.
Impairment of long-lived assets and amortizable intangibles: We evaluate the recoverability of property, plant, equipment and amortizable
intangibles whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset's carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such
circumstances could include, but are not limited to, (1) a significant decrease in the market value of an asset, (2) a significant adverse
change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used or in its physical condition, or (3) an accumulation of costs significantly in excess
of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of an asset. We compare the carrying amount of the asset to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with it. If the sum of the expected future net cash flows is less than the carrying value
of the asset being evaluated, an impairment loss would be recognized. The impairment loss would be calculated as the amount by which
the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. As quoted market prices are not available for the majority of our assets,
the estimate of fair value is based on various valuation techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash flows.
The evaluation of asset impairment requires us to make assumptions about future cash flows over the life of the asset being evaluated.
These assumptions require significant judgment and actual results may differ from assumed and estimated amounts. No triggering events
were identified and no impairments were recorded for property, plant, and equipment or amortizable intangibles were recorded during
fiscal year 2017.
Impairment of goodwill: We evaluate the carrying value goodwill during the fourth quarter each year and between annual evaluations if
events occur or circumstances change that would indicate a possible impairment. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to,
(1) a significant adverse change in legal factors or in business climate, (2) unanticipated competition, (3) an adverse action or assessment
by a regulator, or (4) an adverse change in market conditions that are indicative of a decline in the fair value of the assets.
To analyze goodwill for impairment, we must assign our goodwill to individual reporting units. Identification of reporting units includes
an analysis of the components that comprise each of our operating segments, which considers, among other things, the manner in which
we operate our business and the availability of discrete financial information. Components of an operating segment are aggregated to form
one reporting unit if the components have similar economic characteristics. We periodically review our reporting units to ensure that they
continue to reflect the manner in which we operate our business.
2017 Goodwill Impairment Analysis
In completing our 2017 annual goodwill impairment analysis, we elected to perform a quantitative assessment for all of our reporting
units. A quantitative assessment involves comparing the carrying value of the reporting unit, including goodwill, to its estimated fair
value. Carrying value is based on the assets and liabilities associated with the operations of the reporting unit, which often requires the
allocation of shared or corporate items among reporting units. In accordance with ASU 2017-04, a goodwill impairment charge is recorded
for the amount by which the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit. In determining the fair values of
our reporting units, we utilized the income approach. The income approach is a valuation technique under which we estimated future cash
flows using the reporting unit's financial forecast from the perspective of an unrelated market participant. Using historical trending and
internal forecasting techniques, we projected revenue and applied our fixed and variable cost experience rates to the projected revenue to
arrive at the future cash flows. A terminal value was then applied to the projected cash flow stream. Future estimated cash flows were
discounted to their present value to calculate the estimated fair value. The discount rate used was the value-weighted average of our
estimated cost of capital derived using both known and estimated customary market metrics. In determining the estimated fair value of a
reporting unit, we were required to estimate a number of factors, including projected operating results, terminal growth rates, economic
conditions, anticipated future cash flows, the discount rate and the allocation of shared or corporate items.
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Because our 2017 quantitative analysis included all of our reporting units, the summation of our reporting units' fair values was compared
to our consolidated fair value, as indicated by our market capitalization, to evaluate the reasonableness of our calculations.
The quantitative assessment completed as of June 30, 2017 indicated that all of the reporting units had a substantial amount of headroom.
This impairment assessment is sensitive to changes in forecasted cash flows, as well as our selected discount rate. Changes in the reporting
unit's results, forecast assumptions and estimates could materially affect the estimation of the fair value of the reporting units.
2016 and 2015 Goodwill Impairment Analysis
The Company used a qualitative test for all reporting units during the fourth quarter for fiscal year 2016 and fiscal year 2015 with one
exception. The company elected to utilize a quantitative test for the Protein Platforms reporting unit for fiscal year 2016 using the
previously described income approach given that this is a newer reporting unit created primarily through acquisitions. The qualitative
analyses for our other reporting units completed during 2016 and 2015 evaluated factors including, but not limited to, economic, market
and industry conditions, cost factors and the overall financial performance of the reporting units. In completing these assessments, we
noted no changes in events or circumstances which indicated that it was more likely than not that the fair value of any reporting unit was
less than its carrying amount. Based on the testing performed for the Protein Platforms reporting unit, fair value exceeded carrying value
by a substantial amount and no adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill was necessary.
There has been no impairment of goodwill since the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ASC 350 guidance for
goodwill and other intangibles on July 1, 2002.
Investments in unconsolidated entities: The Company periodically invests in the equity of start-up and early development stage companies.
The accounting treatment of each investment (cost method or equity method) is dependent upon a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the Company's share in the equity of the investee and the Company's ability to exercise significant influence over the operating
and financial policies of the investee.
Other Significant Accounting Policies
The following table includes a reference to additional significant accounting policies that are described in other notes to the financial
statements, including the note number:
Policy
Fair value measurements
Earnings per share
Share-based compensation
Reportable segments

Note
4
8
9
11

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2015-05, Customer's Accounting for Fees Paid in a
Cloud Computing Arrangement. The standard provides guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a
software license. If the arrangement does include a software license, the software license element of the arrangement should be accounted
for in the same manner as the acquisition of other software licenses. We adopted this standard on July 1, 2016, applying it prospectively to
all arrangements entered into or materially modified on or after July 1, 2016. Adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact
on our results of operations or financial position.
In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments. When
recording the purchase price allocation for a business combination in the financial statements, an acquirer may record preliminary amounts
when measurements are incomplete as of the end of a reporting period. When the required information is received to finalize the purchase
price allocation, the preliminary amounts are adjusted. These adjustments are referred to as measurement-period adjustments. This
standard eliminates the requirement to restate prior period financial statements for measurement-period adjustments. Instead, it requires
that the cumulative impact of a measurement-period adjustment be recognized in the reporting period in which the adjustment is
identified. We adopted this standard on July 1, 2016, applying it prospectively. Application of this standard did not have a significant
impact on our results of operations or financial position.
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In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments . The standard is
intended to reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash flows. We elected to early adopt
this standard as of July 1, 2016. As our consolidated statement of cash flows presentation was in compliance with the new guidance,
adoption of this standard had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment . The standard removes Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test, which requires a company to perform procedures to determine the fair value of a reporting unit's assets and
liabilities following the procedure that would be required in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Instead, a goodwill impairment charge will now be measured as the amount by which a reporting unit's carrying
value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. We elected to early adopt this standard on January 1, 2017. As
we have not been required to complete Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test, this standard did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial statements.
Pronouncements Issued but Not Yet Adopted
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides revenue recognition
guidance for any entity that enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of
non-financial assets, unless those contracts are within the scope of other accounting standards. The standard also expands the required
financial statement disclosures regarding revenue recognition. The new guidance is effective for us on July 1, 2018. In addition, in March
2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08, Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net) , in April 2016,
the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing, and in May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No.
2016-12, Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients. These standards are intended to clarify aspects of ASU No. 2014-09 and
are effective for us upon adoption of ASU No. 2014-09. The Company’s approach to implementing the new standard includes performing
a detailed review of key contracts representative of its different businesses, and comparing historical accounting policies and practices to
the new standard. In addition to expanded disclosures associated with the new standard, the Company is continuing to assess the impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The guidance permits two methods of adoption, retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented (full retrospective method), or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at
the date of initial application (the cumulative catch-up transition method). We currently anticipate that we will adopt the standards using
cumulative catch-up transition method.
In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory. This provision would require inventory that was
previously recorded using first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) to be recorded at lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim periods within those years, which for us will be
July 1, 2017. The amendments in this guidance should be applied prospectively with earlier application permitted as of the beginning of an
interim or annual period. The Company does not expect the updated guidance to have a significant impact on future financial statements.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The
standard is intended to improve the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. This ASU is effective
using the modified retrospective approach for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December
15, 2017, which for us is July 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the application of this standard to have a significant
impact on our result of operations or financial position.
In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which amends the existing guidance to require lessees to recognize
lease assets and lease liabilities from operating leases on the balance sheet. This ASU is effective using the modified retrospective
approach for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, which for us is July 1,
2019. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-02 on our consolidated financial
statements.

41

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. This update includes
provisions intended to simplify various aspects related to how share-based payments are accounted for and presented in the financial
statements. This ASU is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
which for us is July 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. Upon adoption, among other impacts, the Company expects its reported
provision for income taxes to become more volatile, dependent upon market prices and volume of share-based compensation exercises and
vesting of options.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments. The amendments in this update replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a
methodology that reflects expected credit losses. This update is intended to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful
information about the expected credit losses. This ASU is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2019, which for us is July 1, 2020. Entities may early adopt beginning after December 15, 2018. We are
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-13 on our consolidated financial statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, Clarifying the Definition of a Business. The standard revises the definition of a
business, which affects many areas of accounting such as business combinations and disposals and goodwill impairment. The revised
definition of a business will likely result in more acquisitions being accounted for as asset acquisitions, as opposed to business
combinations. This ASU is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018, which for us is July 1, 2019 required to be applied prospectively to transactions occurring on or after the effective date.
Note 2. Acquisitions:
2017 Acquisitions
Advanced Cell Diagnostics (ACD)
On August 1, 2016, the Company acquired ACD for approximately $258 million, net of cash acquired, plus contingent consideration of up
to $75.0 million as follows:
● $25.0 million if calendar year 2016 revenues equal or exceed $30.0 million.
● an additional $50.0 million if calendar year 2017 revenues equal or exceed $45.0 million.
The Company paid approximately $247.0 million, net of cash acquired and the working capital adjustments, as of the acquisition date. The
remaining $11.0 million will be paid to current employees who held ACD unvested stock as of the acquisition date. In order to receive
payment for unvested shares, the individuals must remain employees of ACD over the 18-month vesting period which extends from the
acquisition date through March 31, 2018. Any amounts that would have been owed to individuals who leave the company during the
vesting period, will be pooled together and distributed amongst the other former ACD shareholders at the end of the vesting period.
Management determined that $3.6 million of the $11.0 million represents purchase price consideration paid for pre-acquisition services.
However, the remaining $7.4 million represents compensation expense as the amount the individual employees receives is tied to future
service. This current value of this liability recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets under the caption “Salaries, wages and related
accruals”.
During the third quarter of fiscal 2017, management determined that the calendar year 2016 revenue milestone was met. Refer to Note 4
for discussion of this item as well as discussion of the changes to the fair value estimate for the calendar year 2017 revenue milestone as
of June 30, 2017.
The goodwill recorded as a result of the ACD acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product portfolio and
the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The goodwill is not deductible for
income tax purposes. The business became part of the Company’s Biotechnology reportable segment in the first quarter of 2017.
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Purchase accounting was finalized during the fourth quarter of 2017. The following table (in thousands) summarizes the value of ACD
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date.
Preliminary
Allocation at
Acquisition
Date
$
25,196
2,757
3,812

Current assets, net of cash
Equipment
Other long-term assets
Intangible assets:
Developed technology
Trade name
Customer relationships
Non-compete agreement
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Liabilities
Deferred income taxes, net
Net assets acquired

$

Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Consideration payable
Fair value contingent consideration
Net purchase price

$

$

107,000
17,000
77,000
200
133,780
366,745
3,591
78,761
284,393
246,193
38,200
284,393

Updated Opening
Balance Sheet
Adjustments to
Allocation at
Fair Value
June 30, 2017
$
(9,372) $
15,824
2,757
3,812
43,000
4,900
(70,700)
(200)
10,187
(22,185)
588
(26,018)
$

150,000
21,900
6,300
143,967
344,560
4,179
52,743
287,638

845 $
3,600
(1,200)
3,245 $

247,038
3,600
37,000
287,638

3,245

As summarized in the table, there have been adjustments totaling $10.2 million to goodwill during the measurement period. These
adjustments primarily relate to the finalization of acquired intangible asset cash flow models, and finalization of opening balance sheet
deferred tax assets and liabilities. However, the adjustments also include a $9.4 million decrease in the fair value of the inventory required
related to an error in the preliminary valuation identified by management during the fourth quarter. See Note 12 for additional information
regarding the impact of this error to the first, second, and third quarter fiscal year 2017 financial statements.
Tangible assets acquired, net of liabilities assumed, were stated at fair value at the date of acquisitions based on management's assessment.
The purchase price allocated to developed technology, trade names, and customer relationships was based on management's forecasted
cash inflows and outflows and using a relief-from-royalty and a multi-period excess earnings method to calculate the fair value of assets
purchased. The developed technology is being amortized with the expense reflected in cost of goods sold in the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income. Amortization expense related to trade names, and customer relationships is reflected
in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income. The amortization
periods for intangible assets acquired in fiscal 2017 are estimated to be 12 years for developed technology, 15 years for trade names, 10
years for customer relationships. The deferred income tax liability represents the net amount of the estimated future impact of adjustments
for costs to be recognized upon the sale of acquired inventory that was written up to fair value and intangible asset amortization, both of
which are not deductible for income tax purposes.
As previously disclosed, ACD was acquired on August 1, 2016. The unaudited pro forma financial information below summarizes the
combined results of operations for Bio-Techne and ACD as though the companies were combined as of the beginning fiscal 2016. The pro
forma financial information for all periods presented includes the purchase accounting effects resulting from these acquisitions except for
the increase in inventory to fair value and the fair value adjustments to contingent consideration as these are not expected to have a
continuing impact on cost of goods sold or selling, general and administrative expense, respectively. The pro forma financial information
as presented below is for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the
acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of fiscal 2016.
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Year Ended
June 30,
Net sales
Net income

$

2017
564,220 $
99,380

2016
523,840
110,536

Space Import-Export, Srl
On July 1, 2016, the Company acquired Space Import-Export, Srl (Space) of Milan, Italy for approximately $9.0 million. $6.7 million was
paid on the acquisition date and the remaining $2.3 million will be paid during the first quarter of fiscal year 2018. Space was a long-time
distribution partner of the Company in the Italian market. The acquisition resulted in goodwill as we expect strategic benefits of revenue
growth from increased market penetration. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes. The business became part of the
Company’s Biotechnology reportable segment in the first quarter of 2017. Purchase accounting was finalized during the fourth quarter.
There were no material changes from the preliminary opening balance sheet. The final fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in each acquisition, are as follows (in thousands):
Final Opening
Balance Sheet
Allocation
$
2,128
159

Current assets, net of cash
Equipment
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Liabilities
Deferred income taxes, net
Net assets acquired

$

Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Consideration payable
Net purchase price

$
$

6,769
3,517
12,573
1,444
2,125
9,003
6,747
2,256
9,003

2016 Acquisitions
Zephyrus Biosciences, Inc.
On March 14, 2016, the Company acquired Zephyrus Biosciences, Inc. (Zephyrus) for $8.0 million in cash and up to $7.0 million in
contingent consideration. Zephyrus provides research tools to enable protein analysis at the single cell level. Addressing the burgeoning
single cell analysis market, Zephyrus's first product, Milo™, enables western blotting on individual cells for the first time. The acquisition
was funded with cash on hand. The purchase price of Zephyrus exceeded the preliminary estimated fair value of the identifiable net assets
and, accordingly, the difference was allocated to goodwill, substantially all of which is not tax deductible. Zephryus is included in the
Company's Protein Platforms segment.
In connection with the Zephyrus acquisition, the Company recorded $7.4 million of in process research and development which is not
amortized until it is converted to developed technology which occurs once a sale of its product is completed. In the first quarter of fiscal
2017, the Company transferred the balance of in process research and development to developed technology and began amortizing the
intangible asset after Zephyrus made its first sale. The intangible asset amortization for the developed technology is not deductible for
income tax purposes.
The Company will pay Zephyrus former shareholders an additional $3.5 million if and when 10 instruments are sold prior to the 3-year
anniversary of the closing date (March 14, 2019). In addition, the Company will pay Zephyrus former shareholders an additional $3.5
million if and when $3.0 million in cumulative sales are generated within 4.5 years of the closing date (September 14, 2020). The
Company made a $3.5 million payment in the third quarter of fiscal 2017 after Zephyrus sold its tenth instrument. We estimate the
remaining fair value of these contingent consideration payments to be $3.3 million. Refer to Note 4 for further discussion of this item.
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The goodwill recorded as a result of the Zephyrus acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product portfolio
and the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The goodwill is not deductible
for income tax purposes.
We made certain purchase accounting adjustments for the acquisition of Zephyrus, which was acquired in March 2016 prior to the
finalization of purchase accounting during the third quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adjustments recorded during nine months ended
March 31, 2017 included a $3.0 million increase to the contingent consideration liability resulting from the finalization of the valuation
model, a $0.9 million increase to intangible assets resulting from valuation model adjustments, and a $0.3 million increase to net deferred
tax assets. A corresponding $1.8 million increase was recorded to goodwill from the preliminary amount recorded as of June 30, 2016.
Cliniqa Corporation
On July 8, 2015, the Company acquired Cliniqa Corporation (Cliniqa) for approximately $82.9 million. Cliniqa specializes in the
manufacturing and commercialization of blood chemistry quality controls and calibrators as well as bulk reagents used for the clinical
diagnostic market to further expand and complement our Diagnostics solutions. The acquisition was funded with cash on hand and funds
obtained from our revolving credit facility. The purchase price of Cliniqa exceeded the fair value of the identifiable net assets and,
accordingly, the difference was allocated to goodwill. Cliniqa is included in the Company's Diagnostics segment.
In connection with the Cliniqa acquisition, the Company recorded $18.0 million of developed technology intangible assets that have an
estimated useful life of 14 years, $27.0 million of customer relationship intangible assets that have an estimated useful life of 13 years, and
$1.1 million related to trade mark and trade names with a useful life of 4 years. The intangible asset amortization is not deductible for
income tax purposes.
The goodwill recorded as a result of the Cliniqa acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product portfolio
and the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The goodwill is not deductible
for income tax purposes.
2015 Acquisitions
CyVek Inc
On November 3, 2014, the Company acquired CyVek, Inc. (CyVek) through a merger. CyVek has developed a transformative
immunoassay technology which integrates an innovatively designed microfluidic cartridge with a state-of-the-art analyzer to deliver the
most advanced and efficient bench top immunoassay system. In fiscal 2014, the Company entered into an Agreement of Investment and
Merger (the Agreement) with CyVek. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company invested $10.0 million in CyVek and received
shares of Common Stock representing approximately 19.9% of the outstanding voting stock of CyVek. Between the time of the Company's
initial investment and November 3, 2014, CyVek met certain commercial milestones related to the sale of its products, which obligated the
Company to acquire CyVek through a merger, with CyVek surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Company made an initial payment of approximately $62.0 million to the other stockholders of CyVek on November 3, 2014. Such
purchase price was adjusted after closing based on the final levels of cash, indebtedness and transaction expenses of CyVek as of the
closing. The Company will also pay CyVek's previous stockholders up to $35.0 million based on the revenue generated by CyVek's
products before December 31, 2017. The Company will also pay CyVek's previous stockholders 50% of the amount, if any, by which the
revenue from CyVek's products and related products exceeds $100 million in calendar year 2020. The Company has recorded the present
value of these contingent payments as liabilities of $35.0 million at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. In addition, at November 3,
2014, the Company re-measured its previous investment in CyVek to acquisition-date fair value, resulting in a gain on the investment of
$8.3 million which is included in other income on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income. The
purchase price of CyVek exceeded the fair value of the identifiable net assets and, accordingly, the difference was allocated to goodwill,
substantially all of which is not tax deductible. CyVek is included in the Company's Protein Platforms segment.
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In connection with the CyVek acquisition, the Company recorded $20.2 million of developed technology intangible assets that have an
estimated useful life of 15 years, $0.1 million of trade name intangible assets that have an estimated useful life of 1.5 years, and $0.6
million related to customer relationships that have an estimated useful life of 10 years. The intangible asset amortization is not deductible
for income tax purposes.
The goodwill recorded as a result of the CyVek acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product portfolio
and the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The goodwill is not deductible
for income tax purposes.
ProteinSimple
On July 31, 2014, the Company acquired ProteinSimple. ProteinSimple expanded the Company's solutions that it can offer its customers
by developing and commercializing proprietary systems and consumables for protein analysis. The Company opened a line-of-credit to
partially fund the acquisition. The purchase price of ProteinSimple exceeded the fair value of the identifiable net assets and, accordingly,
the difference was allocated to goodwill. ProteinSimple is included in the Company's Protein Platform segment.
In connection with the ProteinSimple acquisition, the Company recorded $39.2 million of developed technology intangible assets that
have an estimated useful lives of 9-10 years, $36.1 million of trade name intangible assets that have an estimated useful lives of 18-20
years, $101.6 million related to customer relationships that have estimated useful lives of 14-16 years, and $0.2 million related to noncompete agreements that have an estimated useful life of 3 years. The intangible asset amortization is not deductible for income tax
purposes.
The goodwill recorded as a result of the ProteinSimple acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product
portfolio and the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The goodwill is not
deductible for income tax purposes.
Novus Holdings LLC
On July 2, 2014, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding equity interests of Novus Holdings LLC (Novus). Novus
broadened the Company's antibody offerings by being a supplier of a large portfolio of both outsourced and in-house developed antibodies
and other reagents for life science research. Novus is included in the Company's Biotechnology segment.
In connection with the Novus acquisition, the Company recorded $5.0 million of developed technology intangible assets that have
estimated useful lives of 4-12 years, $5.3 million of trade name intangible assets that have an estimated useful life of 20 years, and $14.4
million related to customer relationships that have an estimated useful life of 15 years. The majority of the intangible asset amortization is
not deductible for income tax purposes.
The goodwill recorded as a result of the Novus acquisition represents the strategic benefits of growing the Company's product portfolio
and the expected revenue growth from increased market penetration from future products and customers. The majority of the goodwill is
not deductible for income tax purposes.
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The aggregate purchase price of the acquisitions was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
values at the date of acquisition. The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as
a result of the fiscal year 2016 and 2015 acquisitions (in thousands):

Zephyrus
Current assets
Equipment
Other long-term assets
Intangible Assets:
Developed technology
Trade name
Customer relationships
Non-compete agreements
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Liabilities
Deferred income taxes, net
Net assets
Less fair-value of previous
investment
Net assets acquired
Cash paid, net of cash
acquired
Note Payable
Contingent consideration
payable
Net purchase price

$

$

$

$

Cliniqa
56
32
-

$

Protein
Simple

CyVek

11,926
1,436
58

$

1,206
971
19

$

19,660
1,983
554

Novus
$

10,739
1,266
40

8,300
8,686
17,074

18,000
1,100
27,000
42,669
102,189

20,200
100
600
91,658
114,754

39,200
36,100
101,600
200
134,074
333,371

5,010
5,300
14,400
28,408
65,163

54
2,521
14,500

1,508
17,793
82,888

1,965
(438)
113,227

11,644
21,674
300,053

2,166
2,875
60,122

14,500

8,000
6,500
14,500

$

$

$

82,888

$

82,888
-

$

82,888

$

18,300
94,927

59,927
35,000
94,927

$

$

$

300,053

300,053
300,053

$

$

$

60,122

60,122
60,122

Tangible assets acquired, net of liabilities assumed, were stated at fair value at the date of acquisition based on management's assessment.
The purchase price allocated to developed technology, trade names, non-compete agreements and customer relationships was based on
management's forecasted cash inflows and outflows and using a relief-from-royalty and a multi-period excess earnings method to calculate
the fair value of assets purchased. The developed technology is being amortized with the expense reflected in cost of goods sold in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income. Amortization expense related to trade names, the non-compete
agreement and customer relationships is reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings and Comprehensive Income. The deferred income tax liability represents the estimated future impact of adjustments for the cost
to be recognized upon the sale of acquired inventory that was written up to fair value and intangible asset amortization, both of which are
not deductible for income tax purposes, and the future tax benefit of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards which will be
deductible by the Company in future periods.

Note 3. Supplemental Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Information:
Available-For-Sale Investments:
The fair value of the Company's available-for-sale investments as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 were $66.1 million and $31.6
million, respectively. The increase was caused by the addition of $2.1 million in corporate bond securities held by Advanced Cell
Diagnostics (ACD), and the investment of $1.4 million of available cash in China into certificates of deposit. The remaining increase is
due to a $31.0 million change in the fair value of the Company's investment in ChemoCentryx, Inc. (CCXI). The amortized cost basis of
the Company's investment in CCXI as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 was $29.5 million.
The unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments for fiscal 2017 includes a $30.1 million unrealized gain related to our
investment in CCXI. As of June 30, 2017, the stock price of CCXI was $9.36 per share compared to our cost basis of $4.73 per share.
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Inventories:
Inventories consist of (in thousands):
June 30,
2017
Raw materials
Finished goods
Inventories, net

$

2016

22,074
38,077
60,151

$

$

18,685
38,417
57,102

$

Property and Equipment:
Property and equipment consist of (in thousands):
June 30,
2017
Cost:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and other
Property and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

$

2016

6,270 $
158,495
98,596
263,361
(128,237)
135,124 $

$

6,270
157,963
82,018
246,251
(113,889)
132,362

Intangibles assets were comprised of the following (in thousands):
June 30,
Useful Life
(years)
Developed technology
Trade names
Customer relationships
Non-compete agreement
Patents
Intangible assets
Accumulated amortization
Amortizable intangible assets, net
In process research and development
Intangible assets, net

9
5
9
3

10

15
20
16
5

2017
$

2016

276,959 $
87,092
204,243
3,264
633
572,191
(120,149)
452,042 $
452,042 $

$
$

120,611
63,706
191,118
3,284
378,719
(75,595)
303,124
7,400
310,524

Changes to the carrying amount of net intangible assets consist of (in thousands):
June 30,
2017
Beginning balance
Acquisitions
Other additions
Amortization expense
Currency translation
Ending balance

$

$

310,524 $
185,869
976
(44,393)
(934)
452,042 $

2016
292,839
53,500
(29,395)
(6,420)
310,524

Amortization expense related to technologies included in cost of sales was $23.1 million $11.1 million, and $9.5 million in fiscal 2017,
2016, and 2015, respectively. Amortization expense related to trade names, customer relationships, non-compete agreements, and patents
included in selling, general and administrative expense was $21.3 million, $18.3 million, and $16.7 million, in fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015
respectively.
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The estimated future amortization expense for intangible assets as of June 30, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

$

44,825
44,171
43,538
43,180
41,491
234,837
452,042

$

Changes in goodwill by reportable segment and in total consist of (in thousands):

June 30, 2015
Acquisitions (Note 2)
Prior year acquisitions (Note 2)
Currency translation
June 30, 2016
Acquisitions (Note 2)
Prior year acquisitions (Note 2)
Currency translation
June 30, 2017

Biotechnology
Diagnostics
$
115,198 $
60,601
42,669
(6,475)
$
108,723 $
103,270
147,484
(1,277)
$
254,930 $
103,270

Protein
Platforms
$
214,839 $
6,878
(2,828)
$
218,889 $

$

1,809
128
220,826

$

Total
390,638
49,547
(9,303)
430,882
147,484
1,809
(1,149)
579,026

Other Assets:
Other assets consist of (in thousands):
June 30,
2017
Investments
Other

$
$

2016
40,385
3,617
44,002

$
$

385
1,537
1,922

As of June 30, 2017, the Company had $44.0 million of other assets compared to $1.9 million as of June 30, 2016. The increase from June
30 is due to a $40.0 million investment in Astute Medical, Inc. during the second quarter of fiscal 2017. This investment is accounted for
under the cost-method as we own less than 20% of the outstanding stock and we concluded that we do not have significant influence.
Under the cost-method, the fair value is not estimated if there are no identified events or changes in circumstances that may have a
significant adverse effect on the fair value of the investment. No such events or changes in circumstances were identified during fiscal
2017.
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Supplemental cash flow information was as follows (in thousands):

2017
Income taxes paid
Interest paid
Non-cash activities:
Acquisition-related liabilities (1)

$

Year Ended June 30,
2016
42,900 $
44,900 $
7,452
1,661
32,856

42,259

2015
42,600
1,544
43,048

(1) Consists of holdback payments due at future dates and liabilities for contingent consideration. Further information regarding
liabilities for contingent consideration can be found in Note 4.
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Note 4. Fair Value Measurements:
The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, contingent consideration obligations, and long-term debt.
Fair value is defined as the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants as of the measurement date. This standard also establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value. This
standard maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable
inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability based on market
data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect our assumptions about the factors market participants
would use in valuing the asset or liability based upon the best information available in the circumstances.
The categorization of financial assets and liabilities within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and inputs (other than quoted prices) that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability and their fair values are determined using
pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is
unobservable. Level 3 may also include certain investment securities for which there is limited market activity or a decrease in the
observability of market pricing for the investments, such that the determination of fair value requires significant judgment or estimation.
The following tables provide information by level for financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in
thousands):
Total carrying
value as of
June 30, 2017
Assets
Equity securities (1)
Corporate bond securities (1)
Total Assets
Liabilities
Contingent Consideration

$

Fair Value Measurements Using
Inputs Considered as
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$

$

59,616
2,057
61,673

$

68,400

Total carrying
value as of
June 30, 2016
Assets
Equity securities (1)
Corporate bond securities (1)
Total Assets
Liabilities
Contingent Consideration

$

$

$

$

38,500
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$

$

2,057
2,057

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

68,400

Fair Value Measurements Using
Inputs Considered as
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

28,582
28,582

(1) Included in available for sale securities on the balance sheet

$

$

59,616
59,616

$

$

28,582
28,582

$

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

38,500

Our available for sale securities are measured at fair value using quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and are
therefore classified as Level 1 assets. We value our Level 2 assets using inputs that are based on market indices of similar assets within an
active market. All of our Level 2 assets have maturity dates of less than one year. There were no transfers into or out of our Level 2
financial assets during fiscal 2017.
The use of different assumptions, applying different judgment to matters that inherently are subjective and changes in future market
conditions could result in different estimates of fair value of our securities or contingent consideration, currently and in the future. If
market conditions deteriorate, we may incur impairment charges for securities in our investment portfolio. We may also incur changes to
our contingent consideration liability as discussed below.
In connection with the Advanced Cell Diagnostics (ACD) acquisition discussed in Note 2, as well as with the Zephyrus and CyVek
acquisitions which occurred in prior years, we are required to make contingent payments, subject to the entities achieving certain sales and
revenue thresholds. The contingent consideration payments are up to $35.0 million, $7.0 million and $75.0 million related to the CyVek,
Zephyrus, and ACD acquisitions, respectively. The fair value of the liabilities for the contingent payments recognized upon each
acquisition as part of the purchase accounting opening balance sheet totaled $78.5 million ($35.0 million for CyVek, $6.5 million for
Zephyrus, and $37.0 million for ACD) and was estimated by discounting to present value the probability-weighted contingent payments
expected to be made. Assumptions used in these calculation units sold, expected revenue, discount rate and various probability factors.
The ultimate settlement of contingent consideration could deviate from current estimates based on the actual results of these financial
measures. This liability is considered to be a Level 3 financial liability that is re-measured each reporting period. The change in fair value
of contingent consideration for these acquisitions is included in general and administrative expense.
In fiscal 2017, the Company determined that certain sales and revenue thresholds were met for CyVek, Zephyrus and ACD. Cash
payments totaling $28.5 million ($3.5 million for Zephyrus and $25.0 million for ACD) were made during the third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2017. Of the $28.5 million in total payments, $16.7 million is classified as financing on the statement of cash flows. The financing
component represents the portion of the total liability that was recognized at the acquisition date. The remaining $11.8 million is recorded
within operating cash flows as it represents the consideration liability that exceed the amount of the contingent consideration liability
recognized at the acquisition date.
The following table presents a reconciliation of the liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) (in thousands):

Fair value at the beginning of period
Purchase price contingent consideration (Note 2)
Payments
Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Contingent consideration payable

$

June 30,
2017
38,500
40,000
(28,500)
18,400
68,400

Fair value measurements of other financial instruments – The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of
each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate fair value.
Cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, accounts receivable, and accounts payable – The carrying amounts reported in the
consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these items.
Long-term debt – The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for the amount drawn on our line-of-credit facility
approximates fair value because our interest rate is variable and reflects current market rates.
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Note 5. Debt and Other Financing Arrangements:
The Company entered modified our revolving line-of-credit facility governed by a Credit Agreement (the Credit Agreement) on July 28,
2016. The Credit Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility of $400 million, which can be increased by an additional $200 million
subject to certain conditions. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement may be used for working capital and expenditures of the Company
and its subsidiaries, including financing permitted acquisitions. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement for base rate loans bear interest at
a variable rate equal to the greater of (i) the prime commercial rate, (ii) the per annum federal funds rate plus 0.5%, or (iii) LIBOR +
1.00% - 1.75% depending on the existing total leverage ratio of Debt to Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
(as defined in the Credit Agreement). The annualized fee for any unused portion of the credit facility is currently 25 basis points.
The Credit Agreement matures on July 28, 2021 and contains customary restrictive and financial covenants and customary events of
default. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance under the Credit Agreement was $343.5 million.
Note 6. Commitments and Contingencies:
The Company leases office and warehouse space, vehicles and various office equipment under operating leases. At June 30, 2017,
aggregate net minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable leases having an initial or remaining term of more than one year are
payable as follows (in thousands):
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

$

$

9,123
8,431
8,377
8,371
7,625
26,729
68,656

Total rent expense was approximately $9.8 million, $8.1 million, and $4.9 million for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015,
respectively.
The Company is routinely subject to claims and involved in legal actions which are incidental to the business of the Company. Although it
is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, management believes that any ultimate liability will not materially affect the
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.
Note 7. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:
Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, for the year ended June 30, 2017 consists of (in thousands):
Unrealized
Gains (Losses)
on Availablefor-Sale
Investments
Beginning balance
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Ending balance

$
$

(5,542)
24,531
18,989

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments
(64,863) $
(3,061)
(67,924) $

Total
(70,405)
21,470
(48,935)

Note 8. Earnings Per Share:
Basic net income per common share is calculated based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net income per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common and potentially
dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common shares of our stock result from dilutive common stock
options and restricted stock units. We use the treasury stock method to calculate the weighted-average shares used in the diluted earnings
per share computation. Under the treasury stock method, the proceeds from exercise of an option, the amount of compensation cost, if any,
for future service that we have not yet recognized, and the amount of estimated tax benefits that would be recorded in paid-in capital, if
any, when the option is exercised are assumed to be used to repurchase shares in the current period.
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The number of shares used to calculate earnings per share are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Net earnings used for basic and diluted earnings per share

$

Weighted average shares used in basic computation
Dilutive stock options
Weighted average shares used in diluted computation

76,086

$

37,313
187
37,500

Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

$
$

2.04
2.03

104,476

2015
$

37,194
132
37,326
$
$

2.81
2.80

107,735
37,096
135
37,231

$
$

2.90
2.89

The dilutive effect of stock options in the above table excludes all options for which the aggregate exercise proceeds exceeded the average
market price for the period. The number of potentially dilutive option shares excluded from the calculation was 2.0 million, 1.2 million,
and 516,000 at June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Note 9. Share-based Compensation and Other Benefit Plans:
The cost of employee services received in exchange for the award of equity instruments is based on the fair value of the award at the date
of grant. Compensation cost is recognized using a straight-line method over the vesting period and is net of estimated forfeitures. Stock
option exercises and stock awards are satisfied through the issuance of new shares.
Equity incentive plan: The Company's Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the A&R 2010 Plan) provides for the granting
of incentive and nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units and stock
appreciation rights. There are 3.8 million shares of common stock authorized for grant under the A&R 2010 Plan. At June 30, 2017, there
were 620,000 shares of common stock available for grant under the A&R 2010 Plan. The maximum term of incentive options granted
under the A&R 2010 Plan is ten years. The A&R 2010 amends and restates the Company's 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2010 Plan).
The A&R 2010 Plan replaced the Company's 1998 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (the 1998 Plan). The A&R 2010 Plan and the 1998
Plan (collectively, the Plans) are administered by the Board of Directors and its Executive Compensation Committee, which determine the
persons who are to receive awards under the Plans, the number of shares subject to each award and the term and exercise price of each
award. The number of shares of common stock subject to outstanding awards as of June 30, 2017 under the A&R 2010 Plan and the 1998
Plan were 2.8 million and 50,000, respectively.

53

Stock option activity under the Plans for the three years ended June 30, 2017, consists of the following (shares in thousands):
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Shares
Outstanding at June 30, 2014
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Outstanding at June 30, 2015
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Outstanding at June 30, 2016
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Outstanding at June 30, 2017
Exercisable at June 30:
2015
2016
2017

811
600
(133)
(141)
1,137 $
805
(54)
(69)
1,819 $
1,135
(70)
(63)
2,821 $

547
596
843

Weighted
Avg.
Contractual
Life (Yrs.)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
(millions)

72.11
93.98
92.85
69.31
81.57
105.16
99.68
69.82
91.91
107.42
99.11
71.81
98.42

5.1

$

53.8

72.72
75.74
82.93

4.0

$

29.1

The fair values of options granted under the Plans were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following assumptions used:

2017
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rates
Expected lives (years)

Year Ended June 30,
2016

1.2%
21% - 24%
1.0% - 1.9%
5

1.2%
20% - 23%
1.2% - 1.9%
5

2015
1.3%
18% - 21%
1.3% - 2.2%
5

The dividend yield is based on the Company's historical annual cash dividend divided by the market value of the Company's common
stock. The expected annualized volatility is based on the Company's historical stock price over a period equivalent to the expected life of
the option granted. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury constant maturity interest rates with a term consistent with the
expected life of the options granted.
The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $18.21, $18.50, and $15.01 respectively. The
total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $2.3 million, $2.4 million, and $3.5 million respectively.
The total fair value of options vested during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $5.0 million, $2.0 million, and $2.3 million respectively.
In fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, 23,965, 19,994, and 9,000 restricted common stock shares were granted at weighted average grant date fair
values of $104.94, $99.53, and $91.78 per share, respectively. Non-vested restricted common stock shares at June 30, 2017, 2016 and
2015 were 31,647, 22,545, and 19,102, respectively.
In fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015, 64,931, 35,083, and 36,192 restricted stock units were granted at a weighted average grant date fair value
of $109.36, $105.01, and $94.13, respectively. The restricted stock units vest over a three-year period. In fiscal 2017, 4,333 restricted stock
units were forfeited.
Stock-based compensation cost of $14.6 million, $9.4 million, and $5.9 million was included in selling, general and administrative
expense in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The income tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation costs was $0.5
million, $0.6 million, and $0.6 million in fiscal 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. As of June 30, 2017, there was $26.0 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options, non-vested restricted stock units and non-vested restricted stock
which will be expensed in fiscal 2018 through 2021. The weighted average period over which the compensation cost is expected to be
recognized is 2.3 years.
Employee stock purchase plan: In fiscal year 2015, the Company established the Bio-Techne Corporation 2014 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (ESPP), which was approved by the Company's shareholders on October 30, 2014, and which is designed to comply with IRS
provisions governing employee stock purchase plans. 200,000 shares were allocated to the ESPP. The Company recorded expense of
$213,000, $144,000 and $39,000 expense for the ESPP in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Profit sharing and savings plans: The Company has profit sharing and savings plans for its U.S. employees, which conform to IRS
provisions for 401(k) plans. The Company makes matching contributions to the Plan. The Company has recorded an expense for
contributions to the plans of $2.2 million, $1.2 million, and $1.1 million for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.
The Company operates defined contribution pension plans for its U.K. employees. The Company has recorded an expense for
contributions to the plans of $0.8 million, $0.8, and $0.7 million for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Performance incentive programs: In fiscal 2017, under certain employment agreements and a Management Incentive Plan available to
executive officers and certain management personnel, the Company recorded cash bonuses of $4.7 million, granted options for 896,778
shares of common stock, issued 16,653 restricted common shares and 39,931 restricted stock units. The Company recorded cash bonuses
of $4.2 million and $1.9 million, and granted options for 620,917 and 322,000 shares of common stock for the years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively. In addition, 11,522 restricted common stock shares and 26,583 restricted stock units and were issued in fiscal 2016.
Note 10. Income Taxes:
The provisions for income taxes consist of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
Earnings before income taxes consist of:
Domestic
Foreign

$
$

Taxes on income consist of:
Currently payable:
Federal
State
Foreign
Net deferred:
Federal
State
Foreign
Total tax expense

81,721
30,240
111,961

$

28,462
4,051
8,212

$

$

$

120,154
27,327
147,481

$

34,805
2,958
7,579

$

(901)
(968)
(2,981)
35,875 $

$

2015

$

121,765
32,397
154,162

28,220
6,165
10,704

1,906
(428)
(3,815)
43,005 $

4,401
292
(3,355)
46,427

The following is a reconciliation of the federal tax calculated at the statutory rate of 35% to the actual income taxes provided
(in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017

2015

Income tax expense at federal statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Qualified production activity deduction
Non-taxable gain on investment
Research and development tax credit
Contingent consideration adjustment
Foreign tax rate differences
Other, net

$

39,186 $
2,158
(3,820)
(1,519)
4,541
(5,143)
472

51,618 $
1,852
(3,932)
(1,550)
(4,639)
(344)

53,957
4,762
(3,140)
(2,905)
(912)
(4,059)
(1,276)

Income tax expense

$

35,875

43,005

46,427
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$

$

The effective rate for the year ended June 30, 2017 increased by 2.8% compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily due to
unfavorable discrete events in fiscal 2017 related to the revaluation of contingent consideration which is not a tax deductible expense.
The Company recognized net expense related to discrete tax items of $3.8 million in fiscal 2017, including $4.5 million in expense related
to the revaluation of contingent consideration which is not a tax deductible expense. In the year ended June 30, 2015, as a result of the
recent acquisitions, the rate reflects an increase for state tax expense as well as a resulting provision to return true-up from fiscal 2014. The
increase is offset by the non-taxable gain which was a result of purchasing the remaining interest in CyVek. In addition the Company’s
R&D Europe subsidiary declared and paid a dividend of £46.6 million which resulted in a tax benefit of approximately $1.7 million.
The effective rate for the year ended June 30, 2016 decreased by 0.9% compared to the prior year. The rate decrease was primarily driven
by additional R&D credit benefit due to the retroactive reinstatement of the credit under the Protecting Americans from Tax Hikes Act of
2015, an increase in the foreign rate benefit due to the reduction in the UK income tax rate and a reduction in state tax related to the prior
year. These decreases were partially offset by less of a foreign tax credit benefit than in the prior year and the non-recurrence of a nontaxable gain.
Temporary differences comprising deferred taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in thousands):
June 30
2017
Inventory
Net operating loss carryovers
Tax credit carryovers
Excess tax basis in equity investments
Deferred compensation
Net unrealized loss on available for sale investment
Other
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets

$

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments
Intangible asset amortization
Depreciation
Other
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

$

2016
9,415 $
24,617
6,386
4,381
9,052
9,937
(3,341)
60,447

9,768
26,556
3,197
4,544
5,912
329
7,421
(7,201)
50,526

(11,153)
(162,460)
(5,628)
(1,802)
(181,043)
(120,596) $

(107,200)
(5,132)
(1,031)
(113,363)
(62,837)

A deferred tax valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The valuation allowance as of June 30, 2017 was $3.3 million, a decrease of $3.9 million from the prior year. The decrease was
driven by a decrease in the valuation allowance for the Company’s equity investments. The valuation allowance as of June 30, 2016 was
$7.2 million, an increase of $4.7 million over prior year. This increase included a $5.0 million change related to an equity investment and
was recorded through other comprehensive income and was partially offset by a decrease of $0.3 million primarily related to the
expiration of state net operating loss carryforwards and research and development credits.
As of June 30, 2017, approximately $2.7 million of the valuation allowance relates to certain foreign and state tax net operating loss and
state credit carryforwards that existed at the date the Company acquired ACD, Novus, ProteinSimple and CyVek as well as immaterial
amounts generated after the acquisitions. The remainder of the valuation allowance was for certain state tax credit carryovers generated or
acquired in the current or prior fiscal years. Approximately $2.0 million of the valuation allowance as of June 30, 2016 was for certain
foreign and state tax net operating loss and state credit carryforwards that existed at the date the Company acquired Novus, ProteinSimple,
and CyVek or have been generated after the acquisitions. The remainder of the valuation allowance was for certain state tax credit
carryovers generated or acquired in current or prior fiscal years. The Company believes it is more likely than not that these tax carryovers
will not be realized.
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As of June 30, 2017, the Company has federal operating loss carryforwards of approximately $53.4 million and state operating loss
carryforwards of $84.0 million from its acquisitions of ACD, ProteinSimple and CyVek, which are not limited under IRC Section 382. As
of June 30, 2017, the Company has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $4.1 million. The net operating loss carryforwards expire
between fiscal 2018 and 2035. The Company has a deferred tax asset of $21.2 million, net of the valuation allowance discussed above,
related to the net operating loss carryovers. As of June 30, 2017, the Company has federal and state tax credit carryforwards of $3.7
million and $2.7 million, respectively. The federal tax credit carryforwards expire between 2018 and 2035. A majority of the state credit
carryforwards have no expiry date. The Company has a deferred tax asset of $5.7 million, net of the valuation allowance discussed above,
related to the tax credit carryovers.
The Company has not recognized a deferred tax liability for unremitted earnings of approximately $68.9 million from its foreign
operations because its subsidiaries have invested or will invest the undistributed earnings indefinitely, or the earnings will be remitted in a
tax-neutral transaction. Generally, such amounts become subject to United States taxation upon the remittance of dividends and under
other circumstances. It is not practical to estimate the amount of the deferred income tax liabilities related to investments in these foreign
subsidiaries.
The Company's unrecognized tax benefits at June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, including accrued interest and penalties, were not material.
The Company does not believe it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase in
the next twelve months. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and several
jurisdictions outside the U.S. The Company's federal returns are subject to tax assessment for 2014 and subsequent years. State and foreign
income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after filing of the respective return. The state
impact of any federal changes remains subject to examination by various states for a period of up to one year after formal notification to
the states.
Note 11. Segment Information:
The Company has three reportable segments based on the nature of its products; they are Biotechnology, Protein Platforms and
Diagnostics.
The Company's Biotechnology reporting segment develops, manufactures and sells proteins, antibodies, immunoassays, flow cytometry
products, intracellular signaling products, and biologically active chemical compounds used in biological research. No customer in the
Biotechnology segment accounted for more than 10% of the segment’s net sales for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015.
The Company's Protein Platforms segment develops and commercializes proprietary systems and consumables for protein analysis. This
segment was formed in fiscal 2015 with the acquisitions of ProteinSimple and CyVek. No customer in the Protein Platforms segment
accounted for more than 10% of the segment’s net sales for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.
The Company's Diagnostics reporting segment develops and manufactures a range of controls and calibrators used with diagnostic
equipment and as proficiency testing tools, as well as other reagents incorporated into diagnostic kits. One customer accounted for
approximately 12% and 13% of the Diagnostics segments net sales for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2015, respectively. No customer
in the Diagnostics segment accounted for more than 10% of the segment’s net sales for the years ended June 30, 2016.
There are no concentrations of business transacted with a particular customer or supplier or concentrations of revenue from a particular
product or geographic area that would severely impact the Company in the near term.
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Following is financial information relating to the operating segments (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2016

2017
External sales
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Intersegment
Consolidated net sales

$

$

Operating Income
Biotechnology
Protein Platforms
Diagnostics
Segment operating income
Costs recognized upon sale of acquired inventory
Amortization of intangibles
Stock based compensation
Acquisition related expenses
Corporate general, selling and administrative expenses
Consolidated operating income

$

$

2015

364,504 $
91,464
107,139
(104)
563,003 $

317,340 $
77,324
104,484
(125)
499,023 $

308,437
66,249
77,866
(306)
452,246

175,163 $
9,648
28,575
213,386
(3,037)
(44,393)
(14,631)
(25,789)
(4,952)
120,584 $

168,613 $
3,592
30,412
202,617
(5,431)
(29,395)
(9,430)
(2,761)
(5,007)
150,593 $

165,226
4,469
23,981
193,676
(6,952)
(26,169)
(5,957)
(4,519)
(3,056)
147,023

The Company has some integrated facilities that serve multiple segments. As such, asset and capital expenditure information by reportable
segment has not been provided and is not available, since the Company does not produce or utilize such information internally. In
addition, although depreciation and amortization expense is a component of each reportable segment’s operating results, it is not discretely
identifiable.
Following is financial information relating to geographic areas (in thousands):

2017
External sales
United States
EMEA, excluding U.K.
U.K.
APAC, excluding Greater China
Greater China
Rest of world
Total external sales

$

$

Long-lived assets
United States and Canada
Europe
China
Total long-lived assets

$

$

Year Ended June 30,
2016

313,195
125,126
28,401
41,463
39,078
15,740
563,003

$

119,859
14,100
1,165
135,124

$

$

$

2015

275,859
103,060
28,307
38,137
36,199
17,461
499,023

$

116,830
14,423
1,109
132,362

$

$

$

245,217
104,178
32,309
24,015
34,933
11,594
452,246

117,224
11,239
1,286
129,749

External sales are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer or distributor. Long-lived assets are comprised of land,
buildings and improvements and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and other assets.
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Note 12. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

2017
Net sales
Cost of sales (1)
Net earnings (1)

First
Quarter
$
130,581
43,236
$
18,843

Second
Quarter
$
131,807
43,664
$
7,467

Third
Quarter
$
144,037
47,355
$
22,167

Fourth
Quarter
$
156,578
54,207
$
27,609

$
$

Year
563,003
188,462
76,086

Earnings per common share: (1)
Basic
Diluted

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

2.04
2.03

0.51
0.50

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

0.20
0.20

0.59
0.59

0.74
0.74

37,281
37,473

37,308
37,478

37,320
37,494

37,344
37,546

37,313
37,500

2016
Net sales
Cost of sales
Net earnings

First
Quarter
$
112,381
36,990
$
22,707

Second
Quarter
$
120,907
39,320
$
25,851

Third
Quarter
$
130,973
40,984
$
30,291

Fourth
Quarter
$
134,762
45,070
$
25,626

$
$

Year
499,023
162,364
104,476

Earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

2.81
2.80

(in thousands, except per share data)

0.61
0.61

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

37,169
37,315

0.70
0.69

37,189
37,301

0.81
0.81

37,196
37,299

0.69
0.69

37,224
37,384

37,194
37,326

(1) During the fourth quarter, management identified certain errors related to purchase accounting items for the ACD acquisition
recorded during the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. These errors were corrected by adjusting previously reported amounts in the
first, second and third quarter of fiscal year 2017. These items impact the cost recognized upon the sale of acquired inventory,
other acquisition related costs recorded within selling, general and administrative costs, interest expense, and income taxes and
resulted in a favorable impact as compared to previously reported results and as outlined in the table below.

(in thousands)
2017
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative
Interest expense
Income taxes
Incremental net earnings

$

First
Quarter
(2,875) $
(839)
57
1,097
2,560

Second
Quarter
(3,061) $
1,326
86
495
1,154

Third
Quarter
(2,499)
1,302
86
333
778

We concluded that these errors were not material to each of the respective periods; however, we have elected to report the
corrected amount for the fourth quarter. The amounts recorded in this table for the previously reported 2017 quarterly information
have been revised for these updates. We will revise the fiscal year 2017 quarterly reported information in future filings to reflect
the properly stated amounts. These identified items have no impact to year to date GAAP results.
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Note 13. Subsequent Events:
In July 2017, management determined that CyVek achieved the required revenue threshold for the additional consideration payment
discussed in Note 4 resulting in a payment of $34.0 million to the former owners.
On September 5, 2017, Bio-Techne acquired Trevigen Inc for approximately $11.0 million. The purchase accounting for this acquisition is
in progress.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Bio-Techne Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bio-Techne Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2017 and 2016,
and the related consolidated statements of earnings and comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the fiscal
years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2017. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BioTechne Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
fiscal years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2017, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Bio-Techne
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
September 7, 2017 expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
September 7, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Bio-Techne Corporation:
We have audited Bio-Techne Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Bio-Techne Corporation's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Material
weaknesses related to the Company not maintaining effective monitoring or information and communication processes, and not having
effective control activities over the establishment of general information technology controls for certain of its information technology
platforms, have been identified and included in management’s assessment. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Bio-Techne Corporation and subsidiaries
as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of earnings and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2017. These material weaknesses were considered in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the fiscal year 2017 consolidated financial statements, and
this report does not affect our report dated September 7, 2017, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.
In our opinion, because of the effect of the aforementioned material weaknesses on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, Bio-Techne Corporation has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, based on
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).
The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting excluded the operations of Space
Import-Export, Srl (Space) and Advanced Cell Diagnostics (ACD), which were acquired on July 1, 2016 and August 1, 2016, respectively.
Space and ACD represented 22.9% of Bio-Techne Corporation’s total assets and 7.5% of its total revenues as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Bio-Techne Corporation also excluded an evaluation of the
internal control over financial reporting of Space and ACD.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
September 7, 2017
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), management, with the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that due to material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting described below in
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June
30, 2017.
Notwithstanding the identified material weaknesses, management believes the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K fairly present, in all material respects, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows as of and for the
periods presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
b.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017. In making this assessment, our management used the
criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in "Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013)," issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accordingly, even effective internal control
over financial reporting can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving its control objectives.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.
We acquired Space Import-Export, Srl ("Space") on July 1, 2016 and Advanced Cell Diagnostics ("ACD") on August 1, 2016. Space and
ACD represented approximately 22.9% of our total assets and 7.5% of our total revenues as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017. We
excluded internal control over financial reporting associated with Space and ACD from our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017.
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Based on our assessment which used the criteria noted above, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was not effective as of June 30, 2017 due to the material weaknesses described as follows:
The Company did not maintain effective monitoring or information and communication processes. Specifically, the Company
did not have:
●
●
●

Sufficient monitoring of the operation of internal control related to general information technology controls (GITCs) at the
locations we have acquired since fiscal year 2013 that are subject to management's assessment.
Effective GITCs implemented timely at every location to allow adequate time for the effective operation of certain IT
dependent manual controls primarily in the revenue process, inventory process, and expenditures process.
Sufficient flow of information from all components, including information regarding the progress made on control
implementation and control testing results to allow for effective monitoring.

As a consequence, the Company did not have effective control activities over the establishment of GITCs for certain of its
information technology ("IT") platforms primarily at the locations it has acquired since fiscal year 2013 that are subject to
management's assessment, including instances of ineffective application change controls, user access provisioning, and user
access rights review. Due to the impact of these ineffective GITCs, certain control activities including manual controls that rely
on data produced by and maintained within these IT system applications, were also ineffective, potentially impacting all
financial statement accounts.
Although no material misstatements were identified in our consolidated financial statements, these control deficiencies create a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. We have concluded that the deficiencies represent material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and our
internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of June 30, 2017.
The Company's internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered
public company accounting firm. KPMG LLP's report contains an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting, which is included in Item 8 in this Form 10-K.
c.

Remedial Measures

During the current year, management implemented significant changes to improve procedures relating to our internal control structure ,
including our ability to rely on system generated information. These changes included the implementation of a new ERP system in
Minneapolis on July 1, 2016. Additional corporate resources were added to the Controllership function during the second quarter to
strengthen the controls within the corporate financial reporting processes as well as controls over complex transactions and to the Internal
Audit function during the third quarter to increase our level of control monitoring. Management also completed a full reassessment of risk
which resulted in the design and global rollout of a new GITC control framework with updated standard operating procedures, a redesign
and reassessment of all manual controls, including IT dependent manual controls, identification of automated configuration controls, and a
reassessment of users' access rights to each of our IT systems. Newly designed controls began to be implemented during the second
quarter of the fiscal year. However, the complete design reassessment was not completed until the end of the third quarter, which resulted
in certain controls and certain access right changes not being implemented until the fourth quarter. Therefore, although we believe we
have made significant progress in changing the design of our controls as of June 30, 2017, we have not had adequate time to validate the
design and operating effectiveness of all of our controls in accordance with our internal policies.
With the oversight of the Company 's Audit Committee, management is taking steps intended to address the underlying causes of the
material weaknesses identified in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting primarily through the following
remediation activities:
●

●
●

●

Expanding our Internal Audit function to provide additional resources for internal control monitoring with a focus on our GITC
controls, especially for the locations we have acquired since fiscal year 2013, as these entities often have less sophisticated IT
systems which increases the need for oversight and additional controls.
Increasing the frequency of control testing to validate that we have achieved a sustained level of operating effectiveness in
accordance with our internal policies.
Providing additional training to local management teams regarding the flow of information and expectations for timely
reporting of the status of control implementation, as well as documentation expectations for key controls that involve IT
dependent information and/or involve judgment and estimates. These efforts will improve consistency of communications
across our components as well as standardization of our documentation to allow for better monitoring.
Reorganizing responsibilities within the Corporate Accounting team to 1) allow for the implementation of additional quarterly
procedures designed to promote improvements in the flow of information between component locations and Corporate
management and 2) support the transition of newly acquired entities, currently not within the scope of management's
assessment, into our control framework.
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The material weaknesses will not be considered remediated until the applicable controls operate for a sufficient period of time and
management has concluded, through testing, that these controls are operating effectively. We believe this remediation will occur in fiscal
year 2018 and will strengthen our internal control over financial reporting and will prevent a reoccurrence of the material weaknesses
described above.
d.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the Company's most recently completed fiscal quarter other than those described in the Remedial Measures section
above that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

65

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Other than "Executive Officers of the Registrant" which is set forth at the end of Item 1 in Part I of this report, the information required by
Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled "Election of Directors," "Principle Shareholders" and "Additional
Corporate Governance Matters" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year for which this
report is filed.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled "Election of Directors" and "Executive
Compensation" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year for which this report is filed.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Principal Shareholders" and "Management
Shareholdings" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year for which this report is filed.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Election of Directors" and "Additional
Corporate Governance Matters" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year for which this
report is filed.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled "Audit Matters" in the Company's Proxy
Statement for its 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year for which this report is filed.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
A. (1) List of Financial Statements.
The following Consolidated Financial Statements are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2017 and 2016
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

A. (2) Financial Statement Schedules.
All financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not material or the required information is shown in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
A. (3) Exhibits.
See "Exhibit Index" immediately following signature page.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
BIO-TECHNE CORPORATION

Date: September 7, 2017

/s/ Charles Kummeth
By: Charles Kummeth
Its: President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Date

Signature and Title

September 7, 2017

/s/ Robert V. Baumgartner
Robert V. Baumgartner
Chairman of the Board and Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Roger C. Lucas, Ph.D.
Dr. Roger C. Lucas
Vice Chairman and Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Randolph C. Steer, Ph.D., M.D.
Dr. Randolph C. Steer, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Charles A. Dinarello, M.D.
Dr. Charles A. Dinarello, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Karen A. Holbrook, Ph.D.
Dr. Karen A. Holbrook, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ John L. Higgins
John L. Higgins, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Roeland Nusse, Ph.D.
Dr. Roeland Nusse, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Harold J. Wiens
Harold J. Wiens, Director

September 7, 2017

/s/ Charles Kummeth
Charles Kummeth, Director and Chief Executive
Officer (principal executive officer)

September 7, 2017

/s/ James Hippel
James Hippel, Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
for Form 10-K for the 2017 Fiscal Year

Exhibit
Number
3.1

Description

3.2

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company-incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company’s Form 10-K
dated August 29, 2016*

10.1**

1998 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan--incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 1998*

10.2**

Form of Stock Option Agreement for 1998 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan--incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998*

10.3**

Management Incentive Plan by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2013.*

10.4**

Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated October 30, 2015*

10.5**

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015*

10.6**

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015*

10.7**

Form of the Performance Unit Award Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015.*

10.8**

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015.*

10.9**

Form of Employee Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015.*

10.10**

Form of Director Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan - incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Form 8-K dated October 30, 2015.*

10.11**

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Charles Kummeth—attached as Exhibit 10.11 hereto.

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company--incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's
Form 10-Q dated February 9, 2015.*
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.12**

Form of Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Executive Officers of the Company other than the CEO—
attached as Exhibit 10.12 hereto.

10.13

Agreement of Investment and Merger between the Company, Research and Diagnostics Systems, Inc., Cayenne Merger Sub,
Inc., CyVek, Inc. and Citron Capital Limited dated April 1, 2014--incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the Company's
Form 10-K dated August 29, 2014*

10.14

Credit Agreement by and among the Company, the Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders party thereto, and BMO Harris Bank
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and a lender dated July 28, 2016--incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company's Form 8-K dated August 2, 2016*

10.15

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into with each director and executive officer of the Company--incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's Form 10-K dated August 29, 2014*

10.16

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, Aero Merger Sub Inc., Advanced Cell Diagnostics, Inc. and Fortis
Advisors, LLC as the Securityholders’ Representative, dated July 6, 2016 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated July 7, 2016*

21

Subsidiaries of the Company.

23

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101

The following financial statements from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017,
formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and
Comprehensive Income, (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity, (iv)
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

------------* Incorporated by reference; SEC File No. 000-17272
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Exhibits for Form 10-K have not been included in this report. Exhibits have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Upon request to the Investor Relations Department, Bio-Techne Corporation will furnish, without charge, any such exhibits as well as
copies of periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Exhibit 10.11
AMENDED AND RESTATED
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This Executive Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into between Bio-Techne Corporation, a
Minnesota corporation (“Bio-Techne”), and Charles Kummeth (“Employee”) (each may be referred to individually as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”).
RECITALS
Whereas, Bio-Techne wishes to employ Employee under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, and Employee
wishes to accept such employment under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants contained herein, Bio-Techne and Employee
agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
TERM OF EMPLOYMENT: DUTIES AND SUPERVISION
1.1)
Parties. The Parties to this Agreement are Employee and Bio-Techne. As used herein, Bio-Techne refers to Bio-Techne
Corporation and its subsidiaries, including but not limited to Research and Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (“R&D”), unless specifically provided
otherwise. All of the rights and obligations created by this Agreement may be performed by or enforced by or against Bio-Techne or R&D
or any other appropriate Bio-Techne subsidiary.
1 . 2 )
Employment and Term of Employment. Bio-Techne hereby employs Employee and Employee hereby accepts
employment as its Chief Executive Officer on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Employee’s employment under this
Agreement will begin on August 1, 2017 and will terminate when terminated by either Party pursuant to Section 4 hereof.
1.3)

Duties and Supervision.

A.
During the term of his employment, Employee agrees to devote his full business and professional time, energy,
diligence and best efforts to the business and affairs of Bio-Techne, and to perform such services and duties in connection with the
business and affairs of Bio-Techne (i) as are customarily incident to the position of CEO and (ii) as may reasonably be assigned or
delegated to him from time to time by the Board of Directors of Bio-Techne and/or its designee.
B.
Employee agrees to be subject to Bio-Techne’s control, rules, regulations, policies and programs. Employee
further agrees to carry on all correspondence, publicity and advertising in Bio-Techne’s name and not enter into any contract on behalf of
Bio-Techne except as expressly authorized by Bio-Techne.
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C.
Notwithstanding 1.3 (a) and (b), Bio-Techne agrees that Employee may serve as a member of the Board of
Directors for up to two for-profit entities, provided that it is not for any business competitive with any product or services marketed or
planned for marketing by Bio-Techne as outlined in Section 3.5 of this Agreement.
ARTICLE 2.
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
2.1)
Base Salary. Bio-Techne will pay Employee as base compensation for services to be rendered hereunder an annual base
salary as established by Bio-Techne from time to time, to be paid in accordance with the usual payroll practices of Bio-Techne. The base
annual salary amount will be reviewed and adjusted by Bio-Techne’s Board of Directors or its designated committee (the “Board”) from
time to time (but no less than annually) in its sole discretion. The base annual salary will be inclusive of all applicable income, Social
Security, and other taxes and charges that are required by law to be withheld by Bio-Techne or that are requested to be withheld by
Employee.
2 . 2 )
Management Incentive Plan. Employee shall be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus commensurate with his
position and level in accordance with Bio-Techne’s Management Incentive Plan or its equivalent (the “Management Incentive Plan”). The
Management Incentive Plan contemplates an annual cash bonus based on a percentage of base salary and the achievement of annual
performance targets, both of which are established and approved by the Board from time to time. After receipt of Bio-Techne’s final audit
report of the applicable fiscal year, the Board will determine and certify in writing the degree to which the annual performance targets
have been achieved and calculate the portion of Employee’s annual cash bonus (if any) that will be paid. If earned, the annual cash bonus
will be paid as soon as administratively practicable thereafter, but in no event later than would be permitted under the short-term deferral
period defined by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Code Section 409A”).
2.3)
Long-term Equity Awards . Employee will be eligible to participate in and receive periodic equity-based compensation
awards commensurate with his position and level pursuant to any Bio-Techne equity-based compensation plan or program made available
generally to executive officers; provided that the amount, timing, and other terms of any future awards shall be determined by the Board,
in its sole discretion.
2.4)

Miscellaneous Benefits. Bio-Techne will provide Employee the following additional benefits:

A.
Reimbursement in accordance with Bio-Techne’s standard reimbursement policies in effect from time to time for
ordinary, necessary and reasonable out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by Employee in performing his duties for Bio-Techne so long
as properly substantiated.
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B.
Paid vacation of four (4) weeks per calendar year, to be taken at such times as selected by Employee and as
approved by the Board of Directors or its designee. Carryover, forfeiture or payout of unused vacation time from period to period or upon
termination of employment shall be in accordance with Bio-Techne’s policies that may be in effect from time to time.
C.
Reimbursement for reasonable annual premium costs paid by Executive for Employee to have supplemental life
insurance coverage in a maximum amount that when aggregated with the life insurance coverage provided to Employee under BioTechne's benefit plans is three times Employee's base salary or less. Such reimbursement amount shall include an additional reasonable
gross up amount to cover taxes incurred by Employee from receipt of the payment under this Section 2.4.C.
D.
Reimbursement for reasonable annual premium costs paid by Employee for Employee to have supplemental longterm and short-term disability insurance coverage in a maximum amount that when aggregated with the disability insurance coverage
provided to Employee under Bio-Techne's benefit plans is 60% and 70%, respectively, of Employee's base salary or less. Such
reimbursement amount shall include an additional reasonable gross up amount to cover taxes incurred by Employee from receipt of the
payment under this Section 2.4.D.
E.
Reimbursement for the reasonable cost of an annual physical examination at a location of Employee’s choice, so
long as Employee provides proper documentation of the cost of such physical examination.
2.5)
Other Employee Compensation and Benefits. In addition to the compensation and benefits provided to Employee in
Sections 2.1 through 2.4 hereof, Employee will be entitled to participate in other employee compensation and benefit plans from time to
time established by Bio-Techne and made available generally to all employees of the hiring entity to the extent that Employee’s age, tenure
and title make him eligible to receive those benefits. Employee will participate in such compensation and benefit plans on an appropriate
and comparable basis determined by the Board by reference to all other employees eligible for participation. With regard to all insured
benefits to be provided to Employee, benefits shall be subject to due application by Employee. Bio-Techne has no obligation to pay insured
benefits directly and such benefits are payable to Employee only by the insurers in accordance with their policies. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended to or shall in any way restrict Bio-Techne’s right to amend, modify or terminate any of its benefits or benefit plans
during the term of Employee’s employment. Employee shall not be reimbursed for unused personal days or sick days upon his termination
from employment regardless of the reason, whether voluntary or involuntary.
2.6)
Recoupment. The incentive compensation payable to Employee pursuant to Sections 2.2 and 2.3 hereof shall be subject
to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment as and to the extent required by the applicable provisions of any law (including without
limitation Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder),
government regulation or stock exchange listing requirement, or clawback policy or provision implemented by Bio-Techne pursuant to
such law, regulation or listing requirement.
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ARTICLE 3.
INVENTIONS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND UNFAIR COMPETITION
3.1)
For the purpose of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” means any information not generally known and
proprietary to Bio-Techne and includes, without limitation, the following: all information and data developed or acquired by Employee in
the course of employment with Bio-Techne; data or conclusions or opinions formed by Employee in the course of employment; policies
and procedures; manuals; trade secrets; methods, procedures, or techniques pertaining to the business of Bio-Techne or any customer of
Bio-Techne; specifications for products or services; systems; price lists; marketing plans; sales or service analyses; financial information;
customer names or other information; vendor names or other information; employee names or other information; research and
development data; diagrams; drawings; media; notes, memoranda, notebooks, and all other records or documents that are handled, seen, or
used by Employee in the course of employment. Confidential Information may be contained in the Bio-Techne’s product designs,
tolerances, tooling, marketing plans or proposals, customer lists, the particular needs requirements of customers, and the identity of
customers, and potential customers. Information shall be treated as Confidential Information irrespective of its source and all information
that is identified as being “confidential” or “trade secret” shall be presumed to be Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Confidential Information does not include any information that is (i) in the public domain or enters the public domain through
no violation of obligations Employee owes to Bio-Techne; (ii) disclosed to Employee other than as a result of Employee’s capacity as an
employee of Bio-Techne by a third-party not subject to maintain the information in confidence; or (iii) already known by Employee other
than as a result of Employee’s past relationship with Bio-Techne (or its predecessors) and is evidenced by written documentation existing
prior to such disclosure. Specific technical and business information shall not be deemed to be within the preceding exceptions merely
because it is embraced by more general technical or business information within such exceptions, nor shall a combination of features be
deemed to be within such exceptions merely because the individual features are within such exceptions.
3.2)
For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Invention” means ideas, discoveries and improvements whether or not shown
or described in writing or reduced to practice and whether patentable or not, relating to any of Bio-Techne’s present or future
manufacturing, sales, research or other business activities, or investigations or reasonably foreseeable business interest of Bio-Techne
during this employment.
3.3)
During employment with Bio-Techne and following its termination for any reason, Employee shall hold in strictest
confidence and will never, without prior written authorization of Bio-Techne or its legal counsel or as may otherwise be required by law or
any legal process, any statutory obligation or order of any court or statutory tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or as is necessary in
connection with any adversarial proceeding against Bio-Techne (in which case Employee will use his reasonable best efforts in
cooperating with Bio-Techne in obtaining a protective order against disclosure by a court of competent jurisdiction), disclose, assign,
transfer, convey, communicate or use any of such Confidential Information for his own or another’s benefit or permit the same to be used
in competition with Bio-Techne.
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3.4)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or otherwise, nothing shall limit Employee’s rights under
applicable law to provide truthful information to any governmental entity or to file a charge with or participate in an investigation
conducted by any governmental entity. Employee is hereby notified that the immunity provisions in Section 1833 of title 18 of the United
States Code provide that an individual cannot be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any
disclosure of a trade secret that is made (1) in confidence to federal, state or local government officials, either directly or indirectly, or to an
attorney, and is solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of the law, (2) under seal in a complaint or other
document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, or (3) to Employee’s attorney in connection with a lawsuit for retaliation for reporting a
suspected violation of law (and the trade secret may be used in the court proceedings for such lawsuit) as long as any document containing
the trade secret is filed under seal and the trade secret is not disclosed except pursuant to court order.
3.5) Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employee previously signed an Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2013,
containing restrictive covenants, and that Employee agrees that with the execution of this Agreement, Employee is being offered
substantial benefits, including but not limited to, enhanced severance payments, to which Employee would not otherwise be entitled to
receive in the absence of signing this Agreement and agreeing to the restrictions contained herein. Therefore, Employee agrees that during
employment with Bio-Techne, Employee shall not plan, organize or engage in any business competitive with any product or services
marketed or planned for marketing by Bio-Techne or conspire with others to do so. Employee further agrees:
A. For a period of two (2) years following termination of employment with Bio-Techne for any reason Employee shall
not attempt to divert or divert any of Bio-Techne’s business, or business which it has a reasonable expectation of
obtaining, by soliciting, contacting or communicating with any customers or potential customers for Bio-Techne’s
products and services with whom Employee or other employees under Employee’s supervision had contact during the one
year period immediately preceding termination of employment.
B. For a period of one (1) years following termination of employment with Bio-Techne for any reason Employee shall
not solicit anyone who is then an employee of Bio-Techne or who was an employee of Bio-Techne within the prior 12
months) to resign from Bio-Techne or to apply for or accept employment with any other business or enterprise.
C. For a period of two (2) years following termination of employment with Bio-Techne for any reason Employee shall
not, without prior written authorization of Bio-Techne or its legal counsel, (x) directly or indirectly render services, advice
or counsel as an employee, representative, consultant or independent contractor for any third party if the rendering of such
services, advice or counsel: (i) relates to a specific product, product line or service, or a product, product line or service
under development which is, or if developed would be, competitive with any product, product line or service under
development by Bio-Techne; or (ii) requires or is likely to result in the use or disclosure by Employee of Confidential
Information [or (y) hold a 5% or greater equity (including stock options whether or not exercisable), voting or profit
participation interest in any business enterprise that either (i) has a specific product, product line or service, or a product,
product line or service under development which is, or if developed would be, competitive with any product, product line
or service under development by Bio-Techne or (ii) holds a 5% or greater equity, voting or profit participation interest in
any enterprise that engages in such a competitive activity.
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3.6)
Employee may not remove any records, files, drawings, documents, models, equipment, and the like relating to BioTechne’s business from Bio-Techne’s premises without its written consent, unless such removal is in the furtherance of Bio-Techne’s
business or is in connection with Employee’s carrying out his duties under this Agreement. Employee shall promptly and fully disclose to
Bio-Techne and will hold in trust for Bio-Techne’s sole right and benefit any Invention which Employee, during the period of employment,
makes, conceives or reduces to practice or causes to be made, conceived or reduced to practice either alone or in conjunction with others
that: (a) relates to any subject matter pertaining to Employee’s employment; (b) relates to or is directly or indirectly connected with the
business, products, projects or confidential information of Bio-Techne; or (c) involves the use of any time, material or facility of BioTechne. Employee hereby assigns to Bio-Techne all of Employee’s right, title and interest in and to all such Inventions and, upon BioTechne’s request, Employee shall execute, verify and deliver to Bio-Techne such documents including, without limitation, assignments
and applications for Letters Patent, and shall perform such other acts, including, without limitation, appearing as a witness in any action
brought in connection with this Agreement that is necessary to enable Bio-Techne to obtain the sole right, title and benefit to all such
Inventions.
3.8)
It is further agreed, and Employee is hereby notified that the above agreement to assign Inventions to Bio-Techne does not
apply to an Invention for which no equipment, supplies, facility or trade secrets of Bio-Techne was used, which was developed entirely on
Employee’s own time, and (a) which does not relate directly to the business of Bio-Techne, or to Bio-Techne’s actual or demonstrably
anticipated research or development; or (b) which does not result from any work performed by Employee for Bio-Techne.
3.9)
The Parties acknowledge and agree that if Employee breaches any of the terms of this Section 3, Bio-Techne, in addition
to any other remedies available at law or equity, shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to injunctive relief in any court of competent
jurisdiction. The prevailing party in any such litigation shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses incurred
therein but hereby specifically waives any right to a jury trial in connection with the recovery of, or attempt to recover, any attorneys' fees,
costs and/or expenses.
3.10) The restrictions and obligations of the Employee outlined in Section 3 above will survive termination of this Agreement
and termination of Employee’s employment in accordance with the terms of this Section 3.
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ARTICLE 4.
TERMINATION
4.1)
Events of Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary or appearing to be to the
contrary, Employee’s employment may be terminated as follows:
A.

By mutual written agreement of the parties;

B.

Upon Employee’s death;

C.
Upon Employee’s inability to perform the essential functions of his position, with or without reasonable
accommodation, for more than ninety (90) days, or such longer period as required by law, in any consecutive twelve (12) month period by
reason of physical or mental disability or incapacity, as determined by the Bio-Techne Board in consultation with Employee and/or
Employee’s health care provider(s); provided that this paragraph does not relieve Bio-Techne of any duty to reasonably accommodate a
qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act or the Minnesota Human Rights Act, any legal duty under the Family
Medical Leave Act, or any of its other duties pursuant to applicable law, and provided further that nothing in this Section 4.1(C) shall limit
the right of either Party to terminate Employee’s employment under one of the other subsections of this Section 4.1;
D.
By either Party upon ninety (90) days’ advance written notice to the other Party. Bio-Techne may in its sole
discretion continue to pay Employee his base salary and cost of benefits (but not incentive bonus) during the ninety (90) day notice period
in lieu of requiring Employee to continue to perform his duties and responsibilities during such notice period;
E.

Upon the insolvency or bankruptcy of Bio-Techne;

F.
In the event of a Change in Control, as set forth in Section 5.2, provided that the severance provisions of Section
5.2 of this Agreement are met;
G.
Bio-Techne shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment immediately for “Cause.” For purposes of
this Agreement, “Cause” shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
i.
Habitual neglect of, or the willful or material failure to perform the duties of employment hereunder, as
determined in good faith by the Board;
ii.

Embezzlement or any act of fraud;

iii. Commission of acts that can be charged as a felony, whether or not committed during the term hereof or in
the course of employment hereunder;
iv.
Bio-Techne;

Dishonesty in dealing between Employee and Bio-Techne or between Employee and other employees of
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v.
Use or misuse of any controlled substance, illegal or narcotic drug without a prescription; or use of alcohol
in a manner, regardless of time or place, which either adversely affects Employee’s job performance or otherwise could
reflect negatively on the public image of Bio-Techne;
vi.

Habitual absenteeism; or

vii.

Willfully acting in a manner materially adverse to the best interests of Bio-Techne.

4.2)
Return of Property. At such time that Employee’s employment with Bio-Techne ends (the “Termination Date”) or at
such earlier time as Bio-Techne may notify Employee, Employee will immediately cease doing business upon Bio-Techne’s premises and
will immediately deliver to Bio-Techne all of its property and all property to be held by Bio-Techne in his possession or control, including,
but not limited to, all work in progress, data, equipment, originals and copies of documents and software, customer and supplier
information and lists, financial information, and all other materials. In addition, if Employee has used any personal computer, server, or
email system (including, but not limited to, computers, Blackberries, PDA’s, cell phones, smart phones, iPhones, iPads, etc.) to receive,
store, review, prepare or transmit any Bio-Techne information, including but not limited to Confidential Information, Employee agrees to
provide Bio-Techne with a computer-useable copy of all such Confidential Information and then, unless the information is subject to a
litigation hold, permanently delete and expunge such information from those systems. Employee also agrees to certify, within ten (10)
days after the Termination Date, in writing to Bio-Techne compliance with the obligation herein.
4.3)
Board Resignation. If at the time of any termination of Employee's service to Bio-Techne, Employee is a member of
Bio-Techne's Board of Directors, Employee agrees to immediately submit his resignation from Bio-Techne's Board of Directors effective
upon such termination of service unless otherwise determined by Bio-Techne's Board of Directors in its sole discretion.
ARTICLE 5.
TERMINATION BENEFITS
5.1)
Payment Upon Termination. Upon (i) termination of Employee's employment other than by Bio-Techne for Cause as
defined in Section 4.1(G) or upon Employee's death or disability as provided in Sections 4.1(B) and (C), or (ii) Employee’s resignation for
Good Reason, as defined below, Employee will receive the following payments: (x) an amount equal to one (1) year of his then-current
base annual salary (but not any cash or incentive bonus) and (y) continued payment by Bio-Techne of the employer portion of the
premiums for the health and dental insurance coverage Employee was receiving under group health, dental and vision insurance plans as of
the Termination Date for one (1) year (the payments in (x) and (y) hereinafter referred to as the “Termination Severance Payments”);
provided, however, that Employee shall be entitled to the Termination Severance Payments set forth in this Section 5.1 only if he executes
within 60 days of termination of employment, does not rescind, and fully complies with a release agreement in a form supplied by BioTechne, which will include, but not be limited to, a comprehensive release of claims against Bio-Techne and its directors, officers,
employees and all related parties, in their official and individual capacities (the “Release”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Bio-Techne
determines, in its sole discretion, that payment of the COBRA premiums under this Section 5.1 would result in a violation of the
nondiscrimination rules of Section 105(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code or any statute or regulation of similar effect, then in lieu of
paying the COBRA premiums, Bio-Techne may instead elect to pay Employee on the first day of each month, a fully taxable cash
payment equal to the employer portion of the COBRA premiums for that month, subject to applicable tax withholdings (the “Special
Severance Payment”), for each remaining month during which Employee is entitled to receive payment of COBRA premiums under this
Section 5.1. Employee may, but will not be obligated to, use the Special Severance Payment toward the cost of COBRA premiums.
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As used in this Agreement, “Good Reason” means a good faith determination by Employee that any one or more of the following
events have occurred; provided, however, that such event shall not constitute “Good Reason” if (x) Employee has expressly consented to
such event in writing, (y) Employee fails to provide written notice to Bio-Techne within thirty (30) calendar days of the occurrence of
such event, specifically describing such event, and Bio-Techne fails to remedy such event within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of
such notice, or (z) Employee fails to provide written notice of his decision to terminate within sixty (60) calendar days of the occurrence of
such event:
A.
A change in Employee's reporting responsibilities, titles or offices, or any removal of Employee from any of such
positions, which has the effect of diminishing Employee's responsibility or authority;
B.
A material reduction by Bio-Techne in Employee's total compensation including but not limited to Employee’s salary,
annual bonus opportunity and annual long-term incentive opportunity;
C.
A requirement imposed by Bio-Techne on Employee that results in Employee being based at a location that is outside a
fifty (50) mile radius of Bio-Techne; or
D.
The existence of physical working conditions or requirements that a reasonable person in Employee's position would find
to be intolerable; provided, however, that Bio-Techne has received written notice of such “intolerable” conditions and Bio-Techne has
failed within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of such notice to cure or otherwise appropriately address such “intolerable” conditions.
Termination for “Good Reason” shall not include Employee's termination as a result of death, disability, retirement or a
termination for any reason other than the events specified in clauses (A) through (D) in this Section 5.1.
5.2)
Payment Upon Termination for Change in Control . If there is a Change in Control, as defined below, and if Employee
either resigns for Good Reason or Employee's employment is terminated by Bio-Techne or its successor without Cause, in each case upon
consummation of such Change in Control or within one (1) year thereafter, then Employee will receive the following:
A.

payment equal to two (2) years of his then-current base annual salary; plus
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B.
payment equal to the pro-rated value of the greater of: (a) the target bonus for the fiscal year in which the
termination occurs; or (b) the target bonus for the fiscal year in which the Change in Control occurs, if different; plus
D.
the automatic acceleration of any vesting requirements of the equity grants awarded to Employee by Bio-Techne
during the term of his employment; plus
E.
continued payment by Bio-Techne of the employer portion of the premiums for the health and dental insurance
coverage Employee was receiving under group health, dental and vision insurance plans as of the Termination Date for two (2) years.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Bio-Techne determines, in its sole discretion, that payment of the COBRA premiums under this Section
5.2 would result in a violation of the nondiscrimination rules of Section 105(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code or any statute or regulation
of similar effect, payment of the COBRA benefits will be made as a Special Severance Payment as provided in Section 5.1 above.
The payments and benefits described in Section 5.2.A through E above are hereinafter referred to as the "CIC Severance Payment".
However, Employee shall be entitled to the CIC Severance Payment set forth in this Section 5.2 only if he executes within 60 days of
resignation or termination of employment, does not rescind, and fully complies with the Release.
"Change of Control" shall mean the occurrence, in a single transaction or in a series of related transactions, of any one or more of the
events in subsections (A) through (C) below. For purposes of this definition, a person, entity or group shall be deemed to "Own," to have
"Owned," to be the "Owner" of, or to have acquired "Ownership" of securities if such person, entity or group directly or indirectly, through
any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has or shares voting power, which includes the power to vote or to
direct the voting, with respect to such securities.
A.
Any person, entity or group becomes the Owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of Bio-Techne representing
more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of Bio-Techne's then outstanding securities other than by virtue of a merger,
consolidation or similar transaction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed to occur (A) on account of
the acquisition of securities of Bio-Techne by an investor, any affiliate thereof or any other person, entity or group from Bio-Techne in a
transaction or series of related transactions the primary purpose of which is to obtain financing for Bio-Techne through the issuance of
equity securities or (B) solely because the level of Ownership held by any person, entity or group (the “Subject Person”) exceeds the
designated percentage threshold of the outstanding voting securities as a result of a repurchase or other acquisition of voting securities by
Bio-Techne reducing the number of shares outstanding, provided that if a Change in Control would occur (but for the operation of this
sentence) as a result of the acquisition of voting securities by Bio-Techne, and after such share acquisition, the Subject Person becomes the
Owner of any additional voting securities that, assuming the repurchase or other acquisition had not occurred, increases the percentage of
the then outstanding voting securities Owned by the Subject Person over the designated percentage threshold, then a Change in Control
shall be deemed to occur;
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B. There is consummated a merger, consolidation or similar transaction involving (directly or indirectly) Bio-Techne
and, immediately after the consummation of such merger, consolidation or similar transaction, the stockholders of Bio-Techne
immediately prior thereto do not Own, directly or indirectly, either (A) outstanding voting securities representing more than fifty percent
(50%) of the combined outstanding voting power of the surviving entity in such merger, consolidation or similar transaction or (B) more
than fifty percent (50%) of the combined outstanding voting power of the parent of the surviving entity in such merger, consolidation or
similar transaction, in each case in substantially the same proportions as their Ownership of the outstanding voting securities of BioTechne immediately prior to such transaction; or
C. There is consummated a sale, lease, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the total gross
value of the consolidated assets of Bio-Techne and its subsidiaries, other than a sale, lease, license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of total gross value of the consolidated assets of Bio-Techne and its subsidiaries to an entity, more than fifty percent (50%)
of the combined voting power of the voting securities of which are Owned by stockholders of Bio-Techne in substantially the same
proportions as their Ownership of the outstanding voting securities of Bio-Techne immediately prior to such sale, lease, license or other
disposition (for purposes of this Section 5.1(C), “gross value” means the value of the assets of Bio-Techne or the value of the assets being
disposed of, as the case may be, determined without regard to any liabilities associated with such assets).
For the avoidance of doubt, the term Change in Control shall not include a sale of assets, merger or other transaction effected
exclusively for the purpose of changing the domicile of Bio-Techne. To the extent required, the determination of whether a Change in
Control has occurred shall be made in accordance with Code Section 409A and the regulations, notices and other guidance of general
applicability issued thereunder.
5.3)
Timing of Cash Severance Payment. Any cash payments pursuant to Section 5.1 or 5.2 will be paid to Employee
monthly over the course of a one-year period beginning after expiration of any applicable rescission periods set forth in the Release and in
no event later than 60 days following termination of employment; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to
the contrary, if any of the payments described in Section 5.1 or 5.2 are subject to the requirements of Code Section 409A and Bio-Techne
determines that Employee is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A as of the date of Employee’s termination of
employment, such payments will not be paid or commence earlier than the first day of the seventh month following the date of
Employee’s termination of employment and on such date any amounts that would have been paid during the first six months following the
termination but for operation of this proviso will be paid in one lump sum with the remaining payments made monthly over the remainder
of the specified one-year period. In addition, all payments made to Employee pursuant to Section 5.1 or 5.2 will be reduced by amounts
(A) required to be withheld in accordance with federal, state and local laws and regulations in effect at the time of payment, or (B) owed to
Bio-Techne by Employee for any amounts advanced, loaned or misappropriated. Such offset will be made in the manner permitted by and
will be subject to the limitations of all applicable laws, including but not limited to Code Section 409A, and the regulations, notices and
other guidance of general applicability issued thereunder.
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5.4) No Other Payments. Except as provided in Section 5.1 and 5.2, including but not limited to if Employee is terminated with
Cause or voluntarily terminates his employment at any time without Good Reason, Employee will not be entitled to any compensation or
benefits other than that which was due to him as of the date of termination, regardless of any claim by Employee for compensation, salary,
bonus, severance benefits or other payments.

ARTICLE 6.
ARBITRATION
6.1) Arbitration. Any dispute arising out of or relating to (i) this Agreement or the alleged breach of it, or the making of this
Agreement, including claims of fraud in the inducement, or (ii) Employee’s application or candidacy for employment, employment and/or
termination of employment with Bio-Techne including, but not limited to, any and all disputes, claims or controversies relating to
discrimination, harassment, retaliation, wrongful discharge, and any and all other claims of any type under any federal or state constitution
or any federal, state, or local statutory or common law shall be discussed between the disputing Parties in a good faith effort to arrive at a
mutual settlement of any such controversy. If, notwithstanding, such dispute cannot be resolved, such dispute shall be settled by binding
arbitration. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator
shall be a retired state or federal judge or an attorney who has practiced securities or business litigation for at least 10 years. If the Parties
cannot agree on an arbitrator within 20 days, any Party may request that the chief judge of the District Court for Hennepin County,
Minnesota, select an arbitrator. Arbitration will be conducted pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, and the commercial arbitration
rules of the American Arbitration Association, unless such rules are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, but without
submission of the dispute to such Association. Limited civil discovery shall be permitted for the production of documents and taking of
depositions. Unresolved discovery disputes may be brought to the attention of the arbitrator who may dispose of such dispute. The
arbitrator shall have the authority to award any remedy or relief that a court of this state could order or grant; provided, however, that
punitive or exemplary damages shall not be awarded. The arbitrator may award to the prevailing Party, if any, as determined by the
arbitrator, all of its costs and fees, including the arbitrator’s fees, administrative fees, travel expenses, out-of-pocket expenses and
reasonable attorneys’ fees. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the place of any arbitration proceedings shall be Hennepin County,
Minnesota. This agreement to arbitrate does not include worker’s compensation claims, claims for unemployment compensation, or any
injunctive or other relief to which the Bio-Techne may be entitled in accordance with the Section 3 above.
ARTICLE 7.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
7 . 1 ) Modifications. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to the
employment of Employee by Bio-Techne and it may not be changed or terminated orally. No modification, termination, or attempted
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be valid unless in writing signed by the Party against whom the same is sought to be
enforced.
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7.2) Binding Effect. The breach by Bio-Techne of any other agreement or instrument between Bio-Techne and Employee will
not excuse or waive Employee’s performance under, or compliance with, this Agreement.
7.3)
Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Minnesota, without regard to conflicts of law principles that would require the application of any other law.
7.4)
Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to Employee and Employee may not assign or transfer any part of his
rights or duties hereunder, or any compensation due to him hereunder, to any other person. This Agreement may be assigned by BioTechne and Employee expressly consents to the assignment of any and all obligations of Employee under this Agreement. This Agreement
is binding on any successors or assigns of Bio-Techne.
7.5)
Captions. The captions set forth in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be considered as part of this
Agreement or as in any way limiting or amplifying the terms and conditions hereof.
7.6)
No Conflicting Obligations. Employee represents and warrants to Bio-Techne that he is not under, or bound to be under in
the future, any obligation to any person, firm, or corporation that is or would be inconsistent or in conflict with this Agreement or would
prevent, limit, or impair in any way the performance by Employee of Employee’s obligations hereunder. If Employee possesses any
information that he knows or should know is considered by any third party, such as a former employer of Employee’s to be confidential,
trade secret, or otherwise proprietary, Employee shall not disclose such information to Bio-Techne or use such information to benefit BioTechne in any way.
7.7)
Waivers. The failure of any Party to require the performance or satisfaction of any term or obligation of this Agreement,
or the waiver by any Party of any breach of this Agreement, will not prevent subsequent enforcement of such term or obligation or be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach.
7.8)
Severability. In the event that any provision hereof is held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction,
Bio-Techne and Employee agree that that part should modified by the court to make it enforceable to the maximum extent possible. If the
part cannot be modified, then that part may be severed and the other parts of this Agreement shall remain enforceable.
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7.9)

Code Section 409A.

(a)
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties to this Agreement intend that
this Agreement will satisfy the applicable requirements, if any, of Code Section 409A in a manner that will preclude the imposition of
additional taxes and interest imposed under Code Section 409A. The Parties agree that this Agreement will be read or amended (as
determined by Bio-Techne in its sole discretion) to the extent necessary to comply with Code Section 409A, as amended from time to time,
and the notices and other guidance of general applicability issued thereunder. For purposes of Section 409A, each payment made under
this Agreement will be treated as a separate payment. In no event may Employee, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of
payment.
(b) All reimbursements provided under this Agreement will be made or provided in accordance with the requirements
of Code Section 409A, including, where applicable, the requirement that (i) any reimbursement is for expenses incurred during Employee’s
lifetime (or during a shorter period of time specified in this Agreement), (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement during a
calendar year may not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement in any other calendar year, (iii) the reimbursement of an eligible
expense will be made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the year in which the expense is incurred, and (iv) the right
to reimbursement is not subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.
(c) Further, if any of the payments described in this Agreement are subject to the requirements of Code Section 409A
and Bio-Techne determines that Employee is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A as of the date of Employee’s
termination of employment (which will have the same meaning as “separation from service” as defined in Code Section 409A), all or a
portion of such payments will not be paid or commence earlier than the first day of the seventh month following the date of Employee’s
termination of employment, but only to the extent such delay is required for compliance with Code Section 409A.
7.10)
Notices. All notices given or made pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed effectively given,
delivered and received (A) upon personal delivery to the Party to be notified; (B) when sent by facsimile if sent during normal business
hours of the recipient, and if not sent during normal business hours then on the next business day; (C) five (5) calendar days after having
been sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or (D) one (1) business day after the business day of
deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, specifying next-day delivery, with written verification of receipt. All
communications shall be sent to the respective parties at their addresses set forth below, or to such facsimile numbers, or addresses as
subsequently modified by written notice given in accordance with this Section:

(a)

If to Bio-Techne:

Bio-Techne Corporation
Attention: Chair, Board of Directors
614 McKinley Place Northeast
Minneapolis, MN 55413

(b)
If to the Employee:
at Employee’s home address as it then appears on the records of Bio-Techne, it being the
duty of Employee to keep Bio-Techne informed of his current home address at all times.
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7.11) Construction. The Parties agree that the terms and provisions of this Agreement embody their mutual intent, each Party
has had the opportunity to negotiate its provisions and contribute to its drafting, and therefore, it is not to be construed more liberally in
favor of, or more strictly against, any Party hereto.
7 . 1 2 ) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an
original of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. Electronically
transmitted (e.g., by facsimile or pdf) signed copies of this Agreement shall be deemed to be original signed versions of this Agreement.
7 . 1 3 ) Section 280G. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, to the extent that any of the
payments and benefits provided for under this Agreement or any other agreement or arrangement between the Employee and the BioTechne (collectively, the “Payments”) constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and, but for this
Section 7.13, would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, then the Payments shall be payable either (i) in full
or (ii) as to such lesser amount which would result in no portion of such Payments being subject to excise tax under Section 4999 of the
Code; whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes and the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999, results in the Employee’s receipt on an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of economic benefits under this
Agreement, notwithstanding that all or some portion of such benefits may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code. Unless the
Employee and Bio-Techne otherwise agree in writing, any determination required under this Section 7.13 shall be made in writing by BioTechne’s independent public accountants (the “Accountants”), whose reasonable determination shall be conclusive and binding upon
Employee and Bio-Techne for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations required by this Section 7.13, the Accountants may
make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, good faith interpretations
concerning the application of the Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code. Employee and Bio-Techne shall furnish to the Accountants such
information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this Section 7.13. The
Accountants will provide its calculations, together with detailed supporting documentation, to the Company and Employee as soon as
practicable following its engagement. If a reduction in Payments is required by this provision and none of the Payments constitute “nonqualified deferred compensation” subject to Code Section 409A, then the reduction will occur in the manner Employee elects in writing
prior to the date of payment. If any Payment constitutes “non-qualified deferred compensation” subject to Code Section 409A or if
Employee fails to elect an order, then the Payments to be reduced will be determined in a manner which has the least economic cost to
Employee and, to the extent the economic cost is equivalent, will be reduced in the inverse order of when payment would have been made
to Employee, until the reduction is achieved.
(Signatures follow on the next page(s).)
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THE PARTIES HAVE executed this Agreement in the manner appropriate to each as of the dates set forth below.
BIO-TECHNE CORPORATION

By ://Dr. Randolph C. Steer//
Its Chair, Executive Compensation Committee

August 5, 2017

EMPLOYEE
//Charles Kummeth//
Charles Kummeth

August 8, 2017
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Exhibit 10.12

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This Executive Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into between Bio-Techne Corporation, a
Minnesota corporation (“Bio-Techne”), and [Executive Officer] (“Employee”) (each may be referred to individually as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”).
RECITALS
Whereas, Bio-Techne wishes to employ Employee under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, and Employee
wishes to accept such employment under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants contained herein, Bio-Techne and Employee
agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
TERM OF EMPLOYMENT: DUTIES AND SUPERVISION
1.1)
Parties. The Parties to this Agreement are Employee and Bio-Techne. As used herein, Bio-Techne refers to Bio-Techne
Corporation and its subsidiaries, including but not limited to Research and Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (“R&D”) [refer to employing sub],
unless specifically provided otherwise. All of the rights and obligations created by this Agreement may be performed by or enforced by or
against Bio-Techne or R&D or any other appropriate Bio-Techne subsidiary.
1 . 2 )
Employment and Term of Employment. Bio-Techne hereby employs Employee and Employee hereby accepts
employment as [TITLE] on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Employee’s employment hereunder will commence on
DATE, 20XX and will terminate when terminated by either Party pursuant to Section 4 hereof.
1.3)

Duties and Supervision.

A.
During the term of his or her employment, Employee agrees to devote his or her full business and professional
time, energy, diligence and best efforts to the business and affairs of Bio-Techne, and to perform such services and duties Employee may
from time to time be assigned by Bio-Techne[, and specifically its Chief Executive Officer].
B.
Employee agrees to be subject to Bio-Techne’s control, rules, regulations, policies and programs. Employee further
agrees to carry on all correspondence, publicity and advertising in Bio-Techne’s name and not enter into any contract on behalf of BioTechne except as expressly authorized by Bio-Techne.
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ARTICLE 2.
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
2.1)
Base Salary. Bio-Techne will pay Employee as base compensation for services to be rendered hereunder an annual base
salary as established by Bio-Techne from time to time, to be paid in accordance with the usual payroll practices of Bio-Techne. The base
annual salary amount will be reviewed and adjusted by Bio-Techne’s Board of Directors or its designated committee (the “Board”) from
time to time (but no less than annually) in its sole discretion. The base annual salary will be inclusive of all applicable income, Social
Security, and other taxes and charges that are required by law to be withheld by Bio-Techne or that are requested to be withheld by
Employee.
2.2)
Management Incentive Plan. Employee shall be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus commensurate with his or her
position and level in accordance with Bio-Techne’s Management Incentive Plan or its equivalent (the “Management Incentive Plan”). The
Management Incentive Plan contemplates an annual cash bonus based on a percentage of base salary and the achievement of annual
performance targets, both of which are established and approved by the Board from time to time. After receipt of Bio-Techne’s final audit
report of the applicable fiscal year, the Board will determine and certify in writing the degree to which the annual performance targets
have been achieved and calculate the portion of Employee’s annual cash bonus (if any) that will be paid. If earned, the annual cash bonus
will be paid as soon as administratively practicable thereafter, but in no event later than would be permitted under the short-term deferral
period defined by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Code Section 409A”).
2.3)
Long-term Equity Awards . Employee will be eligible to participate in and receive periodic equity-based compensation
awards commensurate with his or her position and level pursuant to any Bio-Techne equity-based compensation plan or program made
available generally to executive officers; provided that the amount, timing, and other terms of any future awards shall be determined by
the Board, in its sole discretion.
2.4)

Miscellaneous Benefits. Bio-Techne will provide Employee the following additional benefits:
A.
Reimbursement in accordance with Bio-Techne’s standard reimbursement policies in effect from time to time for
ordinary, necessary and reasonable out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by Employee in performing his duties for Bio-Techne so long
as properly substantiated.
B.
Paid vacation of four (4) weeks per calendar year, to be taken at such times as selected by Employee and as
approved by the Chief Executive Officer or his designee. Carryover, forfeiture or payout of unused vacation time from period to period or
upon termination of employment shall be in accordance with Bio-Techne’s policies that may be in effect from time to time.
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2.5)
Other Employee Compensation and Benefits. In addition to the compensation and benefits provided to Employee in
Sections 2.1 through 2.4 hereof, Employee will be entitled to participate in other employee compensation and benefit plans from time to
time established by Bio-Techne and made available generally to all employees of the hiring entity to the extent that Employee’s age, tenure
and title make him or her eligible to receive those benefits. Employee will participate in such compensation and benefit plans on an
appropriate and comparable basis determined by the Board by reference to all other employees eligible for participation. With regard to all
insured benefits to be provided to Employee, benefits shall be subject to due application by Employee. Bio-Techne has no obligation to pay
insured benefits directly and such benefits are payable to Employee only by the insurers in accordance with their policies. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended to or shall in any way restrict Bio-Techne’s right to amend, modify or terminate any of its benefits or benefit plans
during the term of Employee’s employment. Employee shall not be reimbursed for unused personal days or sick days upon his or her
termination from employment regardless of the reason, whether voluntary or involuntary.
2.6)
Recoupment. The incentive compensation payable to Employee pursuant to Sections 2.2 and 2.3 hereof shall be subject
to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment as and to the extent required by the applicable provisions of any law (including without
limitation Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder),
government regulation or stock exchange listing requirement, or clawback policy or provision implemented by Bio-Techne pursuant to
such law, regulation or listing requirement.
ARTICLE 3.
INVENTIONS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND UNFAIR COMPETITION
3.1)
For the purpose of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” means any information not generally known and
proprietary to Bio-Techne and includes, without limitation, the following: all information and data developed or acquired by Employee in
the course of employment with Bio-Techne; data or conclusions or opinions formed by Employee in the course of employment; policies
and procedures; manuals; trade secrets; methods, procedures, or techniques pertaining to the business of Bio-Techne or any customer of
Bio-Techne; specifications for products or services; systems; price lists; marketing plans; sales or service analyses; financial information;
customer names or other information; vendor names or other information; employee names or other information; research and
development data; diagrams; drawings; media; notes, memoranda, notebooks, and all other records or documents that are handled, seen, or
used by Employee in the course of employment. Confidential Information may be contained in the Bio-Techne’s product designs,
tolerances, tooling, marketing plans or proposals, customer lists, the particular needs requirements of customers, and the identity of
customers, and potential customers. Information shall be treated as Confidential Information irrespective of its source and all information
that is identified as being “confidential” or “trade secret” shall be presumed to be Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Confidential Information does not include any information that is (i) in the public domain or enters the public domain through
no violation of obligations Employee owes to Bio-Techne; (ii) disclosed to Employee other than as a result of Employee’s capacity as an
employee of Bio-Techne by a third-party not subject to maintain the information in confidence; or (iii) already known by Employee other
than as a result of Employee’s past relationship with Bio-Techne (or its predecessors) and is evidenced by written documentation existing
prior to such disclosure. Specific technical and business information shall not be deemed to be within the preceding exceptions merely
because it is embraced by more general technical or business information within such exceptions, nor shall a combination of features be
deemed to be within such exceptions merely because the individual features are within such exceptions.
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3.2)
For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Invention” means ideas, discoveries and improvements whether or not shown
or described in writing or reduced to practice and whether patentable or not, relating to any of Bio-Techne’s present or future
manufacturing, sales, research or other business activities, or investigations or reasonably foreseeable business interest of Bio-Techne
during this employment.
3.3)
During employment with Bio-Techne and following its termination for any reason, Employee shall hold in strictest
confidence and will never, without prior written authorization of Bio-Techne or its legal counsel or as may otherwise be required by law or
any legal process, any statutory obligation or order of any court or statutory tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or as is necessary in
connection with any adversarial proceeding against Bio-Techne (in which case Employee will use his or her reasonable best efforts in
cooperating with Bio-Techne in obtaining a protective order against disclosure by a court of competent jurisdiction), disclose, assign,
transfer, convey, communicate or use any of such Confidential Information for his or her own or another’s benefit or permit the same to be
used in competition with Bio-Techne.
3.4)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or otherwise, nothing shall limit Employee’s rights under
applicable law to provide truthful information to any governmental entity or to file a charge with or participate in an investigation
conducted by any governmental entity. Employee is hereby notified that the immunity provisions in Section 1833 of title 18 of the United
States Code provide that an individual cannot be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any
disclosure of a trade secret that is made (1) in confidence to federal, state or local government officials, either directly or indirectly, or to an
attorney, and is solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of the law, (2) under seal in a complaint or other
document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, or (3) to Employee’s attorney in connection with a lawsuit for retaliation for reporting a
suspected violation of law (and the trade secret may be used in the court proceedings for such lawsuit) as long as any document containing
the trade secret is filed under seal and the trade secret is not disclosed except pursuant to court order.
3.5)
Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employee was required, as a condition of employment, to sign an Employee
Agreement With Respect To Inventions, Proprietary Information, and Unfair Competition (the “Unfair Competition Agreement”) and that
Employee did, in fact, sign such an Agreement. Employee further acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions below are the same as
those contained in that Unfair Competition Agreement, and that this Section 3.5 is a restatement of those provisions to insure that they
remain in full force and effect according to this Section 3.5 and that they did not impose any additional restrictions upon Employee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee agrees that with the execution of this Agreement, Employee is being offered substantial
benefits, including but not limited to, enhanced severance payments, to which Employee would not otherwise be entitled to receive in the
absence of signing this Agreement. Therefore, Employee agrees that during employment with Bio-Techne, Employee shall not plan,
organize or engage in any business competitive with any product or services marketed or planned for marketing by Bio-Techne or conspire
with others to do so. For a period of two (2) years following termination of employment with Bio-Techne for any reason:
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A.
Employee shall not attempt to divert or divert any of Bio-Techne’s business, or business which it has a reasonable
expectation of obtaining, by soliciting, contacting or communicating with any customers or potential customers for BioTechne’s products and services with whom Employee or other employees under Employee’s supervision had contact
during the one-year period immediately preceding termination of employment.
B.
Employee shall not solicit anyone who is then an employee of Bio-Techne or who was an employee of Bio-Techne
within the prior 12 months) to resign from Bio-Techne or to apply for or accept employment with any other business or
enterprise.
C.
Employee shall not, without prior written authorization of Bio-Techne or its legal counsel, (x) directly or indirectly
render services, advice or counsel as an employee, representative, consultant or independent contractor for any third party
if the rendering of such services, advice or counsel: (i) relates to a specific product, product line or service, or a product,
product line or service under development which is, or if developed would be, competitive with any product, product line
or service under development by Bio-Techne; or (ii) requires or is likely to result in the use or disclosure by Employee of
Confidential Information [or (y) hold a 5% or greater equity (including stock options whether or not exercisable), voting or
profit participation interest in any business enterprise that either (i) has a specific product, product line or service, or a
product, product line or service under development which is, or if developed would be, competitive with any product,
product line or service under development by Bio-Techne or (ii) holds a 5% or greater equity, voting or profit
participation interest in any enterprise that engages in such a competitive activity].
3.6)
Employee may not remove any records, files, drawings, documents, models, equipment, and the like relating to BioTechne’s business from Bio-Techne’s premises without its written consent, unless such removal is in the furtherance of Bio-Techne’s
business or is in connection with Employee’s carrying out his or her duties under this Agreement. Employee shall promptly and fully
disclose to Bio-Techne and will hold in trust for Bio-Techne’s sole right and benefit any Invention which Employee, during the period of
employment, makes, conceives or reduces to practice or causes to be made, conceived or reduced to practice either alone or in conjunction
with others that: (a) relates to any subject matter pertaining to Employee’s employment; (b) relates to or is directly or indirectly connected
with the business, products, projects or confidential information of Bio-Techne; or (c) involves the use of any time, material or facility of
Bio-Techne. Employee hereby assigns to Bio-Techne all of Employee’s right, title and interest in and to all such Inventions and, upon BioTechne’s request, Employee shall execute, verify and deliver to Bio-Techne such documents including, without limitation, assignments
and applications for Letters Patent, and shall perform such other acts, including, without limitation, appearing as a witness in any action
brought in connection with this Agreement that is necessary to enable Bio-Techne to obtain the sole right, title and benefit to all such
Inventions.
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3.8)
It is further agreed, and Employee is hereby notified that the above agreement to assign Inventions to Bio-Techne does not
apply to an Invention for which no equipment, supplies, facility or trade secrets of Bio-Techne was used, which was developed entirely on
Employee’s own time, and (a) which does not relate directly to the business of Bio-Techne, or to Bio-Techne’s actual or demonstrably
anticipated research or development; or (b) which does not result from any work performed by Employee for Bio-Techne.
3.9)
Employee expressly acknowledges and agrees that any violation of any term of this Section 3 of the Agreement would
cause Bio-Techne irreparable harm and warrant the issuance of a temporary restraining order and/or injunction against Employee to effect
specific performance thereof. If Bio-Techne institutes and prevails in any action against Employee, alone or in conjunction with any third
party or parties, to enforce any term of this Agreement, Employee shall pay Bio-Techne its reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
instituting and maintaining such action and all costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith recognizing that Bio-Techne does not
have an adequate remedy at law for damages. Employee hereby specifically waives any right to a jury trial that may apply to Bio-Techne’s
recovery of reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses. If any term of this Section 3 is deemed unenforceable, void, voidable
or illegal, such unenforceable, void, voidable or illegal term shall be deemed severable from all other terms in effect and Bio-Techne and
Employee expressly acknowledge that a court of competent jurisdiction may at Bio-Techne’s request modify and thereafter enforce any of
the terms, conditions and covenants contained in Section 3 of this Agreement.
3.10) The restrictions and obligations of the Employee outlined in Section 3 above will survive termination of this Agreement
and termination of Employee’s employment in accordance with the terms of this Section 3.

ARTICLE 4.
TERMINATION
4.1)
Events of Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary or appearing to be to the
contrary, Employee’s employment may be terminated as follows:
A.

By mutual written agreement of the parties;

B.

Upon Employee’s death;

C.
Upon Employee’s inability to perform the essential functions of his position, with or without reasonable
accommodation, for more than ninety (90) days, or such longer period as required by law, in any consecutive twelve (12) month period by
reason of physical or mental disability or incapacity, as determined by the Bio-Techne Board in consultation with Employee and/or
Employee’s health care provider(s); provided that this paragraph does not relieve Bio-Techne of any duty to reasonably accommodate a
qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act or the Minnesota Human Rights Act, any legal duty under the Family
Medical Leave Act, or any of its other duties pursuant to applicable law, and provided further that nothing in this Section 4.1(C) shall limit
the right of either Party to terminate Employee’s employment under one of the other subsections of this Section 4.1;
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D.
By either Party upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the other Party. Bio-Techne may in its sole
discretion continue to pay Employee his/her base salary during the thirty (30) day notice period in lieu of requiring Employee to continue
to perform his/her duties and responsibilities during such notice period;
E.

Upon the insolvency or bankruptcy of Bio-Techne;

F.
In the event of a Change in Control, as set forth in Section 5.2, provided that the severance provisions of Section
5.2 of this Agreement are met;
G.
Bio-Techne shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment immediately for “Cause.” For purposes of
this Agreement, “Cause” shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
i.
Habitual neglect of, or the willful or material failure to perform the duties of employment hereunder, as
determined in good faith by the Board;
ii.

Embezzlement or any act of fraud;

iii.
Commission of acts that can be charged as a felony, whether or not committed during the term hereof or in
the course of employment hereunder;
iv.
Bio-Techne;

Dishonesty in dealing between Employee and Bio-Techne or between Employee and other employees of

v.
Use or misuse of any controlled substance, illegal or narcotic drug without a prescription; or use of alcohol
in a manner, regardless of time or place, which either adversely affects Employee’s job performance or otherwise could
reflect negatively on the public image of Bio-Techne;
vi.

Habitual absenteeism; or

vii.

Willfully acting in a manner materially adverse to the best interests of Bio-Techne.
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4.2)
Return of Property. At such time that Employee’s employment with Bio-Techne ends (the “Termination Date”) or at such
earlier time as Bio-Techne may notify Employee, Employee will immediately cease doing business upon Bio-Techne’s premises and will
immediately deliver to Bio-Techne all of its property and all property to be held by Bio-Techne in his or her possession or control,
including, but not limited to, all work in progress, data, equipment, originals and copies of documents and software, customer and supplier
information and lists, financial information, and all other materials. In addition, if Employee has used any personal computer, server, or
email system (including, but not limited to, computers, Blackberries, PDA’s, cell phones, smart phones, iPhones, iPads, etc.) to receive,
store, review, prepare or transmit any Bio-Techne information, including but not limited to Confidential Information, Employee agrees to
provide Bio-Techne with a computer-useable copy of all such Confidential Information and then, unless the information is subject to a
litigation hold, permanently delete and expunge such information from those systems. Employee also agrees to certify, within ten (10)
days after the Termination Date, in writing to Bio-Techne compliance with the obligation herein.
ARTICLE 5.
TERMINATION BENEFITS
5 . 1 ) Payment Upon Termination. Upon (i) termination of Employee's employment other than by Bio-Techne for Cause as
defined in Section 4.1(G) or upon Employee's death or disability as provided in Sections 4.1(B) and (C), or (ii) Employee’s resignation for
Good Reason, as defined below, Employee will receive the following payments: (x) an amount equal to one (1) year of his or her thencurrent base annual salary (but not any cash or incentive bonus) and (y) continued payment by Bio-Techne of the employer portion of the
premiums for the health and dental insurance coverage Employee was receiving under group health, dental and vision insurance plans as of
the Termination Date for one (1) year (the payments in (x) and (y) hereinafter referred to as the “Termination Severance Payments”);
provided, however, that Employee shall be entitled to the Termination Severance Payments set forth in this Section 5.1 only if he or she
executes within 60 days of termination of employment, does not rescind, and fully complies with a release agreement in a form supplied by
Bio-Techne, which will include, but not be limited to, a comprehensive release of claims against Bio-Techne and its directors, officers,
employees and all related parties, in their official and individual capacities (the “Release”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Bio-Techne
determines, in its sole discretion, that payment of the COBRA premiums under this Section 5.1 would result in a violation of the
nondiscrimination rules of Section 105(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code or any statute or regulation of similar effect, then in lieu of
paying the COBRA premiums, Bio-Techne may instead elect to pay Employee on the first day of each month, a fully taxable cash
payment equal to the employer portion of the COBRA premiums for that month, subject to applicable tax withholdings (the “Special
Severance Payment”), for each remaining month during which Employee is entitled to receive payment of COBRA premiums under this
Section 5.1. Employee may, but will not be obligated to, use the Special Severance Payment toward the cost of COBRA premiums.
As used in this Agreement, “Good Reason” means a good faith determination by Employee that any one or more of the following
events have occurred; provided, however, that such event shall not constitute “Good Reason” if (x) Employee has expressly consented to
such event in writing, (y) Employee fails to provide written notice to Bio-Techne within thirty (30) calendar days of the occurrence of
such event, specifically describing such event, and Bio-Techne fails to remedy such event within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of
such notice, or (z) Employee fails to provide written notice of his decision to terminate within sixty (60) calendar days of the occurrence of
such event:
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A.
A change in Employee's reporting responsibilities, titles or offices, or any removal of Employee from any of such
positions, which has the effect of diminishing Employee's responsibility or authority;
B.
A material reduction by Bio-Techne in Employee's total compensation including but not limited to Employee’s salary,
annual bonus opportunity and annual long-term incentive opportunity;
C.
A requirement imposed by Bio-Techne on Employee that results in Employee being based at a location that is outside a
fifty (50) mile radius of Bio-Techne; or
D.
The existence of physical working conditions or requirements that a reasonable person in Employee's position would find
to be intolerable; provided, however, that Bio-Techne has received written notice of such “intolerable” conditions and Bio-Techne has
failed within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of such notice to cure or otherwise appropriately address such “intolerable” conditions.
Termination for “Good Reason” shall not include Employee's termination as a result of death, disability, retirement or a
termination for any reason other than the events specified in clauses (A) through (D) in this Section 5.1.
5.2)
Payment Upon Termination for Change in Control . If there is a Change in Control, as defined below, and if Employee
either resigns for Good Reason or Employee's employment is terminated by Bio-Techne or its successor without Cause, in each case upon
consummation of such Change in Control or within one (1) year thereafter, then Employee will receive the following:
A.

payment equal to one (1) year of his or her then-current base annual salary; plus

B.
payment equal to the pro-rated value of the greater of: (a) the target bonus for the fiscal year in which the
termination occurs; or (b) the target bonus for the fiscal year in which the Change in Control occurs, if different; plus
C.
the automatic acceleration of any vesting requirements of the equity grants awarded to Employee by Bio-Techne
during the term of his or her employment; plus
D.
continued payment by Bio-Techne of the employer portion of the premiums for the health and dental insurance
coverage Employee was receiving under group health, dental and vision insurance plans as of the Termination Date for one (1) year.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Bio-Techne determines, in its sole discretion, that payment of the COBRA premiums under this Section
5.1 would result in a violation of the nondiscrimination rules of Section 105(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code or any statute or regulation
of similar effect, payment of the COBRA benefits will be made as a Special Severance Payment as provided in Section 5.1 above.
The payments and benefits described in Section 5.2.A through D above are hereinafter referred to as the "CIC Severance Payment".
However, Employee shall be entitled to the CIC Severance Payment set forth in this Section 5.2 only if he or she executes within 60 days
of resignation or termination of employment, does not rescind, and fully complies with the Release.
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"Change of Control" shall mean the occurrence, in a single transaction or in a series of related transactions, of any one or more of the
events in subsections (A) through (C) below. For purposes of this definition, a person, entity or group shall be deemed to "Own," to have
"Owned," to be the "Owner" of, or to have acquired "Ownership" of securities if such person, entity or group directly or indirectly, through
any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has or shares voting power, which includes the power to vote or to
direct the voting, with respect to such securities.
A.
Any person, entity or group becomes the Owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of Bio-Techne representing
more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of Bio-Techne's then outstanding securities other than by virtue of a merger,
consolidation or similar transaction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed to occur (A) on account of
the acquisition of securities of Bio-Techne by an investor, any affiliate thereof or any other person, entity or group from Bio-Techne in a
transaction or series of related transactions the primary purpose of which is to obtain financing for Bio-Techne through the issuance of
equity securities or (B) solely because the level of Ownership held by any person, entity or group (the “Subject Person”) exceeds the
designated percentage threshold of the outstanding voting securities as a result of a repurchase or other acquisition of voting securities by
Bio-Techne reducing the number of shares outstanding, provided that if a Change in Control would occur (but for the operation of this
sentence) as a result of the acquisition of voting securities by Bio-Techne, and after such share acquisition, the Subject Person becomes the
Owner of any additional voting securities that, assuming the repurchase or other acquisition had not occurred, increases the percentage of
the then outstanding voting securities Owned by the Subject Person over the designated percentage threshold, then a Change in Control
shall be deemed to occur;
B.
There is consummated a merger, consolidation or similar transaction involving (directly or indirectly) Bio-Techne
and, immediately after the consummation of such merger, consolidation or similar transaction, the stockholders of Bio-Techne
immediately prior thereto do not Own, directly or indirectly, either (A) outstanding voting securities representing more than fifty percent
(50%) of the combined outstanding voting power of the surviving entity in such merger, consolidation or similar transaction or (B) more
than fifty percent (50%) of the combined outstanding voting power of the parent of the surviving entity in such merger, consolidation or
similar transaction, in each case in substantially the same proportions as their Ownership of the outstanding voting securities of BioTechne immediately prior to such transaction; or
C.
There is consummated a sale, lease, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the total
gross value of the consolidated assets of Bio-Techne and its subsidiaries, other than a sale, lease, license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of total gross value of the consolidated assets of Bio-Techne and its subsidiaries to an entity, more than fifty percent (50%)
of the combined voting power of the voting securities of which are Owned by stockholders of Bio-Techne in substantially the same
proportions as their Ownership of the outstanding voting securities of Bio-Techne immediately prior to such sale, lease, license or other
disposition (for purposes of this Section 5.1(C), “gross value” means the value of the assets of Bio-Techne or the value of the assets being
disposed of, as the case may be, determined without regard to any liabilities associated with such assets).
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For the avoidance of doubt, the term Change in Control shall not include a sale of assets, merger or other transaction effected
exclusively for the purpose of changing the domicile of Bio-Techne. To the extent required, the determination of whether a Change in
Control has occurred shall be made in accordance with Code Section 409A and the regulations, notices and other guidance of general
applicability issued thereunder.
5.3)
Timing of Cash Severance Payment. Any cash payments pursuant to Section 5.1 or 5.2 will be paid to Employee monthly
over the course of a one-year period beginning after expiration of any applicable rescission periods set forth in the Release and in no event
later than 60 days following termination of employment; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, if any of the payments described in Section 5.1 or 5.2 are subject to the requirements of Code Section 409A and Bio-Techne
determines that Employee is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A as of the date of Employee’s termination of
employment, such payments will not be paid or commence earlier than the first day of the seventh month following the date of
Employee’s termination of employment and on such date any amounts that would have been paid during the first six months following the
termination but for operation of this proviso will be paid in one lump sum with the remaining payments made monthly over the remainder
of the specified one-year period. In addition, all payments made to Employee pursuant to Section 5.1 or 5.2 will be reduced by amounts
(A) required to be withheld in accordance with federal, state and local laws and regulations in effect at the time of payment, or (B) owed to
Bio-Techne by Employee for any amounts advanced, loaned or misappropriated. Such offset will be made in the manner permitted by and
will be subject to the limitations of all applicable laws, including but not limited to Code Section 409A, and the regulations, notices and
other guidance of general applicability issued thereunder.
5.4)
No Other Payments. Except as provided in Section 5.1 and 5.2, including but not limited to if Employee is terminated
with Cause or voluntarily terminates his employment at any time without Good Reason, Employee will not be entitled to any
compensation or benefits other than that which was due to him as of the date of termination, regardless of any claim by Employee for
compensation, salary, bonus, severance benefits or other payments.
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ARTICLE 6.
ARBITRATION
6.1)
Arbitration. Any dispute arising out of or relating to (i) this Agreement or the alleged breach of it, or the making of this
Agreement, including claims of fraud in the inducement, or (ii) Employee’s application or candidacy for employment, employment and/or
termination of employment with Bio-Techne including, but not limited to, any and all disputes, claims or controversies relating to
discrimination, harassment, retaliation, wrongful discharge, and any and all other claims of any type under any federal or state constitution
or any federal, state, or local statutory or common law shall be discussed between the disputing Parties in a good faith effort to arrive at a
mutual settlement of any such controversy. If, notwithstanding, such dispute cannot be resolved, such dispute shall be settled by binding
arbitration. Any request for arbitration must be filed with the American Arbitration Association within ninety (90) days of the events
giving rise to the claim. Bio-Techne encourages Employee to consult an attorney regarding the reasonableness of this ninety (90) day filing
provision. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator shall
be a retired state or federal judge or an attorney who has practiced securities or business litigation for at least 10 years. If the Parties cannot
agree on an arbitrator within 20 days, any Party may request that the chief judge of the District Court for Hennepin County, Minnesota,
select an arbitrator. Arbitration will be conducted pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, and the commercial arbitration rules of the
American Arbitration Association, unless such rules are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, but without submission of the
dispute to such Association. Limited civil discovery shall be permitted for the production of documents and taking of depositions.
Unresolved discovery disputes may be brought to the attention of the arbitrator who may dispose of such dispute. The arbitrator shall have
the authority to award any remedy or relief that a court of this state could order or grant; provided, however, that punitive or exemplary
damages shall not be awarded. The arbitrator may award to the prevailing Party, if any, as determined by the arbitrator, all of its costs and
fees, including the arbitrator’s fees, administrative fees, travel expenses, out-of-pocket expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fees. Unless
otherwise agreed by the Parties, the place of any arbitration proceedings shall be Hennepin County, Minnesota. This agreement to arbitrate
does not include worker’s compensation claims, claims for unemployment compensation, or any injunctive or other relief to which the
Bio-Techne may be entitled in accordance with the Section 3 above.
ARTICLE 7.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
7.1)
Modifications. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to the
employment of Employee by Bio-Techne and it may not be changed or terminated orally. No modification, termination, or attempted
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be valid unless in writing signed by the Party against whom the same is sought to be
enforced.
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7.2) Binding Effect. The breach by Bio-Techne of any other agreement or instrument between Bio-Techne and Employee will
not excuse or waive Employee’s performance under, or compliance with, this Agreement.
7.3)
Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Minnesota, without regard to conflicts of law principles that would require the application of any other law.
7.4)
Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to Employee and Employee may not assign or transfer any part of his
rights or duties hereunder, or any compensation due to him hereunder, to any other person. This Agreement may be assigned by BioTechne and Employee expressly consents to the assignment of any and all obligations of Employee under this Agreement. This Agreement
is binding on any successors or assigns of Bio-Techne.
7.5)
Captions. The captions set forth in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be considered as part of this
Agreement or as in any way limiting or amplifying the terms and conditions hereof.
7.6)
No Conflicting Obligations. Employee represents and warrants to Bio-Techne that he or she is not under, or bound to be
under in the future, any obligation to any person, firm, or corporation that is or would be inconsistent or in conflict with this Agreement or
would prevent, limit, or impair in any way the performance by Employee of Employee’s obligations hereunder. If Employee possesses any
information that he or she knows or should know is considered by any third party, such as a former employer of Employee’s to be
confidential, trade secret, or otherwise proprietary, Employee shall not disclose such information to Bio-Techne or use such information to
benefit Bio-Techne in any way.
7.7)
Waivers. The failure of any Party to require the performance or satisfaction of any term or obligation of this Agreement,
or the waiver by any Party of any breach of this Agreement, will not prevent subsequent enforcement of such term or obligation or be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach.
7.8)
Severability. In the event that any provision hereof is held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction,
Bio-Techne and Employee agree that that part should modified by the court to make it enforceable to the maximum extent possible. If the
part cannot be modified, then that part may be severed and the other parts of this Agreement shall remain enforceable.
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7.9)

Code Section 409A.

(a)
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties to this Agreement intend that
this Agreement will satisfy the applicable requirements, if any, of Code Section 409A in a manner that will preclude the imposition of
additional taxes and interest imposed under Code Section 409A. The Parties agree that this Agreement will be read or amended (as
determined by Bio-Techne in its sole discretion) to the extent necessary to comply with Code Section 409A, as amended from time to time,
and the notices and other guidance of general applicability issued thereunder. For purposes of Section 409A, each payment made under
this Agreement will be treated as a separate payment. In no event may Employee, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of
payment.
(b) All reimbursements provided under this Agreement will be made or provided in accordance with the requirements
of Code Section 409A, including, where applicable, the requirement that (i) any reimbursement is for expenses incurred during Employee’s
lifetime (or during a shorter period of time specified in this Agreement), (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement during a
calendar year may not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement in any other calendar year, (iii) the reimbursement of an eligible
expense will be made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the year in which the expense is incurred, and (iv) the right
to reimbursement is not subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.
(c)
Further, if any of the payments described in this Agreement are subject to the requirements of Code Section 409A
and Bio-Techne determines that Employee is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A as of the date of Employee’s
termination of employment (which will have the same meaning as “separation from service” as defined in Code Section 409A), all or a
portion of such payments will not be paid or commence earlier than the first day of the seventh month following the date of Employee’s
termination of employment, but only to the extent such delay is required for compliance with Code Section 409A.
7.10)
Notices. All notices given or made pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed effectively given,
delivered and received (A) upon personal delivery to the Party to be notified; (B) when sent by facsimile if sent during normal business
hours of the recipient, and if not sent during normal business hours then on the next business day; (C) five (5) calendar days after having
been sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or (D) one (1) business day after the business day of
deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, specifying next-day delivery, with written verification of receipt. All
communications shall be sent to the respective parties at their addresses set forth below, or to such facsimile numbers, or addresses as
subsequently modified by written notice given in accordance with this Section:

(a)

If to Bio-Techne:

Bio-Techne Corporation
Attention: Chair, Board of Directors
614 McKinley Place Northeast
Minneapolis, MN 55413

(b)
If to the Employee:
at Employee’s home address as it then appears on the records of Bio-Techne, it being the
duty of Employee to keep Bio-Techne informed of his or her current home address at all times

7.11)
Construction. The Parties agree that the terms and provisions of this Agreement embody their mutual intent, each Party
has had the opportunity to negotiate its provisions and contribute to its drafting, and therefore, it is not to be construed more liberally in
favor of, or more strictly against, any Party hereto.
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7 . 1 2 ) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an
original of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. Electronically
transmitted (e.g., by facsimile or pdf) signed copies of this Agreement shall be deemed to be original signed versions of this Agreement.
7 . 1 3 ) Section 280G. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, to the extent that any of the
payments and benefits provided for under this Agreement or any other agreement or arrangement between the Employee and the BioTechne (collectively, the “Payments”) constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and, but for this
Section 7.14, would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, then the Payments shall be payable either (i) in full
or (ii) as to such lesser amount which would result in no portion of such Payments being subject to excise tax under Section 4999 of the
Code; whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes and the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999, results in the Employee’s receipt on an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of economic benefits under this
Agreement, notwithstanding that all or some portion of such benefits may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code. Unless the
Employee and Bio-Techne otherwise agree in writing, any determination required under this Section 7.13 shall be made in writing by BioTechne’s independent public accountants (the “Accountants”), whose reasonable determination shall be conclusive and binding upon
Employee and Bio-Techne for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations required by this Section 7.13, the Accountants may
make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, good faith interpretations
concerning the application of the Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code. Employee and Bio-Techne shall furnish to the Accountants such
information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this Section 7.13. The
Accountants will provide its calculations, together with detailed supporting documentation, to the Company and Employee as soon as
practicable following its engagement. If a reduction in Payments is required by this provision and none of the Payments constitute “nonqualified deferred compensation” subject to Code Section 409A, then the reduction will occur in the manner Employee elects in writing
prior to the date of payment. If any Payment constitutes “non-qualified deferred compensation” subject to Code Section 409A or if
Employee fails to elect an order, then the Payments to be reduced will be determined in a manner which has the least economic cost to
Employee and, to the extent the economic cost is equivalent, will be reduced in the inverse order of when payment would have been made
to Employee, until the reduction is achieved.
(Signatures follow on the next page(s).)
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THE PARTIES HAVE executed this Agreement in the manner appropriate to each as of the dates set forth below.
BIO-TECHNE CORPORATION

By
Its Chief Executive Officer

, 20XX
Date

EMPLOYEE
, 20XX
NAME

Date

Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES
Bio-Techne Corporation, a Minnesota corporation, had the material subsidiaries below as of the date of filing its Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Certain subsidiaries are not named because they were not significant individually or in the
aggregate as of such date. Bio-Techne Corporation is not a subsidiary of any other entity.

Name
Research and Diagnostic Systems Inc. (R&D Systems)
Bionostics, Inc.
Bio-Techne China Co. Ltd.
Shanghai PrimeGene Bio-Tech Co., Ltd.
ProteinSimple
ProteinSimple Ltd.
Novus Biologicals, LLC
Bio-Techne Ltd.
Tocris Cookson Limited
Cliniqa Corporation
Advanced Cell Diagnostics, Inc.

State/Country of Incorporation
Minnesota
Massachusetts
China
China
Delaware
Canada
Delaware
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
California
California

Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Bio-Techne Corporation:
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-37263, 333-49962, 333-88885, 333-170576, 333199847, and 333-207710) on Form S-8 of Bio-Techne Corporation of our reports dated September 5, 2017, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of Bio-Techne Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year
period ended June 30, 2017, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, which reports appear in
the June 30, 2017 annual report on Form 10-K of Bio-Techne Corporation.
Our report dated September 7, 2017, on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, expresses our
opinion that Bio-Techne Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017 because of the
effects of material weaknesses on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, and contains an explanatory paragraph that
states that material weaknesses were identified related to the Company not maintaining effective monitoring or information and
communication processes, and not having effective control activities over the establishment of general information technology controls for
certain of its information technology platforms.
Our report dated September 7, 2017, on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, contains an
explanatory paragraph that states that the scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting excluded the operations of Space Import-Export, Srl (Space) and Advanced Cell Diagnostics (ACD), which were acquired on
July 1, 2016 and August 1, 2016, respectively. Space and ACD represented 22.9% of Bio-Techne Corporation’s total assets and 7.5% of its
total revenues as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Bio-Techne
Corporation also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Space and ACD.

/s/KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
September 7, 2017

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Charles Kummeth, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Bio-Techne Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b.

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c.

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):
a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b.

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 7, 2017

/s/ Charles Kummeth
Charles Kummeth
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, James T. Hippel, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Bio-Techne Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b.

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c.

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):
a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b.

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 7, 2017

/s/ James T. Hippel
James T. Hippel
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1

BIO-TECHNE CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio-Techne Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2017 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Charles Kummeth, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ Charles Kummeth
Charles Kummeth
Chief Executive Officer
September 7, 2017

Exhibit 32.2

BIO-TECHNE CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio-Techne Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2017 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, James T. Hippel, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ James T. Hippel
James T. Hippel
Chief Financial Officer
September 7, 2017

